NJOUR

l
2018 ANNUAL REPORT - “

F & ‘

i
BONJOUR Foings timiee T

(ncorporaled in e Cayman Islands with Limited Liabilily) (% 88 2 B B 2 5 L 2 5 4 51) STOCK CODE B{HE3 ; 653




§ 4]
« o
. v
e n
o 2 K e, ®
@ « = ff
v dfT
"Ny
- ? 3 1 ; .‘
- "':. " . ‘;ﬂ‘\
i . b“‘
# b- ..
| .
M |
i 5 |
e.r.“ |, |




TR  BE U s
b s o *"r' a-,_@% ® 3 <
9. -

v @) "“}1‘ ’w\

Q’ﬁ-ﬂ, b "*:‘;

F RS

BA20195F « SR—RE - }A& [AERE  AEEE]
Bz AEE - MAORRFRE - OR2018F - SEXRRIBEY
FHNERXPOE - AMEMBBERIAR  FEEHEEE
® - BEFHBEE LANER  HEDDAIBHRS &
CAHBIEBERR - ABEBFRFNARE  SHSRE
BERES  REARBER  EHRPRESES -

SHRERE TDVRR] BIRBRER - THRSNERRE
RESTINER BRSRERWLNER - Rit - %8
fREBIET - EEETHRKBEER  BRETELERD
OEEREUERNEE  BEABEEREE - @%  FROX
A Sf—BEREHREHER  RUESEMERNE
Bl TRAENBEBRREENST  REERBURSILE
BERRRFENESD - BAREREHEE20,000@AERE
NEEER EORBESHHEX -

SH-BEFEXRBER ARERESSHRB LM - BE
ROSEHUE  BEEFTHESER - RE - RERS
B BPNREMNHEFEIEREES  EOBEEEER
REMENEERNK - HEM CHSDENR 2 RER
[MEE] W8 RTESERERENT SR - TEE
BREA LTS DREEES - SNEESECERSASE
BTYE ERRESRUESEANER FEEBEESE
ENERPL  THRURMBINME - RENESER LR
THHRE WERROMEESNSERER  BERBRERE
RHERETINMRT - £ (28] GRIERREENEEE -

RE2019F - TRAFLERE  SREENRDNSREY
Bi5fE - EREHNEEXHEREREH  @#RNEER
SNMER - WRHEFNREDER  NERESNRNE -
SERE [fOOHE  (REFEE  BRS] RS B8
el e - REEESRIIB DRSO -

TR ORET

CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

Going into 2019, Bonjour adheres to its core ethos of ‘committed to
serving our honorable customers’ and endeavors in further
expanding its business. To conclude 2018 in retrospect, the retail
industry has recovered from the recession over past few years.
However, the fluctuation in the global economic environment looms
over consumer sentiment. Although the number of visitors to Hong
Kong has increased, the spending power was still relatively weak
which could hardly drive the growth of retail sales in Hong Kong. No
matter how challenging the economic environment is, Bonjour will
continue to optimize its product mix and enhance the service quality
to remain competitive in the market.

With the spirit of ‘hearty services', Bonjour understands the various
needs of customers and provides a wide range of products to make
our customers feel the warmest service. Our staff is all well-trained
by intensive trainings and regular assessments on their service
qualities to provide professional advices to customers in order to
enhance customer satisfaction. Also, as the market leader, Bonjour
has always kept abreast of the latest market trends and new beauty
products. Understanding the market trends and customer
preferences, we source the best and trendy products around the
world for our customers. Currently, the Group offers over 20,000
different types of products to fulfill customers’ needs thoroughly.

Bonjour has always focused its effort on business development. The
Group reviews its store network from time to time to adjust store
locations, so as to increase market penetration. Currently, the Group
runs 39 retail stores in Hong Kong, Macau and Guangzhou to fully
cater to the consuming demands at both tourists and local districts.
As the evolution of online sales becomes more mature, Bonjour
grasps opportunities of "New Retail”, not only maintains traditional
physical stores, but also keeps developing the online platforms to
expand the service network. Bonjour flagship store has been
stationed in numbers of e-commerce platforms to provide more
information and promotions to customers timely. We target to reach a
wider customer base and establish long-term relationship with our
customers. Specifically, the Group will collect and analyze
customers' preferences and needs by integrating online and offline
data. We believe that providing more suitable services to our
customers makes the brand of “Bonjour” rooting into their lives.

Looking forward, the fluctuation in global economy still looms over
consumer sentiment, The management is cautiously optimistic about
the performance of the retail business. Nothing can prevent us from
looking for attractive products and providing better shopping
experience to enhance customer loyalty. In conformity with
“Services-oriented, striving for excellence”, Bonjour will continue to
promote our business to keep the Group steadily moving forward.

Chairman
Ip Chun Heng, Wilson
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Bonjour Holdings Limited (“Bonjour” or the “Group”) is one of the leading cosmetics retail chains in
Hong Kong. It was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 2003
(Stock Code: 653).

Bonjour currently runs 39 retail stores in Hong Kong, Macau and Guangzhou. Most of these retail stores
are located in prime locations that are highly visible and easily accessible to pedestrian traffic and by
which, we believe that our retail network is able to provide beauty and health-care products in a more
accessible and available way which can continue to gain popularity among customers.

The Group is dedicated to providing products of exclusive distribution, international brands and private
labels. Currently, the Group is selling over 20,000 kinds of featured products, covering skincare,
cosmetics, fragrance, health food, hair and body care, to cater to the diverse needs of customers.
“More Mall”, an auxiliary brand specializing in selling snacks from Japan, Korea and Taiwan, is also
stationed in 7 Bonjour branches. We strive for the best and keep a keen eye on the rapid market
changes to continue providing better products and more diversified services to customers.







H
1
Ll u
~ 28 ~
[ FLIE . -
i |
| £
/ T
=i e
e, -
-l
{
e Rebo

- T AT R
e T (-

— T AT &
e e



Suisse Rebom

RS EESE

RREAEA
22
Ada Chol

Suisse Reborn
LS i




Y

o

\

MR EA

WER
Myolie Wu

Dr.Bauer
SN R AR SR

R.BAUER

Wireless RF

-
. M 1 s e

S

.-lel‘n;’*aﬂ ar——

e E— ——
e e
}W‘._’ EEETTEL

. s m o,

e Y e ]



Dr.Bauer
24K SERE IR 28 L B ok

DRt

Ly
T W
Mmqm“

MMAREA
HER
Myolie Wu

TEEAT W YN »

T - aoamry



- T

— .

et TSI W I

a
s
A
A\
\
1
.\

e i

FMREA
E= 0
Jw

-

T LT

e @ : VES TR
é 3 ;
W a
' N i
X D
v
|
»
.
- €
g
Ls
s

YUMEI
TR W30k

o
. W  Ba

T s -

st



WOWWOW
EERAEA
LA

Elanne Kwong




e e el ey

m;n-a-u._
_mm

B S T T

2004

o 34 THMARITEGH - S REN
Headquarters were established at To Kwa
Wan - and dubbed Bonjour Tower

5 ﬁm o PR P T RS S W
i, 5 fE ey Opening of the first branch and slimming
beauty centre in Macau
SRIEBERATRAhER (TR SEM B ATINERSE - & U
ERE HEES) NRAEE  BHEENIRE=EERRRET

R RRESMOEE - HRSSFHNRMELSE o FEH NRERE0 2005
I ERBERS - REN003E7TFEBEBORRHERLT (LT | mrmeemsms ke
#BSk 1 663) - Expansion of foot massage business "Top

4 i i 3 : Comfort”
Bonjour Holdings Limited has proved a pioneer of local retail and om

wholesale of skincare products and cosmetics in Hong Kong. By » 5517 Bwww.bonjourhk.com i & & 1

L U A EAEETY R O T RS- -y e 2 .-:mr-‘-m—n-.! arrd

adhering to our core ethos of “commitment to serving our honorable R LEmT S
customers”, Bonjour has successfully launched a full series of www.bonjournk.com: wes: Bstablishad. to
§ x x . provide online shopping platform for
cosmetics and skincare products and services promoting a healthy, listomers
beautiful and relaxing lifestyle. Bonjour currently runs 39 retail stores.
g The Group was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
L Hong Kong Limited in July 2003 (Stock Code: 653). 2006
E 1991 c REARRUEREUTREBEEER
% SREEERGER (RG] - bR
! o FRRES - HEMBRTEYE - EURARAE BEEN RS EEEERERR
Since our first launch in Jordan, and moving to Fa Yuen Street in Mong %
I Kok afterwards, the Bonjour brand has steadily gained recognition To enhance brand image and provide
comprehensive beauty services, “About
4 Beauty” provided diversified beauty and
] ', 9 9 6 manicure services, in addition to its
axisting slimming services
l « IESIAAMEREER « SIEEFERE
Our pioneering introduction of Japanese skincare products and
! cosmetics proved an instant success with customers
! 2007
1997 o 3 iSRRIV BSPIENEDSE
Opened the first cosmetics and manicure
® ﬂi‘ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ%z’eﬁﬁﬁ WHERZ R FEAEHRRES  AEEEER shop in Shanghai
= BREmELER
Bonjour received a huge boost in both brand recognition and revenue o IBER3E [Dr. ProtakEESNS M0 - 1Bt
when various famous celebrities were invited to the opening of our FSEHERBAR  UHEERBEEES
second shop in Bute Street, Mong Kok Bz
Opening of 3 new branches of “Dr. Protalk
if - - skin clinics" to provide advanced and
gt 2000 specialist beauty treatments and establish

the first international beauty institute
o RS- AR - BEEIOH
Opened another shop at Fashion Island,

Causeway Bay, one of the shopping hubs 2 O 08
in Hong Kong
. ﬂ%éﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁliﬂﬂﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ‘ﬁE ' RE
. BREESHELSE BEERARE TRHS S

; ) Invited a professional consultancy, and the
Exparizion of slimming besuty buswsss gifted scholar Mr. Chip Tsao, to provide
bespoke training courses to our

management team and front-line employees

o M| R  SRBURECHESES B
REARSEHNE TEREEENR  BEERERIGERREE
WHRAEHEAGBI+FE - 2ARENED - SHeHE T HEE1008
TEEI+FE
Organised a charity sale and placed donation boxes at all branches
raising funds for victims of the Sichuan Earthguake. These activities
aroused such great responses that all charity products were sold out in

just 3 hours. A total of HK$1 million was donated to the Hong Kong Red
Cross

s RREHFRRA  FRIwins « REHN
ErSNENEERS - QHBERIEEK
A

Celebrities including Twins, Ms. Shidey Cheung
and Ms. Teresa Cheung were invited as VIP
guests to the opening of our Fife Street
branch — causing heavy traffic congestion
around the Mong Kok area

2009

s USHFLE  RHEARERH—2N
Formed a volunteer team to actively participate in various charitable and
community based activities to help the underprivileged

2003

c EEEBORHRERLT (CHHE:
653) -« BR{ 7SI it REs

RHE BB RS I RT LM : ; LA # 1

Bonjour was listed on the Main Board of # 2010

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (Stock Code: B53), receiving 17 J,., 1 s AEEMALEEBROE [REEBECEE] - SHEHEES 318000
times oversubscription for its initial public 3 FERR

offering. It secured the foundation of Assumed title sponsorship of the Yan Chai Charity Show, and donated

Bonjour's leading status in the beauty and cosmetics industry in Hong a total of HK$1,318,000 to Yan Chai Hospital
Kong
« SRM2000/105FE [ETREE] STRIESTR - MRMETREH R
» FIREREEES - BIRRRE - BSERE2-3MS 5B E Y Fr5MH woiee BERGEECRHRELSNER

Taking advantage of the low rental rates, Bonjour accelerated its Bonjour was awarded the Caring Company honour for 2009/10, in
expansion from 2-3 new branches a year, to 5 new branches in a recognition of our contribution towards social responsibility and
half-year period community well-being

S i
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Leading business magazine Forbes Asia
listed Bonjour as one of jts “Best Under a
Billien" companies, solidifying the Group's
leading position in the industry

» BEOEREINERETIRE QMR RTE
BFiEHInEE T~ - (MRS iEsE ]
China’s leading online travel service
enterprise Ctrip.com International Limited
and Bonjour jointly promoted the
Ctrip-Bonjour VIP Card, offering discounts
to visitors from Hong Kong and China

» fRIE MK ERR ERAPITh - AT A
At

Opened the first retail store in Tianhe, Guangzhou, establishing a
successful entry into the PRC market

2011

s SR TFEREFHIRERE B (XX
i?ﬁd@zon) 2 [ BERHBEGERR
Dr. Wilson lp Chun Heng, Chairman of
Bonjour, won the award of “Entrepreneur
of the Year 2011 China (Consumer
Products Category)” by Ernst & Young

2012

o SMERRETHLIRE (2011 Fe5RRH
g)ﬁ?ﬁfﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁ&-%dﬁﬁﬁmﬁ (28

Dr. Wilson Ip Chun Heng, Chairman of
Bonjour, won "Asia Pacific Customer
Relationship Excellence (CRE) Awards
2011 CEOQ of the Year (Retail)”

2013

o S Mediazone Group [20135EE
mEBEEREREE]
Bonjour was recognised at the “Hong
Kong's Most Valuable Companies
Services Awards 2013", hosted by the
Mediazone Group

NG RONG'S MOST VALL&HIE
)

2014

s SRR HSSNE—BESEANWT  EDERhEEE SRS
TERAERE
Bonjour retail stores accepted Alipay — Cross-border In-store Payment
which enhanced consumptions of mainland tourists

s EARERADEES  RENSEEABRZEHE
Acquired the Group's first self-use shop in Tal Ho Road, Tsuen Wan

o PAEM40EAMEBAGRESRSE - BEA223804FER - REEEE
BEMETER
Acquired a new office located in Tsuen Wan - with a total gross floor
area of 223,804 sq fi, and worth HK$490 million, preparing for the
Group's long term development

» SHRE (BERROIFGIRE) B2 SR hasrg014] U
=R tHRER
Bonjour was awarded the “IFAPC Outstanding Listed Company Award
2014" from The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and
Professional Commentators Limited (IFAPC), in recognition of the
Group's outstanding performance

2015

. %&Eﬁﬁ {BEMRHHEATL) B3 FEEEHSE | - WHREHLH
HERH=R
Our talents were awarded the “Distinguished Salesperson Award (DSA)"
from the SME Club in recognition of our staff's outstanding performance

s EERMBEANRERENOIMRSELER XS FrnEEL
ESfA  BHRENPREERMREEEESY
In November, the Group's headquarters were officially moved from To
Kwa Wan to Tsuen Wan - utilising a larger floor area and greater
equipment in order to further enhance logistics and central management

o SHRsNE [H12] FEPEFTR REROES] - ARERXEE
RRETESRE-ERSEELREEF=F
Bonjour was named “The Most Popular Brand” and ranked top three
highest turmnover business with Lotte Duty Free Group and King Power
Duty Free Mall on “Alipay Double Twelve Shopping Day”

i

o SR (EHFERBEE) W22 [SBRE2R T EmE]
TRBEREACE LMBSER
Bonjour was awarded the “Hong Kong Top Service Brand Ten Years
Achievement Award” from Hong Kong Brand Development Council, in
recognition of the Group’s outstanding performance in customer services

s

2016
o SRESETHEE  REPEERENSRAMRNGER 2SEERRE
EHEHEH

In cooperation with Alipay, Bonjour launched a bargain activity at our
Canton Road Branch in Tsim Sha Tsui with a surge in sales of 1 million
on a single day

RIOSHEERIE 2 AESE - SHEH [SRVPESR] BFES5E -
B EHREEs  SEEERTEHHERE

In order to meet the trend of intelligent service, Bonjour has launched the
Bonjour e-Membership Program to replace the traditional VIP card,
which offered customers a brand new shopping experience

REFEESMMIRRTHBUE - DI
MR LFHSEMMEE - S8 1LERAE
REDR  EEEEAARRBRERLER
;%g@ﬁ&ARﬁA—E%ﬂ%Eﬁﬁﬁ

Bonjour held a Grand Opening Ceremony
at Tsuen Wan Headguarters in May.
Officiating at the ceremony were Mr. Liu
Lin-Director of New Territories Sub-Office of the Liaison Office of the
Central People's Government in the HKSAR, Mr. Cheng Yiu
Tong-Honorary President of the Hong Kong Federation of Trade Unions
and Deputy to the National People's Congress of PRC, lots of political,
business celebrities and artists witnessed the new milestone of Bonjour

SHRNE (SELIEREREGE) B [REXE]  DREEEEEDRE
ERAREREI SESUNER

Bonjour was awarded the "Honorable Award” from The Cosmetic and
Perfumery Association of Hong Kong Limited in recognition of our
outstanding contribution in promoting continuous studies and training for
employees

{
2017 /
« SHRE [SHESHE0FESESHAR|  AEERELSHES
S

Bonjour was awarded the “HKRITA 2017 Industry Super Retailer of the
Year" in recognition of the Group's efforts and dedication to the retail
industry

o ENURERBFNTESENRE  KEASTEE AR [XEE12R
HEE | RIAfTiCeR - S—/\REZHRRTREFEXZZHICH
With its innovative marketing strategy, Bonjour broke a new record with
the “Tmall double 11 global camival” sales. Trading volume of the first
hour already exceeded that of the entire day of last year

o HESREHSENREK  SHRESHEFEF  SHEAEEYE R’
BRIFHEEEERT  BCEERR
Ant Financial launched AlipayHK, inviting Bonjour to become its first
batch of cooperative business partners - helping to enhance operational
efficiency, conform to current consumer spending patterns and improve
customer shopping experience

N

2018 i

o SRREEEHKENRTSEDRE [2018E T SMERAE] &R
SENZESRE - mHROERETESESAENSURE
Bonjour was awarded "Business Excellence Awards 2018" from the
Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector in
recognition of our excellent performance in several aspects, including
brand development, market sense and social responsibility, etc.

» BEEMESFE  —TVEh @B REIEE
F—EBE [SRMAEE] - SHEM
[etR] Zh [ @R @RS
BRIl
To bring team cooperation into full
play, staff from Bonjour headquarters
and front line participated in the
“Bonjour Dronestagram” activity. Our
staff members successfully formed
the Chinese characters of “Bonjour”
and a heart shape to champion our
united spirit

e SR REBBERROSER 287
TS - ERETEELE
B IIESEEMREEEITERE
Bonjour participated in the “Charter
on External Lighting” to advocate
environmental protection and energy
saving. Bonjour is dedicated to delivering on our corporate social
responsibility, and has been given the gold award by the Environment
Bureau as a recognition
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Bonjour Holdings Limited is one of the leading cosmetics and beauty service companies
in Hong Kong and is widely recognized by citizens and tourists.

Awards Organizations
The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and

IFAPC Outstanding Listed Company Award Professional Commentators Limited (IFAPC)
Hong Kong's Most Valuable ]
Companies Services Awards Metazane Greup

Hong Kong Q - Mark Council

The Hong Kong Q-Mark Service Scheme Certificate
Intellectual Property Department

-

Yahoo! Emotive Award
The Premier Brand in Hong Kong

Business Excellence Awards

Asian Outstanding Business Achievement Awards

GD. QQ. COM / FASHION / HK

The Professional Validation Centre of
Hong Kong Business Sector

Asian Hair & Beauty Association

GS1 Hong Kong / Retail Asia Expo
GS1 Hong Kong

Top 10 eCommerce Website Awards
Consumer Caring Award

Honorable Award

Industry Super Retailer of the Year Retail Asia Expo

= = 42080,
TR s,
Consumer £ |"‘ - he
iy Fei6 - 18 3. -ﬂ:) g

T g SRR

e AT WL e

The Cosmetic and Perfumery Association of Hong Kong

No Fakes Pledge Scheme
Quality Tourism Services Scheme Hong Kong Tourism Board p
x&%m&;mmm B Ten Years Hong Kong Brand Development Council ._j
Entrepreneur of the Year (China) Ernst & Young i
Asia Pacific CRE Awards-CEO of the Year (Retail)  Asia Pacific Customer Relationship Excellence (CRE)
Best Under A Billion Forbes Asia :
Consumer's Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands g:;%ig;;ﬂ?gt: geegg)tatim and Credibility :
Hong Kong Merchant of Integrity Guangzhou Daily ::
Quality Life Awards Lisa Magazine ;’
The Best Performance Company Award Capital Weekly 5
The Excellence of Listed Enterprise Awards Capital Weekly _i
Capital Weekly Services Award Capital Weekly ’
Leaders of Excellence Capital Magazine ‘
Outstanding Corporate Strategy Awards East Week 4
The Best for Home Hong Kong Economic Times -Take Me Home g
5 Years Plus Caring Company The Hong Kong Council of Social Service _E
Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises Parade Economic Digest ,
TVB Weekly Outstanding Award TVB Weekly
Guangzhou Influential Fashion Brands Awards Style Weekly i
Distinguished Salesperson Award (DSA) The Hong Kong Management Association E
Yahoo! Hong Kong E
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Bonjour has long been an active participant in charity works and supports environmental activities.
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Activities Organizations

5 Years Plus Caring Company

Plastic Resources Recycling Partnership
Donation Box Placement

Donation Box Placement

Visit Yan Chai Hospital Fong Yock Yee
Neighbourhood Elderly Centre

Yan Chai Charity Walk
Vegetarian Feast “Year of Snake”
Yan Chai Charity Show

Transworld x Bonjour Charity Visit to Yan Chal Law's

Foundation Child Care Centre cum Hostel
Amity and Benevolence Charity Night
Tree Planting Day

Pink Walk Against Breast Cancer

Walk for Nature

Wai Yin x Canon — Walk For Charity ¢ Plant For
Fun...d"Event

Yan Chai Fortune Bag in Care of Elderly
Sponsor “World Women Bowling Championships”
Bonjour x Shine Tak Charity Hiking

Free Rice Dumplings Giveaways
Territory-wide Flag Day

Charity Walk for Nepal Annapurna

Ice Bucket Challenge Fund Raising Event
Walk for Millions

Pink Revolution

Trailwalker Fund Raising Event

Charity Gala Dinner

Donation to the school for the purchase of mobile leaming

equipment and the development of STEM education
Charity Sale for Disaster Relief in China

Charity Donation

$1 Morinaga Milk Powder Charity Sales

Industry Cares Recognition Scheme

Charter on External Lighting Environment Bureau )
¥ 3 4 W '-g L
e L~ e LR W ldd e e T TEETI NN ARE R L . o PR ‘I'z‘-to'\ - - YT R e m—?&m- &
i r X L3 v R ¥
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«© g M & T
ah 7 - = e gl

s - VAR

The Hong Kong Council for Social Service
Yan Oi Tong EcoPark

ORBIS (Hong Kong)

Yan Chai Hospital

Yan Chai Hospital

Yan Chai Hospital
Yan Chai Hospital
Yan Chai Hospital

Yan Chai Hospital

Kowloon Women 's Organisations Federation
The Community Chest

HK Breast Cancer Foundation

WWF (Hong Kong)

Wai Yin Association

Yan Chai Hospital

Hong Kong Tenpin Bowling Congress

Shine Tak Foundation

Shine Tak Foundation / Butterflyers Association
Yan Chai Hospital

A Drop of Life

Hong Kong Neuro-muscular Disease Association
The Community Chest

Hong Kong Cancer Fund

Oxfam Hong Kong

Riding For The Disabled Association

Yan Chai Hospital

Hong Kong Red Cross

Egive For You Charity Foundation
ORBIS (Hong Kong)

Federation of Hong Kong Industries
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SHEFERE100EBRAERMREE - KER FTUBRAEREREEREE
Suisse Reborn - YUMEI - Dr. Schafter - Dr.Bauer - Medi Angel - Franck Olivier - Gisele
Delorme - Rote Fabrik - Qiriness ~ WOWWOW 5 «

Bonjour owns over 100 exclusively-distributed international brands, including exclusive and
private labels such as Suisse Reborn, YUMEI, Dr. Schafter, Dr.Bauer, Medi Angel, Franck
Olivier, Gisele Delorme, Rote Fabrik, Qiriness, WOWWOW etc.

clusive DIsT P S
3W Clinic IPSE Prevense
A+ Fit IPSENature Purita
Adin IPSE Premium Qiriness
Arvid IPSE Solution Rich
ARVAL |. COLOR Focus Rossini
Baby Coccole |. COLOR PRO Rote Fabrik
Beauty Purify 1. Skin Focus Sence Beauty
Beso Baby Jellyfish Venom Essence  Silky Tender
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Comfo Les Eaux de Bach Tinchew (By Ms, Violet)
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Dabo Lonkoom Touch Beauty
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G. Field Nextbeau AMERETD
Gisele Delorme Nightingale LR
Gold Energy Snail Synergy ~ NOTE GimE
| Beauty Olivarrier G
In. Hair professional Pretty by Flormar S
:\mkm -
’fﬁ:r i L — e o
- -



B 8%

hFEMBREEHRE

RAJER

REEEHR

TERE

EEE WM

B AZBENRE

ki
o>
o
i
Bk
St

S
oy
i
Bt
X
ot
&
g
)
=
B

SARBRRE
HARBEDE
HARSRE

BTSRRI o

—E-NFEER

Contents

Five-Year Financial and Operational Summary

Corporate Information

Information for Investors

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Directors’ Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

BONJOUR

19
22
38
48
76

83

84
85
87
88

90



BONJOUR

TEHMEREERE Five-Year Financial and Operational Summary
(5 HHEHI) (in HK$ thousands

HLFET unless otherwise —E—NE ZT-—hHE ZT—FRF —T—+F ZB-N\F

iTE specified) 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
B Turnover 3,144,002 2,286,806 1,994,902 1,934,893 1,793,457

— B TS — Continuing 2,795,658 2,286,806 1,994,002 1,934,893 1,793,457

— DR PR TR — Discontinued 348,344 - - - -
£ Gross profit 1,498,501 955,005 760,778 680,228 635,765

—RFELEER - Continuing 1,168,435 955,005 760,778 680,228 635,765

— DR PSR — Discontinued 330,066 - - - -
ESVUES Gross margin 47 .66% 41.76% 38.14% 35.16% 35.45%

—FELEER — Continuing 41.79% 41.76% 38.14% 35.16% 35.45%

— DR PSR - Discontinued 94.75% - - - -
gREESER (1) Operating profit/(loss) 274,535 50,723 (77,868) (187,526) (16,213)

—FHEICEET - Continuing 231,509 50,723 (77,868)  (187,526) (16,213)

— DR PSR — Discontinued 43,026 - - - -
RS Operating margin 8.73% 2.22% (3.90)% (9.69)% (0.90)%

—FHEIC S ET - Continuing 8.28% 2.22% (3.90)% (9.69)% (0.90)%

— DR PSR - Discontinued 12.35% - - - -
FEHF,(EE)  Profit/(Loss) for the year 225,522 432,228 (91,628)  (202,342) (39,613)

—FHEICE X - Continuing 190,496 33,275 (91,628)  (202,342) (39,613)

—DRIFEE ¥R - Discontinued 35,026 398,953 - - -
HE LR, TFE Return on sales/

A= Net margin 717% 18.90% (4.59)% (10.46)% (2.21)%

—FHEIC S ET - Continuing 6.81% 1.46% (4.59)% (10.46)% (2.21)%

—BERIHEEER - Discontinued 10.06% 17.45% - - -
EEED Working capital 3,651 3,947 165,258 124,119 38,640
BEERE Total assets 1,548,949 1,967,802 1,672,565 1,416,042 1,393,159
BfEQsE Total liabilities 971,574 889,774 818,997 774,828 793,474
fRRES Shareholders’ funds 577,375 1,078,028 853,568 641,214 599,685
BEREDR Return on total assets 14.56% 21.97% (5.48)% (14.29)% (2.84)%
&Nk Return on equity 39.06% 40.09% (10.73)% (31.56)% (6.61)%
HEFEIEN Inventory turnover on

(8) sales (days) 30 41 41 36 48
BERTEERE Total liabilities to

=carall shareholders’ funds 168.27% 82.54% 95.95% 120.84% 132.32%
BEETEDE Total number of retail

ey outlets in Hong Kong 42 42 37 33 35
SBPIEE R Total number of retail

Ha g outlet in Macau 3 3 3 3 3
hEE A RAFE Total number of retail

(TR )HZEE outlet in the People’s

DIELRE Republic of China

(the “PRC” or “China”) 1 2 2 2 1
FEBERDLEL Total number of beauty
salons in Hong Kong 15 - - - -

A E AL NI

SRETE SR THNYEE 2

Total number of beauty
salon in Macau

Total number of beauty
salons in the PRC

Annual Report 2018
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors
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Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chi Wai

Dr. Chow Ho Ming

Mr. Lo Hang Fong

Audit Committee

Mr. Wong Chi Wai (Chairman)

Dr. Chow Ho Ming

Mr. Lo Hang Fong

Remuneration Committee

Dr. Chow Ho Ming (Chairman)

Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson

Mr. Wong Chi Wai

Nomination Committee

Mr. Lo Hang Fong (Chairman)

Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson

Mr. Wong Chi Wai

Authorised Representatives

Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson
Ms. Chung Pui Wan

Company Secretary
Ms. Cheng Wai Kam, Kennex
Independent Auditor

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
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Corporate Information (continued)

Legal Adviser

Tung, Ng, Tse & Heung Solicitors

Registered Office

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman, KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

Head Office and Principal Place of Business

12/F., Bonjour Tower

No. 36-50 Wang Wo Tsai Street
Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
Telephone: (+852) 2872-2872
Facsimile: (+852) 2872-2873

Principal Bankers

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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Information for Investors

Company Website

Corporate Information
http://corp.bonjourhk.com

Online Shopping Web
www.bonjourhk.com

E-mail Address

corporate@bonjourhk.com

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor
24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F.

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’s Road

North Point

Hong Kong

Financial Calendar

Annual General Meeting

(the “AGM”)
Announcement of final results
Financial year end

24 May 2019

29 March 2019
31 December 2018

Important Dates

Closure of Register of Members
(both days inclusive)

Stock Code

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited . 653
(the “Stock Exchange”)

Board Lot 2,000 shares

20 May 2019 to 24 May 2019
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of Bonjour Holdings Limited (“Bonjour” or the “Company”),
| present this annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year” or “Financial Year”) to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”).

In 2018, the retail industry in Hong Kong sailed through ups and
downs. The fluctuation in global economy and depreciating RMB ' still
loomed over consumer sentiment. Although tourist arrivals in Hong
Kong increased in 2018, the spending power was relatively weak.
In general, under the world economic situation, the inbound tourism
in Hong Kong and changing consumer habits could hardly drive the
momentum in the total retail sales growth.

Bonjour endeavours in evolving the products mix from time to time
to meet customers changing appetites and preferences. As beauty
products and cosmetics are innovated rapidly, the Group has always
kept abreast of the latest market trends and new beauty products.
Understanding the market trends and customer preferences, we
gathered the best beauty trends that are taking over each season
from all over the world, including South Korea, Japan, Europe and the
United States, etc. The Group sourced over 20,000 quality and trendy
brands for a broad appeal product mix to ensure there is something
on the shelf that any customer is going to love.

E-Commerce has become important in our daily life nowadays.
According to the “Asia-Pacific Cross-Border B2C E-Commerce
2018” report, more than 50% of online shoppers in Asia made cross-
border purchases. Also, Chinese online shoppers prefer cross-border
shopping platforms hosted by local providers, such as Tmall Global,
Kaola and JD Global. It is believed that customers will spend more
time and money on online shopping going forward.

Bonjour online stores have stationed on multiple e-commerce
platforms to reach more targeted customers and to provide them
with timely update information such as promoting new and upcoming
products, offering promotions or discount. Just by a few clicks during
check out, customers can get all what they want in the shopping cart
SO easily.

Annual Report 2018
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BONJOUR

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

So important is the talent that the Group provided friendly working
environment for our team and enhanced their competence by offering
regular training programs. Our frontline staff were all well-trained with
professional beauty knowledge and customer service skills. The Group
also valued employees’ feedback and suggestions regarding daily
operations and responded timely to enhance the Group’s operating
abilities and deliver better performance.

Only if we provide an extraordinary shopping experience, would the
customers intend to repurchase at Bonjour in the future. In conformity
with “Services-oriented, striving for excellence”, Bonjour team
endeavored in providing heartfelt service to customers. Our frontline
staff further elevated the service qualities by all means to keep our
competitiveness and attract customers.

The Group was committed to fulfilling social responsibility as we
understood that our business operations might bring direct and
indirect effects to our society. By enhancing our positivities and
minimizing negative social and environmental impacts, we integrated
social considerations into our operations. We endeavored in giving
back to society and encouraging employees to participate in volunteer
work and social services. Moreover, the Group actively supported
various charitable and community projects and strengthened the
interaction with the community in order to build trust in society.

In the coming year, although the business environment remains
challenging, the Group is equipped to overcome with our long-
established business foundation. Taking the advantage of the market
leadership, the Group will continue to elevate our services to provide
better shopping experience and broaden the Group’s business
development.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to
our Shareholders, investors and business partners for the continuous
understanding, trust and support, as well as every employee who have
contribute with unremitting efforts and input. We will be always well
prepared to keep the Group steadily moving forward.

Ip Chun Heng, Wilson
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Annual Results

e The Group’s turnover for the Year amounted to HK$1,793.5
million, representing a decrease of 7.3% from HK$1,934.9 million
of last corresponding year.

° Loss for the Year was HK$39.6 million (2017: HK$202.3 million).

e  The Group’s gross profit decreased 6.5% from HK$680.2 million
of last corresponding year to HK$635.8 million.

e  Loss per share was HK1.2 cents (2017: HK$5.9 cents).

e As at 31 December 2018, the Group operated a total of 39 retall
stores in Hong Kong, Macau and Guangzhou.

Market Overview

In 2018, the retail market in Hong Kong went through ups and downs
where recording double-digit year-on-year growth in the first half of
the Year and decelerating pace of growth in the second half. The
value of total retail sales for the whole year was provisionally estimated
at $485.2 billion, increased by 8.8% in value over 2017, according
to the Census and Statistics Department. The annual growth looked
strong but the growth in December was only 0.1% compared with
the same month in 2017. A government spokesman commented that
the favorable labor market conditions and buoyant inbound tourism
may continue to support the retail sector in the near term but external
uncertainties and weaker asset markets may increasingly affect
consumer sentiment.

According to the Tourism Development Board, there was a record
high of around 65.1 million total tourist arrivals in 2018, an increase of
11.4% year-on-year. However, it is believed that the same-day visitors
from mainland was the key driver of visitor growth soaring 20.1% to
31.1 million. More significantly, the average spending by overnight
mainland visitors dropped by a further 1.7% in the third quarter of
2018 which adversely effected the retail market performance.

According to JLL’s Year-end Property Market Review and Forecast,
the street-shop rents has raised 1.6% for the first time in 2018, after
plunging 43% over the previous three years because of the improving
overall retail sales and tightening vacancy. The report also revealed
that F&B operators and mass retailers, notably personal care and
pharmacy retailers, continued to drive leasing momentum. Retailers
were facing higher cost pressure to survive in a highly competitive
environment.

Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review

Retail Sales

The Group’s total retail sales for the Year decreased by 7.3%
compared to the last corresponding year (2017: decrease 3.0%). Such
performance was mainly driven by the decrease in average ticket size
of mainland tourists though the total number of transactions grew.
Same store sales growth was 0.8% (2017: 2.3%).

Structural change of mainland tourist mix since over the past few years
has been affecting the average ticket size where increasing arrivals
were from lower-tier cities with less spending power. In addition,
the weak RMB and uncertain economic environment dampened the
attractiveness of Hong Kong goods to mainland shoppers that they
became more cautious in their spending.

Customers retail shopping experience has evolved drastically in the
last decade. Traditionally, store beauty consultants were the key driver
to increase the conversion rate and thus increase revenue. Today,
social media is extremely influential and powerful to convert prospect
into sale. Customers, instead of purely seeking advices from beauty
consultants, tend to look for a different shopping experience that
requires better product display to facilitate self-service. Therefore, we
not only used various e-marketing channels to connect our businesses
to customers from all walks of life, but we also adapted our operations
to these market changes. In 2018, we further enhanced our store
showcasing to improve customers self-service shopping experience
and make them easier to hunt and examine the products.

Pressure on profitability remained. Though gross profit margin
increased slightly by 0.3% in 2018 mainly due to sales mix
improvement, ongoing sales promotions and discounts used for
sustaining sales flattened the gross profit growth. To maintain the
competitiveness of our product offerings and achieve higher sales
efficiency, the Group closely monitored and timely adjusted pricing
strategies throughout the year. Moreover, we reviewed the product
performance regularly and discontinued those underperforming
products from our product list.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review (continued)

E-Commerce

In 2018, the Group’s online retail sales in the Hong Kong and Chinese
markets increased by 9.0% from 2017.

E-commerce retail remained strong in 2018. According to the “Asia-
Pacific Cross-Border B2C E-Commerce 2018” report, more than
50% of online shoppers in Asia made cross-border purchases. Also,
Chinese online shoppers prefer cross-border shopping platforms
hosted by local providers, such as Tmall Global, Kaola and JD Global.

In response, apart from enhancing the Group’s own official online
store, Bonjour online stores were also stationed in a number of
e-commerce platforms such as Tmall Global, Kaola, Xiahongshu to
increase company’s accessibility and provide timely promotional and
discount messages to customers. The Group also has some long-
established e-Commerce platform providers. For instance, we have
already built a strong customer base for our brand at Tmall and
WeChat.

As e-commerce keeps growing and social media continues to play
a bigger role, retail and social media channels even intertwine more
and more significantly. With the rise of social media, consumers pay
more attention on promotions at online platforms, such as Facebook,
WeChat, YouTube and Instagram. The Group put plenty of effort on
digital media by distributing promotional videos on Facebook and
Weibo pages and regularly launched online promotion activities and
special events, including “Double Eleven”, etc. which achieved a great
success. The Group’s cost of digital media promotion increase 4.3%
in 2018 (increase 7.6% in 2017).

Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Rental and Store Network

As at 31 December 2018, the Group operated 39 stores in Hong
Kong, Macau and Guangzhou (2017: 38). The rental cost for the Year
was HK$277.6 million (2017: HK$368.8 million). The retail store rent-
to-turnover ratio has dropped from 19.1% in 2017 to 15.5% in 2018,
representing that the Group took a big leap forward in shop operating
efficiency.

Although the street-shop rents started to raise slightly in 2018 due to
the recovery of the retail sector in the first half of 2018, the Group has
adopted a cautious optimistic strategic planning in its store network in
response to the market changes. By closely monitoring and analyzing
market changes, the Group has reviewed its store network from time
to more time to adjust store locations and negotiate for reasonable
rental levels. Stores were deliberately chosen at both tourists shopping
hotspots and community districts to capture both tourists and local
communities’ needs which also helped the Group to increase the market
penetration.

Brand Management

Currently, the Group distributes over 180 internationally self-owned
brands, including Suisse Reborn, Dr. Bauer, Yumei, WOWWOW, Dr.
Schafter and Auslin, covering a broad series of skin-care, fragrance
and cosmetics, hairdressing, body-care and healthcare products and
beauty devices.

The Group has invited a number of celebrities as spokespersons for its
house-brands, including Ms. Ada Choi (Suisse Reborn), Ms. Myolie Wu
(Dr. Bauer), Miss Elanne Kwong (WOWWOW), Miss Joey Wong (Yumei)
and Mr. Louis Cheung (Dr. Schafter). Their positive images have
successfully promoted our products and enhanced brand awareness.

Thanks to the promotion of the “Bonjour” brand at different media
and channels, the number of current members under Bonjour VIP
programme has exceeded 490,000. The VIP members are able to
discover more Bonjour latest news and hottest promotional items and
redeem free gifts or coupons anytime and anywhere. Bonjour VIP
programme helped the brand to take root in the lives of customers, as
well as to enhance the customers’ shopping experience and loyalty.

The Group has implemented effective brand strategy and strived to
improving the product portfolio. The Group continuously evaluated
the product performances and improved the product life cycle to
reorganize the product portfolio. With a more sophisticated product
portfolio, the Group would be able to fulfill the ever-changing needs of
customers and maintain market competitiveness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Talents Training and Social Responsibility

During the Year, there are approximately 850 staff in the Group and
the staff cost-to-turnover ratio was 12.6% (2017: 11.9%).

Understanding that talent is an important asset to the Group, Bonjour
stressed the development of every staff and provided comprehensive
training for them. The Group regularly reformed training courses
and workshops. We offered suitable and relevant trainings with
professional beauty knowledge which could elevate staff’s abilities
to serve customers more confidently so as to adapt to the various
changing customers’ demands and develop long-term relationships
with customers.

Outlook
Challenging retail market amid macroeconomic headwinds

In view of the slowdown in total sales growth towards the end of 2018,
the retail market embraced a challenging year. The global economic
downturn will continue to loom over consumer confidence and actual
spending. Although the opening major infrastructures such as the
Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge and the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Express Rail Link have boosted mainland tourist number which
recorded high tourist arrivals in 2018, the behavior of the mainland
visitors has been changing from play-eat-shop to in-depth travel, also
from buying high-end luxury products to value-for-money or daily
necessity products which brought limited impact on sales volume. The
Group will keep an eye on the market changes and prepared well to
embrace for challenges ahead.

Rental and Store Network

According to the JLL report, the high-street shop rents are expected
to soften in the range of 0-5% in 2019 due to the depreciating RMB
and conservative local consumer sentiment. Therefore, the Group
will critically review and monitor the rental trend in order to seize the
opportunity to optimize the store network planning.

The Group will continue to review the current store distribution and
adjust the location of the store network by elevating any individual
underperforming stores and expanding to high traffic retail locations
no matter they are at tourist shopping hotspots or local communities.
Store locations that are conveniently located in popular shopping
districts or shopping malls would be considered. The Group will
strategically locate stores to increase market penetration and improve
the retail network portfolio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Outlook (continued)
Timely Product Portfolio Adjustment

By analyzing big data, the Group better understands customers’
demands and provides more customer-oriented products and services.
The Group will simultaneously adjust the product mix and launch more
nationwide trendy products to cater different customers’ needs.

In the past few years, K-beauty was unabashed stare of skincare
world, from cleanser to hydrating essences. Korea is constantly
innovating with extremely avant-garde new formulas and harnessing
the power of nature’s most amazing skin-transforming ingredients.
J-beauty, on the other hand, is all about gentle skincare, soft and
clean skin, which always attracts a number of die-hard fans. Europe
and U.S. is unbeatable through sophisticated skincare market where
Australia and New Zealand always offer great products from natural
ingredients specially good for sensitive skin types. The Group product
procurement team will continue to understand the market and analyse
the customer preferences and convert these understanding into
product choices by seeking the latest best-selling trendy products
around the world.

The Group will also continue to pay close attention to inventory.
Obsolete products will be removed timely based on the popularity
performance in order to upgrade the product portfolio, especially those
lower price products which launches very fast and those products with
shorter product life cycle.

Grasp the opportunities of e-commerce development

Cross-border B2C e-commerce sales are still growing worldwide,
projected to account for one-fifth of overall online retail sales volume
by 2022, according to the “Global Cross-Border B2C E-Commerce
2018” report.

According to the prediction from Worldpay, a payments technology
company, the e-commerce across Asia-Pacific will continue to grow
significantly in 2019 and beyond. It is believed that the Asia-Pacific will
lead the world in transiting to mobile commerce, including Hong Kong.
The adoption of e-commerce in Asia-Pacific will account for two-thirds
of regional payment volume by 2022.

The Group will grasp the opportunity in further promoting the
e-commerce platform and seeking cooperation with different well-
known social media platforms such as VIP.COM (Vipshop) and
JD.COM (Jindong Mall) to enhance brand awareness and expand
customer base. The Group will strive for enhancing communication
and interaction with customers through online and offline services to
better understand their preferences and needs, so as to provide better
shopping experience.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Outlook (continued)
Grasp the opportunities of e-commerce development (continued)

The Group has embraced a variety of payment methods for customers’
convenience, including mobile payments like Tencent’s WeChat Pay,
Alibaba’s Alipay, Alipay HK, Google Pay, Apple Pay and Samsung Pay.
The Group will not only strengthen and upgrade various applications
but also seek for cooperation with different e-payment suppliers for
offering more promotional discounts to customers.

Conclusion

All in all, the retail market in coming year remains positive, but still
challenging. Mainland tourist inflows are expected to grow continually,
particularly the same-day visitor arrivals. Facing the weakened
spending power and changing consumer behavior, the Group will
continue to optimize the product mix to increase the competitiveness.
Online e-commerce development that will be one of the key focuses
in 2019. The Group will continue to strengthen the promotion activities
by cooperating with different e-commerce platforms to boost sales.
Bonjour will strive for excellence in the market to keep the Group
steadily moving forward.

Financial Review
Liquidity and Financial Resources

Liquidity and financial resources position remained healthy as the
Group continued to adopt a prudent approach in managing its financial
resources. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and bank
deposits amounted to HK$237.5 million (2017: HK$250.1 million). The
Group’s bank borrowings, loan from a related company and finance
lease payables as at 31 December 2018 were HK$519.6 million (2017:
HK$489.1 million), out of which HK$265.9 million (2017: HK$157.0
million) were repayable within the next 12 months.

The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2018 was 1.07
(2017: 1.29). The Board believes that the Group has maintained
sufficient working capital for its operation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio was 0.867
(2017: 0.763), and was calculated based on the Group’s bank and
other borrowings and finance lease payables, divided by total equity
of HK$599.7 million (2017: HK$641.2 million). Total liabilities to
shareholders’ funds was 132.3% (2017: 120.8%). The Group services
its debt primarily through the cash earned from its operation.

Cash Flow

Net cash outflow from operating activities was HK$28.9 million in 2018
(2017: inflow of HK$34.7 million). The loss before tax was HK$33.1
million. The total amount of non-cash items amounting to HK$43.1
million (mainly depreciation expense) and there was a net increase
in working capital of HK$38.3 million (2017: net decrease HK$46.0
million).

Net cash outflow from investing activities was HK$14.3 million in
2018 (2017: HK$209.0 million) which mainly represented purchase of
property, plant and equipment.

Net cash inflow from financing activities was HK$28.1 million in 2018
(2017: outflow of HK$24.7 million) which mainly represented increase
in bank borrowings.

RAEE Contingent Liabilities
—E-N\F —E—LF
2018 2017
FAETT FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
PENEEZBSERZER Guarantees given by banks for rental
payment to landlords - 2,850
EERHEEEL ZER Guarantees given for purchase to vendors 100 100
100 2,950
—B- \FEH 15
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Foreign Exchange and Bank Borrowing Interest Rate Exposures

The Group has limited exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations
given that most of its assets, receipts and payments are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Macau Pataca and RMB with
some denominated in USD and Japanese Yen. The Group monitors
its foreign exchange position and, if necessary, will hedge its foreign
exchange exposure by forward foreign exchange contracts. As at 31
December 2018, none of the Group’s bank borrowings was dominated
in foreign currency.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had short-term bank borrowings
amounting to HK$200.0 million (2017: HK$130.0 million) and long-term
bank borrowings amounting to HK$193.8 million (2017: HK$219.2

million). The bank borrowings were arranged at both fixed interest rate
and floating interest rate basis at short-term inter-bank offer rates.

Capital Structure

During the Year, the Company did not issue and allot any new shares.
The total number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2018 was 3,412,565,999 shares.
Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s assets with carrying

amount of approximately HK$637.9 million (2017: HK$653.7 million)
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Year.

Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Significant Securities Investments

The investment objective of the Group is to achieve earnings and
enhance the corporate value to the shareholders of the Company.
The strategy of the Group is to identify and invest in both listed and
unlisted investments and other related financial assets with potential
of growth within their industries. The Group has no specific industry
focus on potential investment.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had financial assets at FVTOCI
(81 December 2017: available-for-sale financial assets) through equity
investments in Town Health International Medical Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3886) (“Town
Health”) with a total market value of HK$83.2 million, accounting for
6.0% of the Group’s total assets (31 December 2017: HK$87.7 million,
accounting for 6.2% of total assets). Throughout the Year, the Group
has been holding only one single financial asset and the change on the
fair value of such financial asset amounted to a loss of HK$4.4 million
for the Year (2017: HK$144.0 million). The market value of the financial
assets will be affected by the current status of being suspended in
trading and the financial performance of Town Health. To mitigate
relevant risks, the Group will monitor the trends of macro economy to
optimise its investment strategies in response to market conditions.
When considering future investment, the Group will assess the results
of operations and compliance of the investees to prevent receiving no
future economic benefits.

Details of Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

The Directors currently do not have any future plans for material
investments or capital assets. The management will continue to
monitor the industry and review its business expansion plans regularly,
S0 as to take necessary measures in the Group’s best interests.

Events after the Year

Referring to the court case (case number: HCCC 348/2017) of the
Company in relation to a defrauding of about HK$40,490,000 from
Bonjour Cosmetic Wholesale Center Limited (“BCWCL”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, by a former Human Resource
Manager of the Company, Ms. Kiu Mei-ling (“Ms. Kiu”), with her
family members through their positions in the Company from 2004
to 2011 (the “Incident”). The Board, together with the Commercial
Crime Bureau, has conducted a thorough review of banking records
to ascertain the extent of the defrauding conducted by Ms. Kiu. Ms.
Kiu and her family members were convicted by the court on 25 March
2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Events after the Year

Immediately after discovering the Incident, the Board has engaged
external independent accountant to ascertain the amount of
misappropriate fund and engaged independent consultancy firm,
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Risk Assurance Limited (currently known as
Corporate Governance Professionals Limited) to conduct a thorough
review of the Company’s internal control procedures and systems and
followed up on the improvement recommendations accordingly. The
Company has also sought legal advice on all possible legal actions as
well as opinion on necessary compliance obligations.

The amount misappropriated in each of the financial years from Year
2004 through Year 2012 have fully been reflected in the Group’s
audited consolidated financial statements for the respective years as
staff expenses. Therefore, the Board is of the view that the Incident
does not impact on the day-to-day operations of the Group and
the financial position of the Group in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018 was not affected. Meanwhile, the Company has
also continued to discuss with its legal advisors and considered any
appropriate course of action to be taken to pursue its loss arising from
the Incident.

Human Resources

The Group adheres to a strong belief that employees are always the
most valuable assets of a corporation. The Group values its human
resources and recognises the importance of attracting and retaining
qualified staff for its continuing success. Remuneration packages
are generally structured by reference to market terms and individual
qualifications. In addition, share options and discretionary bonuses are
also granted to eligible employees based on individual’s performance.
The Group also provides mandatory provident fund schemes, medical
insurance schemes, staff purchase discounts and suitable training
programs for our employees.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 850 (2017:
910) full-time and part-time employees in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC. For the Year, the total staff cost including Directors’ emoluments
amounted to approximately HK$225.2 million (2017: HK$230.8 million).
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Executive Directors

Dr. IP, Chun Heng, Wilson, aged 61, is the chairman of the
Board, the chief executive officer of the Company and an executive
Director. He is also a member of the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Dr. Ip together with Ms.
Chung Pui Wan founded the business of the Group in June 1991. Dr.
Ip has more than 41 years’ experience in running retail and service
business. Dr. Ip has received World Outstanding Chinese Award and
honorary doctorial degree from State Gleska University of California in
2007. Based on his solid experience in retail and wholesale industries,
he has successfully led the business of the Group grow tremendously
since 1996. Dr. Ip is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
formulation of corporate policies of the Group. He is also a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Ip had been the
executive director of Town Health International Medical Group Limited,
which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from 2015 to
2016. Dr. Ip is the spouse of Ms. Chung Pui Wan, the vice-chairman
of the Board and an executive Director, and the brother of Mr. Yip
Kwok Li, an executive Director.

Ms. CHUNG, Pui Wan, aged 58, is the vice-chairman of the Board
and an executive Director. Ms. Chung has more than 36 years’
experience in sales and marketing of cosmetic products. Before the
Group was founded in 1991, Ms. Chung had worked for several
cosmetic companies in the sales and marketing of branded cosmetic
products for over 5 years. With her sales promotion technique and in-
depth product knowledge in cosmetics, Ms. Chung has significant
contribution to the Group’s product innovation and marketing
strategy. Ms. Chung is responsible for the overall sales and marketing
operations management. She is also a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chung is the spouse of Dr. Ip Chun
Heng, Wilson, the chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer of
the Company and an executive Director.

Mr. CHEN, Jianwen, aged 56, is the vice-chairman of the Board and
an executive Director. Mr. Chen is a seasoned merchant in various
businesses and is mainly responsible for the business development
of the Company. He is currently the chairman of Haifu International
Finance Holding Group Ltd (“Haifu”) and has diverse investments in
Mainland China including commercial real estate, natural resources
and manufacturing businesses. He is also a justice of the peace of the
Special Administrative Region of Hong Kong (the “HKSAR”), a member
of the Election Committee of the HKSAR, a convenor of Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Regional Committee (Hong Kong Region) of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the honorary president
of Hong Kong Shine Tak Foundation, the honorary manager of Nan
Tien Institute (Australia) and the founding vice-chairman of Chinese
Academy of Governance (HK) Industrial and Commercial Professionals
Alumni Association. He is also a director of five subsidiaries of the
Company.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. YIP, Kwok Li, aged 59, is an executive Director. Mr. Yip has
more than 26 years’ experience in logistics, business development,
and sales operation in Hong Kong and the PRC, within which, he
had worked for a custom jewelry company in developing business
operation in Hong Kong and had worked for a PRC company for an
aggregate of 5 years. He is responsible for managing and supervising
the sales forces and monitoring the Group’s operation of the retail
outlets. Mr. Yip is also in charge of the purchasing operations of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 1998. Mr. Yip is also a director of
two subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yip is the brother of Dr. Ip Chun
Heng, Wilson, the chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer of
the Company and an executive Director.

Mr. WAN Yim Keung, Daniel, aged 60, is an executive Director and
is mainly responsible for the business development of the Company.
Mr. Wan obtained his bachelor degree in business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and his master degree in
business administration from the University of Wales. Mr. Wan is a
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and also a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Wan
has extensive experience in the financial industry with over 23 years in
senior management position. He is currently the chief executive officer
of Haifu. Prior to joining Haifu, he was the managing director and
chief financial officer of Shui On Land Ltd. and the general manager
and group chief financial officer of The Bank of East Asia, Ltd. Both
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is
also a director of two subsidiaries of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG, Chi Wai, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director. He is also the chairman of the audit committee and a member
of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He currently also serves as an independent non-executive
director for Kin Yat Holdings Limited and Arts Optical International
Holdings Limited and C & D International Investment Group Limited,
all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He is currently the chairman of the audit committee of Arts Optical
International Holdings Limited and C & D International Investment
Group Limited and the chairman of the nomination committee of Kin
Yat Holdings Limited. Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive
director of China Ludao Technology Company Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, until his resignation
in November 2016. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in social
science from and was awarded a post-graduate certificate in laws by
the University of Hong Kong in 1988 and 1993, respectively. He is a
practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong and an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. He has 31 years of experience in the accountancy profession.
Other than his qualification of private practice in accounting, he is
working in a law firm as an assistant solicitor.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. CHOW, Ho Ming, aged 57, is an independent non-executive
Director. He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee
and a member of the audit committee of the Company. Dr. Chow
obtained his bachelor of medicine and bachelor of surgery from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1988, diploma of child health from
Royal College of Surgeon in Ireland in 1990 and master of science
in corporate governance and directorship from Hong Kong Baptist
University in 2006. Dr. Chow has been engaged in private practice
for more than 29 years. He is a member of a number of medical
associations. Dr. Chow had been the honorary clinical lecturer/
tutor of The University of Hong Kong and The Chinese University
of Hong Kong respectively and a member of Medical and Health
Services Subcommittee of Shatin District Board. Currently, Dr. Chow
is the honorary clinical assistant professor in Family Medicine at The
University of Hong Kong, honorary clinical tutor in Family Medicine at
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, founding honorary consultant of
Hong Kong Single Parent Association and the director and chairman
of Hang Lam Medical Centre Limited.

Mr. LO, Hang Fong, aged 55, is an independent non-executive
Director. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee and a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Lo graduated
from University of Bristol with a bachelor of law degree in 1986. He is
currently a partner of a law firm, Stevenson, Wong & Co. Mr. Lo has
been admitted as a solicitor to the High Court of Hong Kong since
1989. He has also admitted as a solicitor to the Supreme Court of
Singapore in 1995 and the Supreme Court of England and Wales in
1996. Mr. Lo had been the independent non-executive director of
Mainland Headwear Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange from 2005 to 2014 and Z-Obee Holdings
Limited (currently known as: Alpha Professional Holdings Limited), a
company listed on both the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited from 2010 to 2014.

Senior Management

Mr. CHEUNG, Ka Fai, aged 44, is the chief financial officer of the
Company and is responsible for the overall management of the
financial function of the Group. Mr. Cheung is a Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Cheung obtained his Bachelor
degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and his Master degree in business administration from the University
of Bradford. Mr. Cheung has more than 21 years’ experience in audit,
finance and business advisory, during which he worked for the Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu and various listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr.
Cheung is currently an independent non-executive director of Zall
Smart Commerce Group Ltd., which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. Throughout the Year, the
Company has complied with the code provisions prescribed in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in the Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except for the deviation from the code
provision A.2.1 which is explained in the following relevant paragraph.

Code Provision A.2.1

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of the chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Please refer to the
paragraph under “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

The Board considered that Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson has in-depth
knowledge and experience in the retails sales and cosmetic product
market and is the most appropriate person. Notwithstanding the
above, the Board will review the current structure from time to time.
When at the appropriate time and if candidate with suitable leadership,
knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within or outside
the Group, the Company may make necessary arrangements.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Year.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board of Directors

During the Year, the Board comprises eight Directors, of whom five are
executive Directors, namely Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson, Ms. Chung Pui
Wan, Mr. Chen Jianwen, Mr. Yip Kwok Li and Mr. Wan Yim Keung,
Daniel; and three are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Chi Wai, Dr. Chow Ho Ming and Mr. Lo Hang Fong. Each of the
Directors’ biographical details is set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Composition of the Board of Directors (continued)

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group. To the best knowledge of the Company, there
is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among members of the Board save as Ms. Chung Pui Wan and Mr.
Yip Kwok Li is the spouse and brother of Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson,
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company, respectively. In the Board’s opinion, these relationships
do not affect the Directors’ independent judgement and integrity in
executing their roles and responsibilities. All executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience and
expertise to the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the Year, Dr.
Ip Chun Heng, Wilson is both the chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company.

The Board considered that Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson has in-depth
knowledge and experience in the retail sales and cosmetics market
and is the most appropriate person as the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company. Notwithstanding the above, the
Board will review the current structure from time to time. When at the
appropriate time and if candidate with suitable leadership, knowledge,
skills and experience can be identified within or outside the Group, the
Company may make necessary arrangements.

Functions of the Board of Directors

The Company is governed by the Board which is responsible for
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board is accountable to
Shareholders for the development of the Group with the goal of
maximising long-term shareholders’ value, while balancing broader
stakeholders’ interests.

The Board is also responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, overseeing the Group’s businesses and evaluating the
performance of the Group. Besides, the Board also focuses on overall
strategic development of the Group and its policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Functions of the Board of Directors (continued)

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to executive
Directors and management of the Company with department heads
responsible for different aspects of the business/functions, while
reserving certain key matters in making strategic decision for its
approval. When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to management, it has given clear directions
as to the powers of management, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances where management shall report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
there are three independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Wong Chi Wai has appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management expertise
as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based on
such confirmation, considers that Mr. Wong Chi Wai, Dr. Chow Ho
Ming and Mr. Lo Hang Fong are independent.

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Each of the executive Directors (except Mr. Chen Jianwen and
Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel, who has not entered into a service
contract with the Company) has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of two years commencing from 1 July
2003, and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year
commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019, which can be
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s notice in
writing.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles
of Association”), all Directors (including executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors.

During the Year, all Directors received regular briefings and updates
on the Group’s business, operations, risk management and corporate
governance matters. Materials on new or changes to the legal and
regulatory environments applicable to the Group were provided to the
Directors. The Company had arranged an in-house training in August
2018 to Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson, Ms. Chung Pui Wan, Mr. Chen
Jianwen, Mr. Yip Kwok Li, Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel, Mr. Wong
Chi Wai, Dr. Chow Ho Ming and Mr. Lo Hang Fong. All Directors are
required to provide the Company with his or her training record.

A summary of training received by the Directors for the Year according
to the records provided by the Directors is as follows:

Reading

Training materials

organised by updating on

professional new rules and

organizations regulations

MEERE

BHEME BHFBRAGIR

=y Name of Directors SRzl # BBy ARt

HITES Executive Directors

EE=iEL Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson v/ v/

EMEL+ Ms. Chung Pui Wan v/ v/

FRIE S S Mr. Chen Jianwen v/ /

R KL Mr. Yip Kwok Li v v

FlEm & Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel v v
BIAKHTES Independent non-executive Directors

B A A Mr. Wong Chi Wai v/ v/

AR E Dr. Chow Ho Ming v/ v/

BIEREE Mr. Lo Hang Fong v v/
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Board meets at least four times a year regularly, and the Board
will also meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on a
particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of agenda
items for decision in advance of each Board meeting. The company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is responsible
for distributing detailed documents to the Directors prior to the Board
meetings to ensure that the Directors are able to make informed
decisions regarding the matters discussed in the Board meetings
so that they may receive accurate, timely and clear information. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters. The Company Secretary is also responsible
for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are observed
and providing opinions to the Board on matters in relation to the
compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings.

Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or her duties,
he or she may take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense. The Directors are encouraged to update their skills,
knowledge and familiarity with the Group through their initial induction,
ongoing participation in Board and committee meetings, and through
meeting with key members of the management.

During the Year, four regular Board meetings were held. The
attendance records for the Directors’ meetings are set out below:

BEECHER
BITEE Executive Directors Directors’ Attendance
BERsEHLT Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson 4/4
EMELZ L Ms. Chung Pui Wan 3/4
RR {2 S ST A Mr. Chen Jianwen 4/4
HEEFEE Mr. Yip Kwok Li 4/4
FER T E Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel 4/4
BUIHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
B A A Mr. Wong Chi Wai 4/4
G Dr. Chow Ho Ming 4/4
BlEREE Mr. Lo Hang Fong 4/4
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
General Meeting
During the Year, the Company convened one general meeting, which

was the annual general meeting held on 25 May 2018. The attendance
record is set out below:

BEECHER
BITEE Executive Directors Directors’ Attendance
ElR=EHLT Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson 1/1
BmEL LT Ms. Chung Pui Wan 0/1
RER i S ST A Mr. Chen Jianwen 0/1
R4 Mr. Yip Kwok Li 1/1
FIER & Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel 1/1
BUHBITEE Independent Non-executive Directors
e Mr. Wong Chi Wai 1/1
VSRR E Dr. Chow Ho Ming 1/1
BERSE Mr. Lo Hang Fong 1/1
EEeZEY Board Committees
ERZEEE Audit Committee

ARRER-_ZEZ=FAT+TLAKILE
ZEREg([ZE%%EBg))  HEMBESR
BETERERE AT 2GR - BAT - &]
REEEREBE =B UINTESEE
Mkt FEERBLERSERLE -&
METEREVZBEEIR - BERZES
BRI - AR E R RAREE R
MR - REBNAFE 2 EEZTR
MHEBRRCABTREZBESEHNMAL QT
2B ZHENE R XS ETEN E AP EA

—E-NFEER

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
on 17 June 2003 with written terms of reference no less exacting
terms than the CG Code. At present, members of the Audit Committee
comprise three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong
Chi Wai, Dr. Chow Ho Ming and Mr. Lo Hang Fong. Mr. Wong Chi
Wai is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the effectiveness of both external audit and risk management
and internal control systems. The audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and audited by the independent auditor of the Company,
RSM Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee acts as an important link between the Board
and the Company’s auditor in matters within the scope of the Group’s
audit. The duties of the Audit Committee are to review and discuss
on the effectiveness of external audit, risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, interim report and to provide advice and comments to the
Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee
meets regularly with the management and the external auditor to
discuss the risk management and internal control systems, financial
reporting system, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group. During the Year, four meetings were held to review,
among others, the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2018 with the recommendations to the
Board for approval; and has reviewed the accounting principles and
policies adopted by the Group and its systems of risk management
and internal control. The attendance records for the Audit Committee
meetings are set out below:

REZHER
ERZEERS Members of the Audit Committee Members’ Attendance
=AML E Mr. Wong Chi Wai 4/4
VSRR Dr. Chow Ho Ming 4/4
BERLE Mr. Lo Hang Fong 4/4
FMEESE Remuneration Committee

ARRER_ZTTEAFAATRARILH
MEZBe((FMEZEg])  HEHBES
B TEREREATAZIER - HFERE
CLERBTEEHNTEERAREERE
ZEMAS MIIFRTEFCHFHAES
SRHEBER -HMEFHZEEKER
SHEBFEAGHNE - FHEZEEKER
FBERRXMZHM - EFERMZERH R
B AEBEEMBALZERGELES
BERREFTMERE -
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The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 16 September 2005 with written
terms of reference no less exacting terms than the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility to
determine the remuneration packages of executive Directors and
senior management and makes recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors. No member of Remuneration
Committee should be involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee will consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, including
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chi Wai
and Dr. Chow Ho Ming, and the chairman of the Board, the chief
executive officer of the Company and the executive Director, namely
Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson. Dr. Chow Ho Ming is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. During the Year, two meetings were held
to review the remuneration packages of all the Directors and the
senior management. The attendance records for the Remuneration
Committee meetings are set out below:

REZHER
FHWESERS Members of the Remuneration Committee Members’ Attendance
G E Dr. Chow Ho Ming 2/2
2E=HLT Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson 2/2
| ST E Mr. Wong Chi Wai 2/2
REZEEY Nomination Committee

ARBER_FTRFNAATNEKRILE
#ZEBEg([RREBg])  HEZMBIESR
BETEREREATAZIER - REEE
SRERBREAZER XHERLEE
BEAARBCERERLBEEEANE -
EMNE=RE  UERZERFZE LI
HWTEZ 2B MRAEZSRMUEBER -
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The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) on 16 September 2005 with written terms of reference no
less exacting terms than the CG Code. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for nominating potential candidates for directorship based
on the candidates’ qualifications, business experience and suitability
to the Company, reviewing the nomination of the Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on such appointments and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee adopted the board diversity policy on 22
August 2013. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 14 December 2018 which sets out the nomination criteria
and procedures for the Company to select candidate(s) for possible
inclusion in the Board. The Nomination Policy could assist the
Company to achieve board diversity in the Company and enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance standard.

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such as the
qualifications, skills, integrity and experience will be taken into
consideration as a whole. In the case of independent non-executive
Directors, they must further satisfy the independence criteria set out
within Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Since the selection of candidates
should ensure that diversity remains a central feature of the Board, a
range of diverse perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, or professional experience would
be considered.

The process to identify potential candidates for the Board would be as
follows:

(1) identifying potential candidates, including recommendations
from the Board members, professional search firms and the
shareholders of the Company;

(2) evaluating the candidates based on the approved selection
criteria through methods such as reviewing the resume and
conducting the background checks;

(8) reviewing the profiles of the shortlisted candidates and interview
them; and

(4) making recommendations to the Board on the selected
candidates.

The Nomination Policy also includes the Board succession plan
to assess whether vacancies on the Board would be created or
expected due to the Directors’ resignation, retirement, death and other
circumstances and to identify candidates in advance if necessary. The
Nomination Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis.

Annual Report 2018



ERERRE(E)

ExeZ88(F)

REZEE(HA)

RAZESH=-HAKEMEANK  BEREE
VIFHITEFEMMA T ERGERTLEN
ERARRBEFEER  TRAHFRATE
EEETEL SERKLLERERLRZES
TFE - RAFE  EETMAGEARS
EReRE  RERAK - SHEBLIE
MITEF BN  URERIBILIEHR
TEFZRBEOANESTSRHEHERS
R RAZBEeERZBFECEHILT

BONJOUR

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, including
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chi
Wai and Mr. Lo Hang Fong and the chairman of the Board, the chief
executive officer of the Company and the executive Director, namely
Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson. Mr. Lo Hang Fong is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. During the Year, two meetings were held to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and make
recommendations to the Board relating to the renewal services of
independent non-executive Directors. The attendance records for the
Nomination Committee meetings are set out below:

REZHER
BEZESEERS Members of the Nomination Committee Members’ Attendance
BiEREAE Mr. Lo Hang Fong 2/2
BEe=igt Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson 2/2
= AE ST Mr. Wong Chi Wai 2/2
EERRBAE Corporate Governance Functions

EEeR_T——_F=ZA=-F+ /N \BHEHND
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(€ MmEARBEST LR 1457
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= o
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The terms of reference on corporate governance functions was
adopted by the Board on 28 March 2012. The Board is responsible for
performing the following corporate governance duties with its written
terms of reference:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the “Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report” as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board performed the above mentioned duties
accordingly.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Accountability and Audit

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements and
Financial Reporting

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Directors acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the accounts and presenting a balanced,
clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditor’s Remuneration

RSM Hong Kong has been appointed as the auditor of the Company
by Shareholders at the AGM. During the Year, an amount of totaling
HK$1,100,000 was payable to RSM Hong Kong for their audit services
and an amount of HK$151,250 was paid to RSM Hong Kong for
providing non-audit services, including taxation compliance services.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board
process, as well as communications among Board members, with
Shareholders and management. According to rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the Company Secretary, Ms. Cheng Wai Kam, Kennex has
taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the
Year.

Shareholders’ right
Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Shareholders’ right (continued)
Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”) on 28 March 2012. Under the
Policy, the Company’s information shall be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through general meetings, including annual
general meetings, the Company’s financial reports (interim reports and
annual reports), and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available. Any
such questions shall be first directed to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong
or the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two
Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong
Kong.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition for putting
forward a proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting shall be any number
of Shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
at the date of the requisition.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution(s) or circulating
any necessary statement, at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong in the case of:

()  a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meetings by
sending the written requisition to the Company’s head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The Company will verify the
requisition and upon confirming that the requisition is proper and in
order, the Board will proceed with necessary procedures.

33



BONJOUR

ERERRE(E)

REENRBRRAR

SEEQRPEBRRNMREEERIBH - @
KEERBRAZERN - At - EFF
RAEEZSHRERBEBRE - @@
KERBHELETRARBEAKRESE - O
B EeKENERERETEA - AL
BRI RIRAR R Z B JE MR REFE
TEERREEBERZBEA - ARIER
BERMRNEMcERAEH -

EEENEIBRRAHAEERBRTE L
EERERR  UYEBREFLFERRK
€ HEREARREZCHEEEER -

FR - ERAALREAED) -
REHE

Exen—_ T \FT_A+HBEMAK
EBR(TBERR]) - EFHATIRKKLIK
NARFREFKBENRERF - ARAE
EZBURS T ADKKE - BREHAE
A o ARFPBDIRHDRE RS R T (K
PR MRS - B AR BREZER
N RBURERNRE  MBEAREEE
ARERAEENEMERME - EFEH
BETEEIRRFAIRE - REHREEH®

a7 e

[ B B B % g BB B4R

EEeAEERIMERETARE RE
PR EES B IRFTRR AR R E RZE
VHFARERBEARNHAMEER
o ZEMHRT S EEEREERER
BiRm R - I {2 EEL T S E KSR AR ER A
SBRRRHEEMIIFBE HRE ©

EEeREERARANEREE KA
ERAELG o RRBBFRARR NEN B
NEE R E T K R ER B TR R AR B AR
TEH IRSBHEEGBAERERED -
ARFIEREINBERQR - UHBAREE
TR E KRB R TT o T OB LAY
it YEERET  HERNRELNERE
RYEENRER - NARERABREDN
MEPZRHRE - B IEABBEEERATE R
MBER -

RAFEE  EEETEEEATRIPTH
BRARREIR KA EREEN ST RIERX -

34

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Investor and Shareholder Relations

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with Shareholders and investors. Accordingly,
the Board and the Group’s senior management maintains close
communications with investors, analysts, fund managers and the
media by various channels including roadshows, individual interviews
and meetings. The Group specifically assigns Mr. Cheung Ka Fai, the
chief financial officer of the Company, being the contact person of
investor relations to respond the requests for information and queries
from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend Shareholders’
meetings to communicate with the Board or management of the
Company directly.

During the Year, there were no changes in the Articles of Association.
Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
on 14 December 2018 which sets out the appropriate procedure on
declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the Company.
The Company takes priority to distributing dividends in cash and
shares its profits with the shareholders of the Company. The dividend
distribution decision of the Company will depend on, among others,
the financial results, the current and future operations, liquidity and
capital requirements, financial condition and other factors as the Board
may deem relevant. The Board may also declare special dividends
from time to time. The Dividend Policy will be reviewed on a regular
basis.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the Group.
The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis. A review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s and its subsidiaries risk management and internal
control systems has been conducted annually and the systems are
considered to be effective and adequate. The Company has engaged
external professional firm to carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems, and has
procedures in place to keep information confidential and manage
actual or potential conflicts of interest. Stringent internal structures
have been designed to prevent the misuse of inside information and
avoid conflicts of interest.

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted
a review on both design and implementation effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues to the Board.

During the Year, the Group appointed Corporate Governance
Professionals Limited (“CGPL”) to:

e assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group through
a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover, improvements in
internal control and risk management measures as recommended by
CGPL to enhance the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board.
Based on the findings and recommendations of CGPL as well as the
comments of the Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal
control and risk management systems effective and adequate.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management framework
in 2016. While the Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective internal controls are maintained, management is
responsible for designing and implementing an internal control system
to manage all kinds of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board and
management to manage the risks of the Group effectively. The Board
receives regular reports through the Audit Committee that oversights
risk management and internal audit functions.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Principal Risks

During the Year, the following principal risks faced by the Group were
identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks, financial
risks and compliance risks.

Strategic Risks

Change in political and economic landscape, competitor landscape;
corporate strategy misalignment, reputation risk and risk of failure to
meet consumer’s expectation

Operational Risks

Risk of product liabilities, risk of poor customer services, risk of
technological breakdown, risk of purchasing/selling counterfeit
products and shoplifting risk and insufficient insurance for employee
compensation

Financial Risks

Liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and inflation risk

Compliance Risks

Risk of breach of labelling requirement, licensing requirement and risk
of change of rules and regulations in Hong Kong, Macau & PRC

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial risk controls for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, for maintaining proper accounting
records, and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to
achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors.
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BONJOUR

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Our Risk Control Mechanism (continued)

The Group maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified
major risks of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the
Audit Committee, and management with a profile of its major risks
and records of management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant
risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood of
occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register is
updated by management as the risk owners with addition of new risks
and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least annually, after
the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This review process
can ensure that the Group proactively manages the risks faced by it in
the sense that all risk owners have access to the risk register and are
aware of and alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that
they can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management on an
ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management framework
will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic management meeting
is held to update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management
is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of the daily
business operation processes in order to align risk management with
corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls and risk
management annually and further enhance the Group’s internal control
and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The
Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit function and
are of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform internal audit function
for the Group in order to meet its needs. Nevertheless, the Directors
will continue to review at least annually the need for an internal audit
function.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

This report delivers Bonjour’s significant environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) performances from 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2018 (the “Reporting Year”) as well as its long-term
commitment to ESG. In the Reporting Year, Bonjour mainly focused
on the its operation in Hong Kong, Macau and the People’s Republic
of China (“the PRC”). This report describes Bonjour’s progress in its
way towards creating sustainable values for its shareholders and other
stakeholders.

This report contains information for stakeholders to understand the
Group’s ESG practices and ESG performance in its daily operations in
Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.

In addition to internal factors such as organizational values, strategy
and core competency that contribute to sustainable development,
the Group has communicated with internal and external stakeholders
for the significant ESG issues concerned and considered the ESG
challenges reported by outsiders such as regulators, social watchdogs
and competitors to decide and prioritize the topics within this report.
The ESG issues have or may have a significant impact on:

e the Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC’s beauty product business;

° the global beauty and cosmetics market;

° the current or future environment or society in which we operate;

e our financial performance or operations; and/or
e our stakeholders’ assessments, decisions and actions.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Financial
data was extracted from or calculated based on Bonjour’s audited
annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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BONJOUR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Section A: Environmental

Bonjour aims at providing the best beauty and life-style products
and services to its customers, while contributing to environmental
protection and community development. Headquartered in Hong
Kong, as at 31 December 2018, Bonjour owns 35 retail stores in Hong
Kong, 3 in Macau and 1 in the Mainland China.

As one of our guiding principles, we strive to minimize the
environmental impacts from our operations. The culture of
environmental protection is widely adopted throughout every retail
store of the Group. Policies to continually improving our environmental
performance have been formulated and updated regularly.

For the Reporting Year, there was no material non-compliance issue
with relevant laws and regulations related to the environment.

Aspect A1: Emissions

We have implemented eco-friendly measures to reduce carbon
footprint in our business operations.

Emissions

The emission data discloses both the emissions of air pollutants and
greenhouse gases. Our emissions of air pollutants, which include
nitrogen oxides (“NOy”), Sulphur oxides (“SOy") and respiratory
suspended particles (“RSP”), are mainly generated by the usage of
motor vehicles for transportation of our products.

However, due to the limitation in data collection for the kilometres
travelled by the vehicles, as well as the units of fuel consumed by the
vehicles, the Group’s air emission generated by the usage of motor
vehicles was estimated by its daily vehicle travelling routes'.

We had recorded a total of 74,926 grams of air emissions generated
by our usage of motor vehicles, including approximately 68,114 grams
of NOx, 60 grams of SOy and 6,752 grams of RSP. Because of the
increased demand of logistics, there was an approximately 7% rise
in the total air emission data compared to last year2. Nonetheless,
our drivers had planned the transportation route beforehand so as
to reduce the travelling cost and, thus, the carbon emissions. We
will continue to strategize environmentally-friendly policies to alleviate
environmental impact.

1 By estimating the travelling distance based on the daily vehicle travelling routes. And estimate the units of fuel consumed
by the vehicles based the travelling distance data, using the “Transport — Energy Ultilization Index” issued by Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department at https://ecib.emsd.gov.hk/en/indicator_trp.htm.

1 F RS TRRBHM B — 2R HFEFRIZ | (434 Ahttps://ecib.emsd.gov.hk/en/indicator_trp.htm) @ 1RIEE B AETEIRGHE
FTEERERE - WIRMRTTH B BIR (L B )T FEaV R B AL -

2 Adjustment had been made on the air emissions for the year ended 31 December 2017 when compared with our last ESG
Report, because the estimation method of vehicle travelling distance was updated.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The greenhouse gas emissions by the Group are mainly released
from fossil fuel consumption, electricity consumptions, electricity used
for fresh watert and sewage processing®, and also methane gas
generation at landfill in Hong Kong due to disposal of paper waste. Our
operations produced approximately 4,119 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions during the Reporting Year, which approximately
98% was contributed from our electricity consumption. Our energy-
saving and environmental sustainability initiatives pay off in curbing
our total greenhouse emission by 30%#¢. In the years to come, we will
continue to explore strategies to support environmental conservation
in innovative ways.

Waste Management

As we are principally engaged in sales of beauty and health-care
products, there was no hazardous waste, which includes but not
limited to chemical wastes, clinical wastes and hazardous chemicals,
produced by the Group during the Reporting Year.

With decreasing availability of suitable land for landfills and increasing
environmental impacts of waste disposal, reducing the burden of
our daily operations on landfills becomes one of the objectives of the
Group.

The waste produced by the Group is mainly the paper waste, which
included the thermal paper rolls used in the cash register, and the
printing paper used in the office. The paper usage in the Reporting
Year was approximately 10,331 kg, which slightly increased by
approximately 2% when compared with last year?.

3 The carbon emission of China Light and Power (“CLP”) was 0.51 kg CO2e/ kWh; the carbon emission of Hong Kong Electric
was 0.79 kg CO2e/ kWh; and the carbon emission in Macau and Guangzhou were taken as 0.838 kg CO2e/ kWh and 0.554
kg CO2e/ kWh respectively for the year 2017. As until the issuance date, the emission factors for the year 2018 have not yet
been issued by the electricity companies, the 2017 emission factors were taken as the estimation of the 2018 factors.
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4 For fresh water processing, according to the 2016/17 Annual Report of Water Supplies Department, its unit electricity
consumption was 0.575 kWh/m3. Moreover, the emission per unit water supplied was disclosed as 0.27 kg CO2e/ m3 by
the Macao Water in 2016. As until the issuance date, there has been no updated data provided yet, the unit electricity
consumption in 2016/17 was taken as a reasonable estimation for the data in 2017 and 2018. And due to the limitation in
obtaining such information of Guangzhou, the emissions due to the Group’s operations in the PRC was calculated using

Hong Kong relevant factors.
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5 For sewage processing, as shown on the webpage of Drainage Services Department, its unit electricity consumption was 0.31
kWh/m?® in the year 2017/18. As until the issuance date, there has been no updated data provided yet, the unit electricity
consumption in 2017/18 was taken as a reasonable estimation for the data in 2018. And due to the limitation in obtaining
such information of Guangzhou and Macau, the emissions due to the Group’s operations in the PRC and Macau were

calculated using Hong Kong relevant factors.

5 MEKEEMS MEBBEEMTR  HR=Z—t — \FENBNFEEEAT KON TREE - EERETHE - HAEHN
ERFREEE - R _F—+ — \FHNEMNREEEEAY T — \FEENE G - AREEEREN RPN EREER
REERPE ORI ENBINE DA EERRRETHE

6 Adjustment has been made on the greenhouse gas emissions for the year ended 31 December 2017 when compared with
our last ESG Report, because the estimation method of the electricity usage, vehicle travelling distance, water and paper
consumption, as well as the carbon emission factor of electricity consumption were updated.

6 HERBEME—MHEE HEREARE  BE_Z—tF1+-AZ+—ALFENLZRRBENCELAZ  RARAE &
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7 Adjustment had been made on the amount of waste produced for the year ended 31 December 2017 when compared with
our last ESG Report, because the estimation method of paper usage was updated.
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BONJOUR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The rise in paper waste was attributable to the increased number of
total retail stores compared to last year. To cope with the increased
usage of paper-products, we have implemented the following
measures. At retail stores, we replaced our POS system, so to
reduce the size of paper used for all internal used invoices. In office,
we encouraged double-sided printing, and single-side-printed paper
was collected for re-use purpose. To push environmental protection
further, we engaged an external recycler to help recycle our paper
waste. During the Reporting Year, the paper waste recycled was
approximately 7,725 kg.

Aside from implementing green initiatives on business operation related
activities, we also aim at integrating environmental-friendly elements
into employees’ daily lives. Reusable tableware is provided in the
pantry to reduce wastage of discarded cardboard food containers and
tableware.

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

Green and low-carbon is the only way to sustainable development
of our society. The Group has been committed to becoming a
resource-saving and environment-friendly enterprise through actively
strengthening energy-saving capacity.

Electricity Consumptions

The total electricity consumption for the Reporting Year was
approximately 7,194 MWh, which decreased by approximately 25%
when compared with last year®. During the Reporting Year, our Hong
Kong retail stores, Macau retail stores, PRC retail store and office
have contributed to approximately 77%, 7%, 2% and 14% of our total
electricity consumption respectively.

Qur electricity consumption intensity, which was presented as
electricity consumption by our retail stores per square feet of our
retail store area, was approximately 68 kWh per ft2. When compared
to 85 kWh per ft2 in last year, the slightly rise was mainly because
of our minor reduction in retail store area during the Reporting Year,
we believe that our consistent efforts had successfully reduced the
electricity consumption of branches.

8 Due to the limitation of complexity, for some period in which some retail stores could not provide the relevant electricity bills,
estimation of electricity usage had been made based on its average electricity usage during the year.

8 RWMIREMR - MOTEENDHBHEARERMEBAEERSE - WASENMEADERNEFRATHRES -

9 Adjustment has been made on the electricity consumption for the year ended 31 December 2017 when compared with our
last ESG Report, because the estimation method of the electricity usage was updated.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group has put energy conservation practices in place, and
continued to upgrade the hardware into more energy efficient options,
such as LED lighting and appliances with grade 1 energy label. We are
committed to monitoring consistently on the electricity consumption of
our office and retail stores in different regions. And we would continue
to strive for reducing our electricity consumption in the coming years.

Water Consumption®

Although about 70% of the Earth’s surface is water, only around 3%
of the total global water is freshwater, which can support all the living
species in the world. The precious water resources are what the
Group aims to save.

Although our business is not water intensive, we are still committed
to reducing our water consumption. Our water consumption was
approximately 16,694 m® during the Reporting Year. With our water
saving policies, our water consumption has dropped by approximately
28% when compared to the figure in the Year 2017.

Our water consumption intensity, which was calculated as our water
consumption in the retail stores divided by the total retail store area,
was 0.17 m?® per ft? during the Reporting Year. Our consistent efforts
have also reduced our water consumption intensity by around 22%.

Packaging Materials

The packaging materials used by the Group are mainly the bagging
materials. 770,600 bags were used in our operation during the
Reporting Year, which has increased by approximately 10% when
compared with last year due to the expanded number of retail stores.

Aspect A3: The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group believes that corporate development should not come at
the expense of the environment. All the above measures contributed to
the success we achieved today. Growing business without depleting
natural resources can only be sustained when all parties, including
suppliers, customers, and different stakeholders, work hand in hand
towards the goal. We would continue to work harder reducing our
adverse impact on the environment.

10 Adjustment had been made on water consumption for the year ended 31 December 2017 when compared with last year ESG
Report, because the estimation method of the water consumption was updated.
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BONJOUR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Section B: Social
Aspect B1: Employment
Workplace

Our success lies in the devotion of our talented and passionate
professional teams. Our inclusive culture has shaped our Group as
a second home for all employees. It all comes down to the happy
working environment, competitive package and fringe benefits, which
these help to retain and attract our employees. Our employee benefits
include but not limited to medical insurance, employee insurance, staff
discount, etc. We also abide with the Labour Department and bought
insurance that covers all employees.

Employees are eligible for promotion upon satisfactory performance.
All the effort adds up to the healthy monthly average turnover rate of
5% amid the high turnover trend in the retailing industry. Through the
systematic management approach, we successfully kept the turnover
rate of middle management level at 3% while that of top management
at 2% for the Reporting Year. Thus, we can preserve the hierarchy
structure and the core values of the Group.

Employee Facilities

Family responsibilities are much respected and so we hope to create
the most family-friendly working environment that female employees
can enjoy. Parents are welcomed to take maternity leaves and
paternity leaves to take care of the new born babies. Indeed, we built
a nursery room in the office to allow privacy for breastfeeding mothers.

We advocate the idea of healthy workforce, so we opened staff
canteen to provide a comfy environment for employees to enjoy meal
together.

We believe that having fun is one of the most important benefits in
our Group. By launching a series of team building events and social
gathering events, such as Christmas Party, Annual Dinner, we aim
to help employees to achieve work life balance and to establish the
employees’ sense of belonging to the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Employee Indicators

As at 31 December 2018, there was a total number of 853 staff
employed by the Group in Hong Kong, Macau and PRC, in which,
most of the employees based in Hong Kong. Promoting non-
discrimination in the workplace is of the utmost importance, so the
only considerations of hiring are based on the ground of capability and
integrity. Female employees comprise of 81% of our total workforce as
at 31 December 2018. Guided by the non-discrimination principle, we
offer same opportunities to all employees regardless of their age.

Employees who work for the Group for 3 years or above account
for 55% of the total employee, which it indicates that most of the
employees are loyal to the Group. In the near future, we will step
up the efforts to enhance employee engagement, so as to retain
quality employees and to reduce the cost with respect to recruitment,
onboarding and training.

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

A detailed escape route and layout of the office were posted in the
noticeable area to prepare employees for the emergency. Our office
is also well equipped with adequate fire-fighting equipment in case
of fire. The Group also conducts regular fire inspection to prevent
blockage of escape route and ensures equipment in perfect condition.
All the above facilities and measures are in place to mitigate the risk of
hazardous disaster.

Employees may sometimes have to lift up heavy products, in which
accidents might occur. In light of that, supervisors give tips on how
to lift products in the most appropriate gesture. Besides, the Group
ensures the workplace is free from dangerous condition, such as
removing spilled liquids and debris.

In case of emergency, employees can use the first aid box in pantry
for immediate and temporary medical assistance.

During the Reporting Year, there were 7 reported cases of work

injuries with 889.5 labor hours lost. We will continue to strive for a
healthy and safe workplace for our staff.

Annual Report 2018
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BONJOUR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Aspect B3: Development and Training

A structured training and development approach has been established
to ensure that employees have received consistent training so as to
equip them with the skills required at work. All employees receive on-
job training in the first 3 day of work, and a briefing session for around
15 minutes before commencement of work every day. Especially
in the retailing industry, customers rely heavily on the advice given
by our beauty advisors to pick the product. As such, the training
encompasses a wide spectrum of topics, namely product knowledge,
professional skincare and makeup knowledge, communication skills, to
ensure all new joiners are able to deliver excellent customer services.

We cordially invite customers to give comment on our customer
service. Working on the information and comment gathered, we
specifically integrate these comments and elements into the daily
briefing session.

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

We fully comply with labour laws and relevant legislations that prohibits
child labour and forced labour. Before joining our Group, candidates
are required to present their identification documents to prove that
they have already reached the legal working age. Forced labour are
also prohibited in our Group and in the factory. Not only we abide with
the regulations, we also monitor our suppliers to ensure that no cases
of child labour or forced labour occurred.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

Despite monitoring internal organizational structure, the Group also
extend its human rights commitment to its supply chain.

At Bonjour, customer service and product quality are at the heart of
our mission. Not only do we work with brands that help people feel
safe and good, we also expand the product portfolio constantly to
enable our customers to pick the product that best suit their needs.

We cooperate with worldwide premium suppliers from all over the
world, e.g. Korea, Japan, Australia, United States and China. During
the supplier selection process, we have set a high standard and
several assessment criteria, in terms of reliability, product safety,
product quality and compliance with the social and environmental
standards. Most of the suppliers have already obtained ISO certificate,
which depicts that the suppliers have fulfilled the internationally
recognized standard. It is worthy to note that all of our suppliers are
refrained from animal testing.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Qur purchase department strictly monitors the performance
of suppliers and conducts assessment annually based on the
abovementioned assessment criteria. Underperforming suppliers
will be excluded in our approved vendor list instantly. The manager
will regularly visit suppliers’ factories to inspect and detect any
misconducts.

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

All our products comply with the requirements stipulated in the relevant
laws in Hong Kong, such as Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance (Cap.
456), Food and Drugs (Composition and Labelling) Regulations (Cap.
132W), etc. All defects will be discarded or sent back to suppliers. We
regularly review and update our quality control standards to comply
with the latest laws and regulations.

Before the launch of product, we conduct lab test to check its
ingredients to ensure that it is safe for every customer. We detect
potential allergic reaction and clearly stick the warning label to alert
the customers. Furthermore, we strongly forbid pirated goods and
counterfeits goods to serve the best interests of customers. We are
glad to announce that, in 2018, there was no major dispute regarding
product quality.

Compliant Channel

We pledge to provide efficient and excellent services to maximize
customers value. Customer opinions and feedback help us strive
service excellency and drive our continuous improvement. Customers
can feel free to express their opinion through various channels,
including its online platform, emails and telephone call. Our customer
service department is required to respond to enquiries in a timely
manner and follow up the cases. All complaints received will be
addressed and under reasonable situation, we offer refund or return
options to customer. In 2018, we received on average 14.2 cases of
complaints and enquiries every month.

Annual Report 2018
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BONJOUR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Protecting Customers’ data

To comply with all the provisions of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, only authorized staff will be able to assess customers’
data for business development purpose. Employees will be strictly
penalized if they violate the above code of conduct. We regularly
update our computer system to avoid any possible hackers’ activities.
In the Reporting Year, we have not received any significant cases of
unauthorized use or access of customers’ privacy information.

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

Our Group has zero tolerance of anti-corruption and bribery. We
regularly invite ICAC to lecture our employees on anti-corruption
education, to work hand in hand to combat the issue. Our code of
conduct also suggests that employees would be fired under this
severe misconduct.

Whistleblowing Policy and Communication Channel

Whistleblowing policy is in place for employees to report suspected
misconduct of their colleagues, subordinates, senior management
or even suppliers. Employees are welcome to express their concern
through face-to-face, email or telephone. Our management will review
case by case and take follow up actions to investigate on every single
possible misconduct case.

Aside from that, we also encourage and respect every constructive
feedback from our employees to enhance the operations of our Group.
Meetings are held regularly for employees to speak out their minds.

Aspect B8: Community Investment

We realize that we can make a huge impact on the world’s social,
environmental and economic issues. Enthusiastic about youth
development, healthcare services and poverty alleviation, we actively
participated and donated HK$1,274,078 to support various charity
organizations such as Yan Chai Hospital, Chi Heng Foundation and
Shine Tak Foundation to give a helping hand to the needy.
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Directors’ Report

The Board presents this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the retail and wholesale of
beauty and health-care products in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the
sections of Five-Year Financial and Operational Summary, Chairman’s
Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis, Environmental,
Social and Governance Report and the paragraphs below.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) for the disclosure of information and
corporate governance. The Group also complies with the requirements
of Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational
safety for the interest of employees of the Group. No important event
affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the Financial Year.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the Group.

Global Economic Conditions

The global economic condition has been weaker than expected.
Downside risks have been increased since there is slowing growth in
emerging markets. The continuing adverse economic conditions may
affect the results of operations and financial performance of the Group
adversely.

To address economic uncertainties, the Group pursues steady
earnings growth by strengthening product portfolio, enhancing in-store
promotion, adopting careful cautious network diversification plan on
points of sales, intensifying cost controlling measures and exploring
business diversification opportunities.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the regulatory
authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and requirements may
lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of business operation
by the authorities. The Group closely monitors changes in government
policies, regulations and markets as well as conducting studies to
assess the impact of such changes.

Annual Report 2018
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BONJOUR

Directors’ Report (continued)

Key Risk Factors (continued)
Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
Employees

The Group recognizes the accomplishment of our employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs. The
Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees. No
strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents are found in
the Year.

More than a half of our employees have been serving our Group for
more than three years. As an employee-oriented corporate, various
benefits are given to our employees to boost their morale. Employees
are entitled to annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave, paternity
leave and statutory holidays. Salaries of employees are maintained at
competitive levels while bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis.
Other employee benefits include mandatory provident fund, statutory
and medical insurance and sales commission. The total employee
benefit expenses of the Group amounted to HK$114.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group commits to managing its business without undue influence
and has regarded honesty, integrity and fairness as its core values.
All directors and employees are strictly prohibited from exercising
authority, making influenced decisions and actions or gaining access
to the Group’s assets and information through their employment in the
Group to achieve private and personal gain. Disciplinary action would
be taken if an employee has committed an act of serious misconduct.
Directors and officers liability insurance is in place to protect the
Group’s interest in case of any wrongful acts of employees.

Employees’ performance review and appraisal is conducted annually.
Remuneration and promotion decisions are made according to
employees’ performance appraisal results, so as to reward and
encourage positive behaviour of employees. A structured training and
development approach has been established to ensure that employees
receive consistent training to suit business needs and help improve
their knowledge and skill, as well as building their career in our Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Key Risk Factors (continued)
Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
Customers

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels, including usage of business intelligence
to understand customer trends and needs and regular analyze on
customer feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests
and checks to ensure that only quality products are offered to the
customers.

Most of our customers are retail customers which represented
approximately 95.4% of our total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018. As wholesale customers usually make purchase
in bulk, they are given a discount to the retail price offered at the
outlets. We do not enter into any long-term sales agreements with
our wholesale customers. As at the end of the Year, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 1.3%. We have maintained
long-term well-established business relationship with our customers,
amongst which three of them have more than ten years of business
relationship with us as at the date of this report. Out of our five largest
customers for the Year, four of them are Independent Third Parties
while one is our related companies, namely Bonjour Beauty Limited
of which our executive Directors Mr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson and Ms.
Chung Pui Wan are the beneficiary owners of the company (For
details, please see “Related Party Transactions” on page 166).

All of our retail sales at our retail outlets are settled in cash, by smart
card, credit card or mobile digital payment. Our wholesale customers
usually settle their purchases in cash upon delivery. However, as
determined by the management on a case by case basis, open credit
terms with a maximum limit of HK$1.0 million of 30 days to 90 days
may be granted to established customers with satisfactory payment
records and creditworthiness. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
credit sales accounted for approximately 1.8% of our total sales. Our
Directors consider that the credit policy adopted by us is prudent.
During the Year, the approximate percentage of sales settled by cash
payments and non-cash payments are 27.2% and 72.8% respectively.
Details of the trade receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2018
are set out in Note 21 to the financial statements. Up to the date of
this report, 77.0% of the trade receivables from the major customers
has been settled.
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BONJOUR

Directors’ Report (continued)

Key Risk Factors (continued)

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
(continued)

Customers (continued)

During the Reporting Year, we did not encounter any material sales
returns from our customers. It is our policy that returned goods can
be refunded or exchanged for other products after purchase at our
retail outlets and upon receipt from online purchase subject to certain
conditions within 30 days and 7 days respectively.

Suppliers

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. The
departments work closely to make sure the tendering and procurement
process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.

We source our products from our selected local and overseas
distributors, manufacturers and traders of which more than half of
our products are sourced from local suppliers and the rest are from
overseas including Japan, Korea, Switzerland, France, Thailand and
the PRC etc. We purchase our products mainly from authorised
distributors, directly from manufacturers and some supplied by
independent traders. We have never placed excessive reliance on any
one of our suppliers and our Directors anticipate that there will not be
any supply problem in the foreseeable future. Our five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 19% of our total purchase during the
Year. Four of them have more than 10 years of business relationship
with us as at the date of this report.

QOur yearly product research and development plan will be reviewed
and modified seasonally to catch up with the fast-moving trend
and market situation if necessary. In order for us to cooperate with
good reputation partners, we have adopted supplier selection policy.
We only procure our products from our list of selected suppliers.
In selecting our suppliers, we assess on, and take into account,
factors in various aspects, including quality of their products, price
rate, popularity of their cosmetic and related products, lead time,
trading terms, advertising and promotion support and credibility of the
supplier.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Key Risk Factors (continued)

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
(continued)

Suppliers (continued)

Given the great variety of our products sold, we have not relied on any
single brand or any particular supplier for the provision of the Group’s
products. Our Directors consider any failure of our Group to purchase
from a particular supplier would not have any material impact on our
business.

Our overseas suppliers generally request us to pay 30% to 50%
deposit of the order sum before delivery of our products and settle the
remaining balance before or after the product arrival depending on the
sales terms. For our local suppliers, the credit period may vary from
30 to 120 days. We generally make our payments within the credit
terms by means of telegraphic transfer, letter of credit or cheque.
Details of the trade payables of the Group as at 31 December 2018
are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements. Up to the date of
this report, 100.0% of the trade payables to the major suppliers as at
31 December 2018 has been settled.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any significant
disputes with our major suppliers.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 83 to 84.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
Year.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
20 May 2019 to Friday, 24 May 2019, both days inclusive, during the
period no transfer of shares will be registered. The holders of shares
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Friday, 24 May 2019 will be entitled to attend and vote at the
AGM. In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming AGM, all transfer of shares, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms, must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem
Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 17 May 2019.
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BONJOUR

Directors’ Report (continued)

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 2.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
on pages 145 to 146.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 161 to 162 and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 87 respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, share
premium, share-based payment reserve and retained profits of the
Company are distributable to the Shareholders. As at 31 December
2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders amounted in total to approximately HK$291,889,000
(2017: HK$292,001,000).

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by reportable
segments is set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements
on page 136.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, and approved by the Board, as authorised
by the Shareholders in the AGM, having regard to their time
commitment and responsibilities, the salaries paid by comparable
companies, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration. No Directors are
involved in deciding their own remuneration.

The Group offers comparative remuneration package, including
medical and retirement benefits, to eligible employees. Apart from
basic salary, executive Directors and employees are eligible to receive
a discretionary bonus taking into account of the factors such as
market conditions as well as corporate and individual’s performance
during the Year.

The Company has also adopted share option schemes as an incentive
to the Directors, eligible employees and consultants, details of the
schemes are set out in this “Directors’ Report” under the heading
“Share Option”.

Emoluments of Directors, Five Highest Paid Individuals and Senior
Management

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, the five highest paid

individuals and the senior management of the Group are set out in
Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 143.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Equity-linked agreement

Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during the Year or
subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below:

Share Option

Terminated Scheme

Share options are granted to the Directors, executives and
employees of the Company under the share option scheme
approved by a resolution in writing passed by the sole
Shareholder on 17 June 2003 and was terminated by the
Shareholders on 27 May 2009 (the “Terminated Scheme”).

Details of the Terminated Scheme are as follows:

(A)

(B)

(€

Purpose

The purpose of the Terminated Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible and effective means of incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to selected Participants (as defined in note (B)).

Who May Join

The Board may, at their absolute discretion, invite any
person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants (“Participant”), to take up options to subscribe
for shares:

() any employee holding salaried office or employment
under a contract with the Company, any of its holding
companies, any of their respective subsidiaries and any
entity in which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
holds any equity interest (“Eligible Entity”); and

(i) any executive Directors and non-executive Directors of
any Eligible Entity.

The Board may offer to grant an option (“Option”) to any
Participant to subscribe for such number of shares at the
option price as the Board may determine, subject always to
any limits and restrictions specified in the Listing Rules.

Payment On Acceptance of Option Offer
A Participant shall pay the Company HK$1 for the grant of

an Option on acceptance of an option offer within 28 days
after the offer date (the “Offer Date”).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

Terminated Scheme (continued)

(D) Option Price

(E)

The option price will be determined by the Board and
notified to an Option-holder. The minimum option price shall
not be less than the higher of:

(M

(i

(i)

the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the Offer Date;

the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days (on which the Stock Exchange is
open for business of dealing in securities) immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and

the nominal value of the shares.

Maximum Number of Shares Subject to the Terminated
Scheme

(i)

(it

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all Options to be granted under the
Terminated Scheme and any options to be granted
under any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at upon completion of
the share offer and the capitalisation issue. Options
lapsed or cancelled in accordance with the terms of the
Terminated Scheme, or any other schemes will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the 10% limit.

With the approval of the Shareholders, the Board may
“refresh” the 10% limit provided that the total number
of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
Options to be granted under the Terminated Scheme
and any other schemes under the limit as “refreshed”
shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date
on which the Shareholders approve the “refreshed”
limit.

Options previously granted under the Terminated
Scheme and any other schemes (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the relevant scheme, or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit
as “refreshed”.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

I. Terminated Scheme (continued)

(E) Maximum Number of Shares Subject to the Terminated

(F)

Scheme (continued)

(i) Subject to the relevant limits as stated in the
Terminated Scheme, the Board may, with the approval
of the Shareholders, grant Options in excess of the
10% limit to Participants specifically identified before
Shareholders’ approval is sought. In such situation,
the Company will send a circular to the Shareholders’
containing a generic description of the specified
Participants who may be granted such Options, the
number and terms of such Options to be granted and
the purpose of granting such Options to the specified
Participants with an explanation of how the terms of the
Options will serve the purpose.

(iv)  The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Terminated Scheme and any
other schemes shall not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. No Options may be granted
under the Terminated Scheme and any other schemes
if this will result in the limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Terminated Scheme is 134,640,000 shares, representing
approximately 3.95% of the issued share of the Company as
at the date of this report.

Time of Exercise of Options

Subject to the provisions as stated in the Terminated
Scheme, an Option under the Terminated Scheme which
is vested and has not lapsed may be exercised at any time
during such period notified by the Board as not exceeding
10 years from the Offer Date. The exercise of Options may
also be subject to any conditions imposed by the Board at
the time of offer.

Annual Report 2018



-G

BREGE)

BRIEFHEI(E)

(G) BB ZHR

ERIEET 8 85 A HIEFH109F
NEREER(EATLEZSIR
BEEMMRAITEEMK EE &L
sHE) - RERERE - A8
THEROERE SRIEAEZ
EEXADREBR N - HELA10FFH]
BIEN IR S PARS O T ik
TTEM & BR (% FBRE
A R10F HIE S 2 R IRIE E T AR
AITTfE) - KAIRBEE K IEETE
R 2 ETTIE -

ExgAREEECRLAE
AR EREETAEEDR
LEETE)

et &l

RIETZNFERA-++H  ARAF
REREREARE F@iB—ARER - UK
MR R I ([ 35t 8l)) - &6
AR - RIEBE AR EIRE 2
RITEEREEEE N WREREB
% - AIARIRE AR IEET BB ETT(E o

(1) B#

HMEtBlE ERFARER THE
ESEEBRE  UsEheFE
WERKNEBEL AR - ¥t
BATSEER  H Fit EFR
R BB AT AEERE /A
SEFLERZEER - E2RHE
hEEELEE

—E-NFEER

BONJOUR

Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

Terminated Scheme (continued)

(G) Period of the Terminated Scheme

Subject to the Board exercising its right under the Listing
Rules to terminate the Terminated Scheme, this Terminated
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date, after which period
no further Options will be granted. The provisions of the
Terminated Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to
the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
Options granted prior to expiry of the 10-year period and
which are at that time or become thereafter capable of
exercise under the Listing Rules, or otherwise to the extent
as may be required in accordance with the provisions of the
Terminated Scheme.

The Board has responsibility for administering the Terminated
Scheme. There are no trustees appointed for the purposes
of the Terminated Scheme.

New Scheme

On 27 May 2009, the Company has passed a resolution in a
Shareholders’ meeting for the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”). Outstanding share options granted
under the Terminated Scheme prior to such termination shall
continue to be valid and, subject to the vesting schedule,
exercisable in accordance with the Terminated Scheme.

(1) Purpose

The purpose of the New Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group. The Directors
consider the New Scheme, with its broadened basis of
participation, will enable the Group to reward the employees,
the Directors and other selected participants for their
contributions to the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

Il. New Scheme (continued)

(20 Who May Join

The Directors may, at its absolute discretion, invite any
person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants, to take up options to subscribe for shares:

(@)

any employee (whether full-time or part-time including
any executive Director but excluding any non-executive
Director) of the Company, any of our subsidiaries or
any entity in which the Group holds an equity interest
(“Invested Entity”);

any non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) of the Company, any of our
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any Shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and

any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

New Scheme (continued)

@)

3

Who May Join (continued)

For the purposes of the New Scheme, the options may
be granted to any company wholly-owned by one or
more persons belonging to any of the above classes of
participants. For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any
options by the Company for the subscription of shares or
other securities of the Group to any person who fall within
any of the above classes of participants shall not, by itself,
unless the Directors otherwise determined, be construed as
a grant of option under the New Scheme.

The eligibility of any of the above class of participants to the
grant of any option shall be determined by the Directors from
time to time on the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to his
contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

Maximum Number of Shares Subject to the New
Scheme

(@ The maximum number of shares to be issued upon
the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

(b) The initial total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this
purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the New Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group) to be granted under the
New Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue at the day on which the New Scheme is
approved (“General Scheme Limit”).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

New Scheme (continued)

(3) Maximum Number of Shares Subject to the New
Scheme (continued)

(©

Subject to (a) above but without prejudice to (d) below,
the Company may issue a circular to the Shareholders
and seek approval of the Shareholders in general
meeting to refresh the General Scheme Limit provided
that the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
New Scheme and any other share options scheme
of the Group must not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the refreshed limit
and for the purpose of calculating the refreshed limit,
options (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
or exercised in accordance with the New Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group) previously
granted under the New Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group will not be counted. The
circular sent by the Company to the Shareholders
shall contain, among other information, the information
required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules
and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules.

Subject to (a) above and without prejudice to (c)
above, the Company may seek separate Shareholders’
approval in general meeting to grant options beyond
the General Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the
refreshed limit referred to in (c) above to participants
specifically identified by the Company before such
approval is sought. In such event, the Company must
send a circular to the Shareholders containing a general
description of the specified participants, the number
and terms of options to be granted, the purpose of
granting options to the specified participants with an
explanation as to how the terms of the options serve
such purpose, the information required under Rule
17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and the disclaimer
required under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.

The total number of shares available for issue under the New
Scheme is 439,684,800 shares, representing approximately
12.88% of the issued share of the Company as at the date
of this report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

New Scheme (continued)

4

5)

(6)

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
New Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised or outstanding options) to
each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options
in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant shall be
subject to the issue of a circular to the Shareholders and the
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company
with such participant and his associates abstaining from
voting. The number and terms (including the exercise
price) of options to be granted to such participant must be
fixed before Shareholders’ approval and the date of board
meeting for proposing such further grant should be taken as
the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the exercise
price under note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules.

Subscription Price for Shares and Consideration for
the Option

The subscription price for shares under the New Scheme
will be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not
be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of the offer of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average closing price of Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the shares.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option.

Period of the New Scheme
The New Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10

years commencing on the date on which the New Scheme is
adopted and the remaining life of the New Scheme is 1 year.
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BREE) Share Option (continued)

RZFE—NF+-A=+—H  #®EER Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2018
REEE LA MKRITEZERRESB which have been granted under the Share Option Schemes are as
T follows:

R=E-N5-F-BZ-F-NFt-A=1-A RZB-NF
During 1 January 2018 - 31 December 2018 -B-H%
“E-0\F
tZA=t-H
ZfTE
R=B-N\F (#7w)
RZB-NE T8 Exercise
-A-H =t+-H price during
#E BA%/ #E 1 January 2018
Held at Ei ] Heldat -31 December
BEA EHAS BT AT Tz 1 January o B Lapsed/ 31 December 2018
Holders Grant date Exercise from Excisable until 2018 Granted Exercised Cancelled 2018 (HKS)
Directors:
e ZE-TEMATZR CE-ZFMATEZR CEZ-REMATCA 30,096,000 - - - 30,096,000 0.929
IP Chun Heng, Wilson 13 April 2010 13 April 2012 12 April 2020
“E-—%tAlA “E-ZELANA “T--%tA=H 31,900,000 - - - 31,900,000 1.209
4 July 2011 4 July 2012 3 July 2021
ERE “5-SEmA+=A  ZE-ZE@A+=A ZZ-ZFMATZCH 30,096,000 - - - 30,096,000 0.929
CHUNG Pui Wan 13 Apri 2010 13 April 2012 12 April 2020
—5-—%tAEA —F-Z§CANA “F--tA=H 31,900,000 - - - 31,900,000 1.209
4 July 2011 4 July 2012 3.July 2021
Ptz el
Other Participants:
“TENERATAR ZTTAFRA-B ZE-NERA=TA 47,520,000 - - - 47,520,000 0312
16 May 2008 1 May 2009 30 April 2019
ZTENETZANE ZTEAETZA-B ZENET-A=TH 26400000 - - - 26,400,000 0.158
9 December 2008 1 December 2009 30 November 2019
“EENECACA “TFNE-A-R  —EZ-NE-F-R 60,720,000 - - - 60,720,000 0.170
2 February 2009 2 February 2009 1 February 2019
“T-MELA=R “T-MELA=R “T-nEtAZh 16,000,000 - - - 16,000,000 1.280
3July 2014 3July 2014 2 July 2019
“R-RF-RCTER ZE-RF-ACTER ZECRF-ACTCA 27000000 - - - 27000000 0762
23 January 2015 23 January 2015 22 January 2020
&y
Total: 301,632,000 - - - 301,632,000
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chung Pui Wan (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Chen Jianwen (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Yip Kwok Li

Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chi Wai
Dr. Chow Ho Ming
Mr. Lo Hang Fong

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Dr. Ip
Chun Heng, Wilson, Mr. Yip Kwok Li and Dr. Chow Ho Ming will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM. All the retiring Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group as at the date of this report are set out on pages 19 to 21.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors (except Mr. Chen Jianwen and
Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel who have entered into no service contract
with the Company) has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of two years commencing from 1 July
2003, and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year
commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019, which can be
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s notice in
writing.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract or an appointment letter with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation.

Directors’ Material interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts that are significant in relation to the Group’s business

Save as disclosed in the annual report, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries were a party and in which a director of the company or
his/her connected entities had a material interest, where directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2018, save as disclosed under the heading “Share
Option”, the interests of the Directors and chief executive officer of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules were as
follows:

RAEQXTRG 2R Interest in the shares of the Company
RiEERE
BEZER HERT
BBk RPEE BRABEL
RPEE Number of EL
(Ki:z4) underlying Approximate
Number of shares held percentage
EEpR SRME ordinary shares pursuant to st of issued
Name of Directors Capacity and nature (Note 4)  share options Total  share capital
Y/ S hn ERBEAA 69,926,000 61,996,000  1,553,172,000 45.51%
Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson eneficial owner
feEER(hH1) 52,800,000 61,996,000
Interest of spouse (Note 1)
HREE (M2 16,743,600
Joint interests (Note 2)
NERER (M3 1,289,710,400
Corporate Interest (Note 3)
BMExt ExBEA 52,800,000 61,996,000  1,553,172,000 45.51%
Ms. Chung Pui Wan Beneficial owner
B ERER (1) 69,926,000 61,996,000
Interest of spouse (Note 1)
HEERH2) 16,743,600
Joint interests (Note 2)
NEER(T73) 1,289,710,400
Corporate Interest (Note 3)
Bl RS ERBEAA 665,100,000 - 665,100,000 19.49%
Mr. Chen Jianwen eneficial owner
FlEa itk ExBEA 7,300,000 - 7,300,000 0.21%
Mr. Wan Yim Keung Daniel Beneficial owner
ERIFIESE ERBEAA 2,114,000 - 2,114,000 0.06%
Mr. Yip Kwok Li eneficial owner
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EERTHREABNANATIHEE 2B KR Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer Interests and Short
7 HEROREREZEDT2#EEZRAXAE Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of

(#&) the Company or Associated Corporation (continued)

RAEDTRAD 2w (E) Interest in the shares of the Company (continued)

Bt - Notes:

1. EESEEARATI31,922,0000887% 1. Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson holds 131,922,000 shares and underlying
RIEEIRGD  UAREMEL+ (EE=E shares of the Company and Ms. Chung Pui Wan, the spouse of Dr. Ip
T2 BB ) 58 A2 51114,796,0008% B 1 Chun Heng, Wilson holds 114,796,000 shares and underlying shares of
RIEERD - AU RIEEH R EBE GG - the Company. Therefore, Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson and Ms. Chung Pui
ERETETIREMEZTIHEARAR Wan are taken to be interested in 131,922,000 shares and underlying
A9 511 131,922,000 % A% 17 & 48 78 i 15 K& shares and 114,796,000 shares and underlying shares of the Company
114,796,0008 %17 K ABBARL 7 - B #E e o respectively by virtue of the SFO.

2. EREANTRMBEBEELSELREMELLT 2. The shares of the Company are held jointly by Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson
HERH - and Ms. Chung Pui Wan.

3. EEARATRLDHPromised Return Limited 3. The shares of the Company are held by Promised Return Limited, which is
#4 - Promised Return LimitedfiDeco City wholly owned by Deco City Limited. Deco City Limited is wholly owned by
Limited® & #% ° Deco City Limited R Z /£ Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson and Ms. Chung Pui Wan equally.
THIREMELZ RS2 EHE -

4. ERARBRMDERIIIEGTE 4. Interests in shares of the Company stated above represent long positions.

RAEQNTHMB AT 2= Interest in the subsidiary of the Company

ERERELERG
(KizE2)
Non-voting deferred
MEBARERE SHRME shares (Note 2)

BEEHS Name of Capacity =] Bt

Name of Directors the subsidiary and nature Number Percentage

BEeEL S EEmitEH L EARER 153,000 51.00%

Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson BRAGI(HET) Personal interests

Bonjour Cosmetic
Wholesale Center
Limited (Note 1)
BEL L SR MR & A e 25 147,000 49.00%
Ms. Chung Pui Wan BRAGI(HET) Personal interests
Bonjour Cosmetic
Wholesale Center
Limited (Note 1)

Kzt - Notes:

1. B RERLEREARIANATZE 1. Bonjour Cosmetic Wholesale Center Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary
BYIEB AT ° of the Company.

2. 2% S 4 0 T R I AR B B AR X o 2. The non-voting deferred shares are fully-paid.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or Associated Corporation (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or the chief executive officer of the Company had, pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were they taken to or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to be entered into
the register of interests kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or any interests which are required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, was
interested in or had any short position.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debt Securities

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the Year was the
Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate; and none of the Directors, chief executive officer of the
Company or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or had exercised any
such rights during the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

During the Year, none of the Directors or management shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in a
business which compete or may co-operate with the business of the
Group.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
following persons, other than the Directors and chief executive officer
of the Company, in the issued share capital of the Company which
have been disclosed to the Company pursuant to Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which have been recorded in the register of
interests kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Promised Return Limited (Note 2) (#12)
Deco City Limited (Note 2) (#1322)
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HEBITRE

BREs T

TER Approximate

IR R A percentage
Total interests in  (#73%1) of issued
ordinary shares (Note 1) share capital
1,289,710,400 37.79%
1,289,710,400 37.79%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:
1. Interests in shares of the Company stated above represent long positions.

2. Promised Return Limited is wholly owned by Deco City Limited. Deco City
Limited is wholly owned by Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson and Ms. Chung Pui
Wan equally. As at the date of its incorporation, Promised Return Limited
was held as to 51% and 49% by Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson and Ms.
Chung Pui Wan respectively. On 17 June 2003, Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson
and Ms. Chung Pui Wan transferred the entire issued share capital of
Promised Return Limited to Deco City Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no person was interested in or had any
short position in the issued share capital of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO as at 31 December 2018.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries, of any listed securities of the Company during the
Year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers
accounted for 4.28% and 19.20% of the Group’s purchases
respectively, and the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for 0.70% and 1.28% of the Group’s turnover respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers and customers.

Investment in Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 171
to 172.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its
subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the Year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“related parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details
of these transactions are disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. In the opinion of the
Directors, the transactions disclosed as related party transactions in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined under the Listing Rules in force at the time of the entering into
of the relevant transactions.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 13 April 2017, the acquisition of Bonjour Beauty International
Limited and its subsidiaries (“BJB Group”) from Town Health
International Medical Group Limited by Profit Castle Holdings Limited
(“Profit Castle”) was completed (the “BJB Acquisition”). Profit Castle
is owned by Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson and Ms. Chung Pui Wan in
equal share. As a result of such completion, members of the BJB
Group have become associates of Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson and Ms.
Chung Pui Wan who are controlling shareholders of the Company and
executive Directors. Accordingly, the transactions between the Group
and BJB Group during the Year constituted the continuing connected
transactions that require disclosure under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as follows:

Financial Assistance to the Group

On 1 January 2015, Bonjour Group Limited and BJB Limited entered
into a loan agreement which a loan in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$138 million (the “Loan”) was owing by Bonjour Group Limited to
BJB Limited. Pursuant to the 2015 Loan Agreement, Bonjour Group
Limited should pay the interest at the rate of 3% per annum and the
principal for the term of 2 years from 1 January 2015 (the “Original
Maturity Date”).

On 23 December 2016, 29 June 2017 and 12 April 2018, Bonjour
Group Limited and BJB Limited entered into several supplement loan
agreements and the amendments the following is a summary of the
amendments:

()  the maturity dates of the Loan were first extended to one year
from the Original Maturity Date and the subsequent extended
maturity dates were on 1 January 2018 and 1 January 2019
respectively;

(i) the original interest accruing on the Loan up to the Original

Maturity Date shall remain to be repayable by Bonjour Group
Limited to BJB Limited on the Original Maturity Date;
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Financial Assistance to the Group (continued)

(i) interest shall be charged on the Loan (or any outstanding amount
thereof) from the next day of the Original Maturity Date up to the
due date for payment of such interest or, as appropriate, the
date of early repayment at the interest rate of 5% per annum (the
“Renewed Interest Rate”); and

(iv) interest shall accrue daily and be calculated on the basis of the
actual number of days elapsed and a 365-day year and shall be
payable semi-annually in arrears since the next day of the Original
Maturity Date and if such date is not a normal bank business day
in Hong Kong, the immediately following normal bank business
day.

Save for the extension of the maturity date of the Loan at the Renewed
Interest Rate, no other amendment has been made to the terms of the
Loan pursuant to such supplemental loan agreement.

As the Group suffered loss for financial year of 2018, the Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that
(i) after completion of the BJB Acquisition which results in the Loan
becoming a financial assistance received by the Group from a
connected person (i.e. BJB Limited which is an associate of both Dr.
Ip Chun Heng, Wilson and Ms. Chung Pui Wan), it is in the interest
of the Group for not making early repayment of the Loan, and (ii) the
current interest rate of 5% per annum is on normal commercial terms
or better on the part of the Group.

The Loan constitutes a financial assistance received by the Group
from a connected person, which is conducted on normal commercial
terms or better, and it is not secured by the assets of the Group.
Under Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, the Loan is fully exempt from
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

Premises (Note b)

Y (115tb)

Term of licence

= AT BV HARR

Licensing of premises by the Group to the BJB Group

Some of the premises owned or leased by the Group were licensed to
the BJB Group as early as from 1 January 2015 and the following is a
summary of such licensing agreements:

Monthly licence fee (Note c)

BAFAER(Mitc)

70

Bonjour Cosmetic
Wholesale Center
Limited (“BCWCL”)

SRR ED O
BRAR (25T
it E L )
BCWCL

SRR EF L

BCWCL

SRR DO

Shop B on the Ground Floor
and Offices on the First and
Second Floors of Anho House,
Nos. 22, 24, 26 and 28 Nullah
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
EBNEEKEREBFE22 24 26
Rogh g TBHR1ER
QEMPWAE

First Floor, Nos. 50 and 50A
Tung Choi Street, Mongkok,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BN ABEIEE50%50A
gR1iE

Part of Ground Floors of
Nos. 40, 42, 44, 46, 48 & 50,
Tung Choi Street, Mongkok,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
BEBNEEAHBFEHLI - 42 -
44 ~ 46 ~ 48K B0FEE AT

From 1 January 2018
to 20 March 2018

BE-ZE—-N\F—H—
HE—Z—)\&F=A
—+A

From 1 January 2018
to 31 March 2018

BT \F—A—
AE=2—\%=5
=+—F

From 1 January 2018
to 31 March 2018

AT \F—HF—
HE—Z2—)\&=A
=+—H

From 1 January 2018

to 20 March 2018:
HK$598,385 (inclusive of
government rent, rates and
management fees)
B-E—\F—H—H
E-E-N\F=A=+H:
598,385/ 7T (B A BN
e EMRERE)

From 1 January 2018 to

31 March 2018: HK$38,620
(inclusive of government rent,
rates and management fees)
B-ZE—-\F—H-HBZ=
E-NF=ZA=+—8":
38,6208 TL(BRBFES -
EMNERE)

From 1 January 2018 to 31
March 2018: HK$759,967.50
(inclusive of government rent,
rates and management fees)
B \F—A—HBZE=
T—-NF=ZA=+—A8":
759,967.5078 7T (B IE BT E
e EMRERE)
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
NEBRENEREB/ELEYWEL(EZ) Licensing of premises by the Group to the BJB Group (continued)

Term of licence

Licensor (Note a)

FAH (Hita)

Premises (Note b)

Y3 (175tb) FFA YRR PR

Monthly licence fee (Note c)
BRAFAER(MiFc)

4. Apex Frame Limited

Portion of 6th, 9th & 12th
Floor, Bonjour Tower (formerly
known as Harrington Building),

From 1 July 2017 to
30 June 2020

HK$110,000 (inclusive of
government rent, rates and
management fees)

Nos. 36-50 Wang Wo
Tsai Street, Tsuen Wan
New Territories,Hong Kong

BHBERAE

Wi -

AR REEEEHE36-50 B T —+F+A—
SR EEP O (RIS AE)

110,000 T (B A

BE—Z-ZTFXA 2 ZMREERE)

BiZ - OB R 121EE n =+H
Notes:
a.  All licensors are members of the Group.

a. PRI TIEGRAEEKE QT

b.  BERUREENYEMS  AAAIEE
TEUXAERAR(ERERTTT) - B
BRERERRERBRE

c. FABHEETOEAAERAITNGES
Z() A TR ERNOERE P A BYERE
NPETNES(HERRUE  mEkEE
R AIE LM YN B R EE S
) R AN SO (PN TES - =M
LERE)(IMA) » R(ERIFT A HA T
BEFFRT A ERTRE © U5 - ERAMENE
HRFRI &R TR ET K77 1R BB RT A i I A%
SEWELEMENOMLE - BEMEERSR
MIRITHERZMETE -

AEEREKEENHEREENFAIERSA
%8 {5 51 49 45,300,00078 ¢ - AR IRE -
MRARFTEB BT TN FERER
SNEEBERA DL E(BF L RERIN D
RE%  MZERXHEBEEBT EMRAUNE
14A.7T6EIE T 2 A R FRIRE ©

—E-NFEER

b.

For the above premises located in Hong Kong, all the licences have been
granted to BJB Limited (as licensee). The license is a member of the BJB
Group.

The monthly licence fees under the Licensing Agreements were
determined by the parties with reference to (i) the rents (which were
determined by the then prevailing market rents on the premises
comparable in location, area and permitted use) and other outgoings (such
as government rents, rates and management fees) (if any) payable by the
licensors under the head leases as tenant to the landlord in relation to
the premises; and (ii) the area of the premises licensed under the relevant
licensing agreements. In addition, the monthly licence fee for premises no.
5 was determined by the parties to the relevant Licensing Agreement with
reference to the prevailing market rents on the premises comparable in
location, area and permitted use.

The aggregate licence fees receivable by the Group from the

BJB Group was about HK$5.3 million. The continuing connected

transactions in respect of the Licensing Arrangements will only be
subject to the announcement and reporting requirements under Rule

14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, as the highest applicable percentage
ratio (excluding the profits ratio) calculated in accordance with the
Listing Rules in relation of these transactions is less than 5%.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Reasons for the Licensing Arrangements

The above premises have been used by the BJB Group prior to 1
January 2015 and up to 13 April 2017 (i.e. the date of completion
of the BJB Acquisition). As the Licensing Agreements regulating the
Licensing Arrangements are legally binding and the Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) consider that the agreements
were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, on normal commercial terms or better, on terms that are fair
and reasonable, the continuation of the Licensing Arrangements is in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole, and
the licensed premises have been used by the BJB Group in line with
the permitted usage under the Licensing Agreements, the Licensing
Agreements have not been discontinued following completion of
the BJB Acquisition. As Dr. Ip and Ms. Chung have interest in the
Licensing Arrangements, they abstained from voting on the relevant
resolutions.

Supply of Beauty Products and Gifts Coupons by the Group

On 21 April 2017, Bonjour Cosmetic Wholesale Center Limited
(“BCWCL”, a subsidiary of the Company) entered into a master supply
agreement (the “Master Supply Agreement”) to regulate the supply pf
the beauty products and the gift coupons by the Group to the BJB
Group during the term from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2018 and
the following is a summary of aggregate and capped amounts under
the Master Supply Agreement:

For the year ended
31 December 2018

BE-Z-N\F
t=ZA=+—BLFE
Aggregate Capped
amounts amounts
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
HeEE tRR&EE
(BEEE7T) (BE#ET)
AREFERBEINESEEHE Group’s supply of Beauty Products and
EREMRESR Gift Coupons to the BJB Group 2 5
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BONJOUR

Directors’ Report (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

Supply of Beauty Products and Gifts Coupons by the Group
(continued)

Having regard to the expected capped amounts, the continuing
connected transactions in respect of the Master Supply Agreement
will only be subject to the announcement and reporting requirements
under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, as the highest applicable
percentage ratio (excluding the profits ratio) calculated in accordance
with the Listing Rules in relation of these transactions is less than 5%.

Reasons for entering into the Master Supply Agreement

The BJB Group has been sourcing Beauty Products from time to
time in its ordinary course of business, and has also been providing
Gift Coupons purchased from the Group in 2014 to its customers
in its ordinary course of business. Following completion of the BJB
Acquisition, the Group’s supply of Beauty Products and Gift Coupons
to the BJB Group will not be discontinued. Such transactions will
constitute continuing connected transactions on the part of the
Company after completion of the BJB Acquisition, but will continue
to be conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
consider that:

(@ the terms and conditions of Master Supply Agreement were
negotiated between the parties to it on an arm’s length basis and
are normal commercial terms or better to the Group;

(b) the terms of the Master Supply Agreement, including the
expected Capped Amounts, are fair and reasonable; and

(c) the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the
Master Supply Agreement are in the interest of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

As Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson and Ms. Chung Pui Wan have interest
in the Master Supply Agreements, they abstained from voting on the
relevant resolutions.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above
continuing connected transactions (the “Transactions”) and has issued
a letter to the Board setting out the confirmation required under Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules and a copy of which has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Reasons for entering into the Master Supply Agreement (continued)

All independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the Transactions
and confirmed that the Transactions for the Year were entered into:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of the Company’s business;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better to the Company; and

(iiiy in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of at least 25%
throughout the Year.

Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations totaling
HK$1,300,000.
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BONJOUR

Directors’ Report (continued)

Auditor

At the Company’s last AGM, RSM Hong Kong was re-appointed as
auditor of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited
by RSM Hong Kong who retire and, being eligible offer itself for re-
appointment. A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditor, RSM Hong
Kong will be put at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Ip Chun Heng, Wilson
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BONJOUR HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bonjour
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 83 to 172, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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BIZEMEE(E) Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BRETEE Key Audit Matters

FRENEEAKRRESHEZENE - 8  Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
SAARBGEMBERERTPREENEE - &  were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
ERE AP B RR 2BEBEHREIE  statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
WERELREKER M3t the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
EEEFERESH  TEHNERSES whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

SIEMOT separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters we identified
are:
1. FEMEREE 1. Inventory valuation and allowance
2. NEEHAEMEEYZEZSFE 2. Valuation of financial assets at FVTOCI
EZWE
BRETTSEE EENETTNMEERRETEE

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FEMAERERE

Inventory valuation and allowance

2B4RE MBS HREM E5(0) R20A RE N F 106 B Kt
T4 GETBUR -

Refer to notes 5(c) and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies in
note 4(f) on pages 106.

A_ZE-N\E+ZA=+—H r5EREFEERE
#)235,700,00078 7T &2 17 & # 5 49237,000/ 7T © 40
%?é-\ﬁﬂki&%%ﬁﬁ%‘ﬂ() SETBORATAL - FE IR
*;*EE@TEW%ZWEUEEIJHE Hit - EFERET
%%ﬁ,\ HERERDERNFAREFESTIER
#11 -
At 31 December 2018, the Group held gross
inventories of approximately HK$235.7 million
and allowance for inventory of approximately
HK$237,000. As described in the accounting policies
in note 4(f) to the consolidated financial statements,
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. As a result, the directors apply
judgement in determining the appropriate allowance
for obsolete stock based upon a detailed analysis of
obsolescence.

—E-NFEER

EERFEMERBEMETHREF B
Our procedures in relation to inventory valuation and
allowance included:

- Z2EEEFEHEINLHBRKREFSE
— ldentifying and assessing aged and obsolete inventory
when attending inventory counts;

- BAERFEERTERANMEETLER  BRAIZIEFE
TS B AEMN mMEARENHEEMEE - &

—  Comparing the net realisable value, obtained through a
detailed review of sales subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, to the cost price of inventories; and

- FHRENTERBERE MFATFEMEHNKTF -

— Reviewing the historical accuracy of allowance for
inventory and the level of inventory write-offs during the
year.
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BONJOUR

BIZEMEE(E) Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BRETEEE) Key Audit Matters (continued)
BRETTEE EENESTNMEERERETSE

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

UAREFARMZHKEZSRMEEZME
Valuation of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

SERE W MBI FE5(d) R A9 R E N E107 B
A2 EETBUR ©

Refer to notes 5(d) and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies in
notes 4(h) on page 107.

RZZB-N\F+ZA=1+—H AEERERREBEKRE
BEEERAR(IERDBAEREAKE  BHRER
ZE-NEFTZA=T-HLEFEZAFEZHH
4,400,0007% 7T 1% AR TH B 49 /383,200,000 7T, ©

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held an equity
investment in Town Health International Medical
Group Limited (“Town Health”), with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$83.2 million after
recognition of a fair value change of approximately
HK$4.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2018.

BERABTEMARSMAERAR([FEMRM]) R
tHRR - BZE—tF AT EtREERNEE
MNEBBMIMEE -

Town Health is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX?”).
However, trading in its shares on the HKEX has been
suspended with effect from 27 November 2017.

BERBARENAFEAGELISEE  Hig AR
BIWIFERABEMSEE  WR=F—/\F+=A
=T—BSERE=A -

The fair value of the equity investment in Town
Health is based on valuation method with inputs that
are not based on observable market data and was
classified as level 3 as at 31 December 2018.
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EERURFEFAEMPEN S 2 SRUEE 2 B R
PETTHRR 7 B45 -

Our procedures in relation to valuation of financial assets at
FVTOCI included:

- BB EREEBETRAREATENGERERERD
AR AR

—  Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s valuation
approach and selection of unobservable inputs in
determining the fair value of equity investment;

- FHMEBINEMEEMESERE - fEHMEEMN
- Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

- HEREHEZSERNBEIT - BREmEERMEERE
RASEEREE - sHAPERARMEETE - PAERANE
R - AT IS R ER KRB IR

—  With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
evaluating the valuation technique applied, inputs
and assumptions used, such as market comparables
and liquidity discount, through comparison with the
valuation methodologies that are commonly used in the
market and with the available valuation data;
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BRETEE
Key Audit Matter

BONJOUR

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

EENETTNMEERRETEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

UAFEFAEMZEBAZEREEZHERRBE
(%)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(Continued)

HRRAREZ TETARSLE - BESENMGE
FEREBEEHRERABRBREEFELHERNEEEH
B o

The selection of an appropriate valuation technique
and the determination of the valuation inputs
required significant management judgement in light
of the illiquid nature of the market value of the equity

HERENREET AR FETENRARERER
1B BREREET AT EREIFEK D EN B
RRZEE R

Discussing with management their assessment of
whether objective evidence of impairment of the equity
investment existed including facts they considered in
determining that the decline in fair value below cost

investment.

Htp &R

EEUHMENEE - HBBERBEEN
ERBERAR T N\FERNAEE
£ BNBEGRE B HE KRB
W& -
EEHEAMBRRNERL NRERM
R BETTHEMEMBEREMER

[=]
HIAZ 8 AR

ERGAMBHRE  BENEERNE
HMER  ARIBRES - ZEEBER
EREGEAMBRRKEEFNETBRET
PR BERBERNERE  EUFRE
REREOL - BENEZCAITHOIHE - i
EERREMENBERERRL - BF
BREZEE - NULTHE - BFLAEM
WEFEA -

—E-NFEER

was significant or prolonged; and

- FHMEREMBWMEMTAERENRESRE
— Assessing the adequacy of the related disclosures in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information in Bonjour Holdings
Limited’s 2018 annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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BONJOUR

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Poh Weng.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BONJOUR

—E-N\F —ET—+tF
2018 2017
HtaF FET FET
Note HKS’000 HKS 000
R Turnover S 1,793,457 1,934,893
BEEEMKAE Cost of goods sold (1,157,692) (1,254,665)
EX Gross profit 635,765 680,228
E Ut A Other income 9 20,639 43,541
7 SEARAR Distribution costs (57,414) (50,419)
THRAX Administrative expenses (612,158) (714,269)
Hi & Other operating expenses (3,045) (228)
BREEE Core operating loss (16,213) (41,147)
HERHEELREEE®E  Loss on disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets - (6,086)
At ESREEZHMEEE  Imparrment loss on available-for-
sale financial assets 79 - (140,293)
REEREE Loss from operations (16,213) (187,526)
BhE KA Finance costs 77 (16,860) (14,769)
BrEiATE IR Loss before tax (33,073) (202,295)
Fr{ERiBI Income tax expense 72 (6,540) (47)
FABE Loss for the year 78 (39,613) (202,342)
ARARERAEWN Attributable to owners of
the Company (39,613) (202,342)
BRER Loss per share 76
B Basic HK(1.2) cents &4l HK(5.9) cents Al
4 Diluted HK(1.2) cents &l HK(5.9) cents /&l

—E-\FER
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FeEnkEMEZERER Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
BHE—ZE— ) \F+-A=+—HIFFZF For the year ended 31 December 2018
—E-N\F —ET—+F
2018 2017
Htat FET FET
Note HK$°000 HK$’'000
FEBE Loss for the year (39,613) (202,342)
Hih2mEkE : Other comprehensive income:
TEeEH S EEEm o HA - Item that will not be reclassified to profit
orloss:
KRB BEEHTEWE Remeasurement gains on long service
payment liabilities 199 870
AR BT AR M2 IS ([LAZR Fair value changes of equity instruments
FEFFAEMEERE]) e  at fair value through other
TEZzRAFEEZS comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) 19 (4,448) -
(4,249) 870
IR EF P EE 8 2 HH - Iltems that may be reclassified to profit
orloss:
BMEINER ZEN =58 Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations 2,333 (8,576)
At ESREE, ATEES  Fair value changes of available-for-sale
financial assets - (103,783)
HEMHEESHEEREHN NI Investment revaluation reserve
EETMEEEGFE reclassified to profit or loss upon
disposal of available-for-sale financial
assets - (3,600)
ENOBEREBTERMAHHES Reclassification adjustment to profit or
MEERE loss on impairment of available-for-
sale financial assets - 100,077
2,333 (10,882)
FERBEAEMGEEmKE Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax (1,916) (10,012)
FE2HEWZHATE Total comprehensive income for the
year (41,529) (212,354)
AT EE AEL Attributable to owners of the
Company (41,529) (212,354)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 December 2018

BONJOUR

—E-N\F —tF
2018 2017
Bt FET FET
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
FREEE Non-current assets
Y - BENEE Property, plant and equipment 17 706,071 733,588
EES Goodwill 18 - _
fﬂi&* SR & Rental and utility deposits 40,899 43,819
EFTEaJr)\/H\ﬁﬂi\@HMT&Z Financial assets at FVTOCI
éﬁﬂé% 19 83,212 -
At ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 19 - 87,660
EEFIEE E Deferred tax assets 29 1,289 1,289
831,471 866,356
REEE Current assets
Ve Inventories 20 235,697 189,841
FEUNE B EEX Trade receivables 21 27,723 40,936
iz &7J< Piig Rental and utility deposits 35,772 43,092
JEMEZUE C ST N EMEREES  Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables 22 21,950 19,310
AL NETE S Amounts due from related companies 23 42 3,342
BVEAR 18 éf@ Current tax assets 2,972 3,089
RITRIRS 4 Bank and cash balances 24 237,532 250,076
561,688 549,686
REBEE Current liabilities
FENEB SER Trade payables 25 125,812 150,967
HibpEMEES - BUWETS L EETE Other payables, deposits received and
A accrued charges 26 88,208 77,945
FET RS 5 NGIE O Amounts due to related companies 23 3,346 2,771
RITIES Bank borrowings 27 265,012 155,941
“”%mﬁaﬁ N Trade finance loans 27 26,239 28,422
RERERA Finance lease payables 28 885 1,062
ENEARIE B A Current tax liabilities 13,456 8,459
523,048 425,567
REBEEFRE Net current assets 38,640 124,119
BEERTBAR Total assets less current liabilities 870,111 990,475
—B-\EEH 85
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

At 31 December 2018
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2018 2017
Htat FET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000

ERBERE Non-current liabilities
Hip R L2 WET & Other payables and deposits received 26 9,724 11,639
e AR 2B Loan from a related company 23 125,000 138,000
BITEE Bank borrowings 27 128,748 193,247
MEREHE Finance lease payables 29 - 885
EIEFITEAE Deferred tax liabilities 29 4,245 2,751
EHREcaE Long service payment liabilities 30 2,709 2,739
270,426 349,261
EEFE NET ASSETS 599,685 641,214

ER G Capital and reserves

R& 2R Share capital 31 34,126 34,126
Gl Reserves 33 565,559 607,088
RS TOTAL EQUITY 599,685 641,214

MNZE—NF=A=-_t+HLHEZSE# £ Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019 and are signed
MR TIALTRESZE
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Ip Chun Heng, Wilson

28BS
Director

EZF

on its behalf by:

Chung Pui Wan

EWE
Director

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018

KOTER AR

Attributable to owners of the Company

BONJOUR

HATEHA
0]
R e Wiz
Ry Ex XMEE  EXRE REER  oREE
EE RORE Share-  Foreign % Financial
BE&  Share  Capitll ABHEE EEHE  based curency Investment assetsat REEA  HEH
Share  premium redemption  Merger Statutory  payment translation revaluation ~ FVTOCI  Retained Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits equity
FAr T TEr TEr TRt TR TEr TEr TEr TR TEr
HKS000 ~ HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
NZF-t5-A-8 At 1 January 2017 34126 200902 1,181 45 43 64013 2,186 7,306 - 53419 853,568
EErEbGEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - (3576 (7,30) - 0141 1235)
WIF-LEFZAZ+-H  At31 December 2017 34126 200902 1,181 45 A3 64013 (1.390) - - e
R-F-)\5-A-8 At 1 January 2018 3126 209902 1,181 415 A3 64013 (1,390) - - T e
ERrEhaEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - 2,388 - (444 Qo414 (41529)
RoE-NE+ZA=+-8 A3 December 2018 3126 209902 1,181 415 A3 64013 943 - (4448 293310 599685
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018

—E-N\F —ET—tF
2018 2017
Htat FET FETT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
REXBFEEZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
PR Al & 15 Loss before tax (33,073) (202,295)
AT SEEL AR Adjustments for:
BhE R AR Finance costs 16,860 14,769
RITFRFBMA Interest income on bank deposits (650) (89)
PR B A Dividend income - (519)
REIRBE S BE Provision for long service payments 392 185
e Depreciation 43,420 44,742
WMIEE - BE K Write off of property, plant and
B equipment 666 466
HEME BER&EZ Gain on disposal of property, plant
e and equipment (1,650) (264)
T ERES Allowance/(reversal of allowance)
(BB ) for slow-moving inventories 234 (10)
HEAHEESHMEEZ Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
p] financial assets - 6,086
A ESmEE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
BEBE financial assets - 140,293
LEEEER 2L Operating profit before working
m A, (1) capital changes 26,199 3,364
FEUEEM RS (Increase)/decrease in inventories (46,090) 35,302
JEWE SRR, () Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 13,213 (2,458)
e PoKEZRE R Decrease in rental and utility deposits 10,240 32,409
AR - 3] REM (Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
JE Wi B 3k (382 40), R deposits and other receivables (2,640) 2,945
JE I R A B FUR Decrease/(increase) in amounts due
wA,(18h0) from related companies 3,300 (2,456)
JER B ZEEFOR LD,/ () (Decrease)/increase in trade payables (25,155) 2,217
HiEMAERR - BWETE& R (Increase)/decrease in other
FEETBAEM), TR payables, deposits received
and accrued charges 8,438 (24,253)
JE A< B ESE X B R IE S hn Increase in amounts
due to related companies 575 2,455
MERAK, SERNBEE Long service payment to retired/
BMRBARS S redundant staff (223) (180)
BB GER), EEZ Cash (used in)/generated from
B operations (12,143) 49,345
OB S ER Hong Kong profits tax paid (59) (306)
2ENF ST Overseas profits tax paid - (571)
BRE EFEFER Hong Kong profits tax refunded 127 1,018
EAAE Interest paid (16,770) (14,549)
BENRMEHEER Finance leases charges paid (90) (220)
BB (ER) /EEZ Net cash (used in)/generated from
e F8 operating activities (28,935) 34,717
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BONJOUR

—E-N\F —tF
2018 2017
HtaE FET FET
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
RETEMEEZ CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
BE&RE ACTIVITIES
BRI B Interest received 650 89
BUAR B Dividend received - 519
BAMZE - BEREE Purchases of property, plant and
equipment (16,601) (7,219)
LEYE - BEREREZ Proceeds from disposal of property,
T8 sk18 plant and equipment 1,654 272
HETHEESREEY Proceeds from disposal of available-for-
FTSFIE » MR S A sale financial assets, net of transaction
costs - 215,314
BEEEGER) EE2 Net cash (used in)/generated from
I 4 ERE investing activities (14,297) 208,975
BMEERMEEZ CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
RERE ACTIVITIES
FTIEAC HRSRTTE RN Short-term bank borrowings raised 70,000 10,000
EBERIIRITER Repayment of long-term bank
borrowings (25,428) (23,931)
—EEE R BEEER Repayment of loan from a related
company (13,000) -
HSmE B AFEE Decrease in trade finance loans, net (2,375) (8,050)
EEMERENE Repayment of finance lease payables (1,062) (2,684)
BMEEBEL(FR)Z Net cash generated from/(used in)
ReFHE financing activities 28,135 (24,665)
IE%&IE%%FW NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
WD), R CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (15,097) 219,027
fERTE) s wEB Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 2,553 (2,468)
R—B—HZEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
HEZEY AT 1 JANUARY 250,076 33,517
RTZA=Z+—HZARER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
HeEEY AT 31 DECEMBER 237,532 250,076
REeERASEBYZAW ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
RITRBLAH Bank and cash balances 24 237,532 250,076
—E-N\FEHR 89
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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General Information

Bonjour Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, George Town,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal
place of business is 12/F., Bonjour Tower, No. 36-50 Wang Wo
Tsai Street, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Dr. Ip Chun
Heng, Wilson and Ms. Chung Pui Wan are the ultimate controlling
parties of the Company.

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements:

()  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

(i) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to
the recognition, classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1
January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied
the requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained profits and other components of equity, without
restating comparative information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.

Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs( continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 resulted in the following changes
to the Group’s accounting policies.

(@) Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at FVTOCI or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at FVTOCI.
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.

Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Measurement

(c)

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss
as other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Impairment

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

The following table and the accompanying notes below
explain the original measurement categories under HKAS 39
and the new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for
each class of the Group’s financial assets as at 1 January
2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)

EBHBHREEREIF M HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)
TAE)
REEBHH REEBE REFBIH
REBBEHER HEERIER ZRIE305 HEERER
CREE friz  EI9HMAE W28 NIRESH MIRESH
Carrying Carrying
Classification Classification amount under  amount under
Financial assets Note under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAKE (@) FIHHE PRTEFAEM 87,660 87,660
FHEE
Equity investments Available-for-sale FVTOCI
FE U BR T8 I E At I AR R b) ERREWRTIE BRI 135,545 135,545

Trade and other receivables

Loans and receivables

Amortised cost

PR E 2 5 ER BT
2 FESRAEN T -NT
—A-AZEEELEEERR

/480
Az E -

R-ZF—-\F—H—H ~&£H
3 M8 E SR L RESRAERIA
Bt ABD EREEXERE

& °

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities remain
the same. The carrying amounts for all financial liabilities
at 1 January 2018 have not been impacted by the initial
application.

The Group did not designate or de-recognise any financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL at 1 January 2018.
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.

Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Note:

(@  These equity investments represent investments that the Group
intends to hold for the long term for strategic purposes. The
Group elected to present in OCI changes in the fair value of
these investments because these investments are held as long-
term strategic investments that are not expected to be sold in
the short to medium term. As a result, assets with a fair value of
HK$87,660,000 were reclassified from available-for-sale financial
assets to financial assets at FVTOCI on 1 January 2018. Unlike
HKAS 39, the accumulated fair value reserve related to these
investments will never be reclassified to profit or loss.

(b)  Trade and other receivables that were classified as loans and
receivables under HKAS 39 are now classified at amortised
cost. No allowance for impairment of the trade receivables was
recognised in opening retained earnings at 1 January 2018 on
transition to HKFRS 9.

For assets in scope of the HKFRS 9 impairment model,
impairment losses are generally expected to increase and
become more volatile. The Group has determined that the
application of HKFRS 9 impairment model requirements at
1 January 2018 did not result in an additional impairment
allowance.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. It replaced HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.

Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in
the opening retained profits (or other components of equity,
as appropriate) and comparative information has not been
restated. Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in the following changes
to the Group’s accounting policies.

The Group operates a chain of retail shops selling
merchandise. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the Group sells a product to the customer.

Payment of the transaction price is due immediately when
the customer purchases the merchandise. It is the Group’s
policy to sell its products to the customers with a right of
return within 30 days. Therefore, a refund liability (included in
trade and other payables) and a right to the returned goods
(included in inventories) are recognised for the products
expected to be returned. Accumulated experience is used
to estimate such returns at the time of sale at a portfolio
level (expected value method). Because the number of
products returned has been steady for years, it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur. The validity of this assumption
and the estimated amount of returns are reassessed at each
reporting date.

The Group has assessed that there is no impact on the
Group’s opening retained earnings as at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. BRAFITIRKBIEEMEHREED 3. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
(&) Standards (continued)

(b) T HEMIE R RERZHET REE

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

AEBMBREER

AEBIEREEEANR_F—N
F-A—BRBZPVBFEDR
R ARERZHR] RAEIERTE
B R ERE R o Al gL AR E
MR 2 % F R RGBT EEY
BaREERBREATRE -

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2018. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far the Group has identified some aspects of HKFRS 16
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual impacts
upon the initial adoption of the standards may differ as the
assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may
be identified before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ended
30 June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until the
standards are initially applied in that interim financial report.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for all leases (with optional exemptions for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries
forward the accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS 17
substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore continue to
classify leases as operating or financing leases.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply
the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will affect
primarily the accounting for the Group’s operating leases.
The Group’s retail shops leases are currently classified
as operating leases and the lease payments (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under
HKFRS 16 the Group may need to recognise and measure
a liability at the present value of the future minimum lease
payments and recognise a corresponding right-of-use asset
for these leases. The interest expense on the lease liability
and depreciation on the right-of-use asset will be recognised
in profit or loss. The Group’s assets and liabilities will
increase and the timing of expense recognition will also be
impacted as a result.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. BRAFITIRKBIEEMEHREED 3. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
(&) Standards (continued)

(b) T HEMIE R RERZHET REE

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
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(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As disclosed in note 37, the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for its retail
shops amounted to HK$473,030,000 as at 31 December
2018. These leases are expected to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted. The amounts will be adjusted for the
effects of discounting and the transition reliefs available to
the Group.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments
to be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not
be material. However, the expected changes in accounting
policies as described above could have a material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements from 2019
onwards.

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation of HKAS 12 Income Taxes sets out how to
apply that standard when there is uncertainty about income
tax treatments. Entities are required to determine whether
uncertain tax treatments should be assessed separately or
as a group depending on which approach will better predict
the resolution of the uncertainties. Entities will have to assess
whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. If yes, the accounting treatment
will be consistent with the entity’s income tax filings. If not,
however, entities are required to account for the effects
of the uncertainty using either the most likely outcome or
expected value method depending on which method is
expected to better predict its resolution.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the
interpretation on the consolidated financial statements until a
more detailed assessment has been completed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. Significant Accounting Policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise
in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments

that are measured fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it the
current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities
that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at
the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and
the services are received. |dentifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the
consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Business combination and goodwill (continued)

(c)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews
are undertaken annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”) which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchanges rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of financial
position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases), held for use
in the supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

2% or over the lease term

Over the period of lease or their
expected useful lives to the Group
whichever is shorter

10%-20%

Land and buildings
Leasehold
improvements

Furniture, fixtures
and equipment
Motor vehicles 30%

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Leases

The Group as lessee

(i)

(i)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as finance leases. At the commencement of the
lease term, a finance lease is capitalised at the lower of
the fair value of the leased asset and the present value
of the minimum lease payments, each determined at
the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance lease
payable. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same
as owned assets.

The Group as lessor

(i)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

)

(9)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories which
include all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were classified
as financial assets measured at FVTPL. Any attributable
transaction costs were recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the group had the positive ability
and intention to hold to maturity were classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities were stated at
amortised cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Financial assets (continued)

Equity investments (continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

Investments which did not fall into any of the above
categories were classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. At the end of each reporting period the fair value was
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve (recycling). Dividend income
from equity investments and interest income from debt
securities calculated using the effective interest method were
recognised in profit or loss respectively. Foreign exchange
gains and losses arising from debt securities were also
recognised in profit or loss. When the investments were
derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
recognised in equity was reclassified to profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

)]

(k)

U

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECL").

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the

Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Financial guarantee contracts

(n)

(o)

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher
of:

—  the amount determined in accordance with the ECL
model under HKFRS 9 and

—  the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument
and the payments that would be required without the
guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable
to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(p)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of merchandise is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being at the point the
customer purchases the merchandise at the retail shops.
Payment of the transaction price is due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the merchandise. Under
the Group’s standard contract terms, customers have a
right of return within 30 days. At the point of sale, a refund
liability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue is
recognised for those products expected to be returned.
At the same time, the Group has a right to recover the
product when customers exercise their right of return so
consequently recognises a right to returned goods asset and
a corresponding adjustment to cost of sales. The Group uses
its accumulated historical experience to estimate the number
of returns on a portfolio level using the expected value
method. It is considered highly probable that a significant
reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
given the consistent level of returns over previous years.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights
to receive payment are established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(p)

(a)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenues from the sales of merchandise are recognised on
the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods are
sold or delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Licence income is recognised in accordance with the terms
of agreement.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights
to receive payment are established.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Subsidiaries incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) participate in the retirement schemes
operated by the local authorities for the Group’s
employees in the PRC. Contributions to these schemes
are charged to profit or loss when incurred.

Long service payment liabilities

The Group’s net liability in respect of long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in
the current and prior periods. The long service payment
liabilities are the present value of long service payment
obligation less the entitlements accrued under the
Group’s defined contribution retirement scheme that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group.

The long service payment obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected
unit credit method. The present value of the long
service payment obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in
the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that
have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the
related pension obligation. If there is no deep market in
such bonds, the market rates on government bonds are
used.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(q) Employee benefits (continued)

()

(iii) Long service payment liabilities (continued)

Remeasurements of the net long service payment
liability which include actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income in the
period in which they arise and will not be reclassified to
profit or loss. Service costs and interest on the net long
service payment liability are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Interest on the net long service payment liability is
determined by multiplying the net long service payment
liability by the discount rate used to measure long
service payment obligation at the start of the annual
reporting period, taking account of any changes in the
net long service payment liability during the period as a
result of benefit payments.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain directors, employees and consultants. Equity-
settled share-based payments to directors and employees
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non-
market based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the
grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or, if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group receives
the services and is recognised as an expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s)

(t)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

®

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(t)

(u)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values
are computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-
generating unit whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the
extent that they reverse the impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses on trade receivables. The amount of expected credit
losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will
result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in
which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

()  The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no
past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

—  the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial
guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn
down as at the reporting date, together with any additional
amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated
as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets are impaired, based on objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated future
cash flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below
its cost is considered also to be objective evidence of
impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not to be
impaired individually, the Group assesses them collectively
for impairment, based on the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the delayed payments
in the portfolio, observable changes in economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly
reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the
amount of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent
period and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed (either
directly or by adjusting the allowance account for trade
receivables) through profit or loss. However, the reversal
must not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what
the amortised cost of the financial asset would have been
had the impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

v)

(w)

]

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

In respect of available-for-sale equity securities, an increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve; impairment losses are not
reversed through profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when material.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

5.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful lives are different
to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2018 was HK$706,071,000 (2017:
HK$733,588,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. During the
year, HK$6,540,000 (2017: HK$47,000) of income tax was
charged to profit or loss based on the estimated loss.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventories and allowance
charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

As at 31 December 2018, allowance for slow-moving
inventories amounted to HK$237,000 (2017: HK$3,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

5.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

(d) Fair value and impairment loss on financial assets at

FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale financial assets)

In the absence of quoted market price in an active market,
the directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s financial
asset at FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale investments),
details of which are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements, by reference to the valuation carried
out by an external independent valuer. In determining the
fair value, the valuer has utilised a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates, including but not limited to,
selection of market comparables and application of liquidity
discount. The directors have exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the method of valuation and inputs used
are reflective of the current market conditions.

In addition, an impairment loss of the Group’s available-for-
sale financial assets measured at fair value amounted to
HK$140,293,000 has been recognised in the profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2017. In determining
the decline in fair value of equity securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and measured at fair
value should be recognised in equity or profit or loss
accounts, management considers if such decrease was
significant or prolonged by a number of factors. Based on
its assessment of the magnitude of the decrease in fair value
below the Group’s original investment cost in the investee,
it is concluded that the fair value decrease of the investee
has been significant and an impairment loss is recognised
accordingly.

The carrying amount of the financial assets at FVTOCI as at

31 December 2018 was HK$83,212,000 (2017: Available-
for-sale financial assets of HK$87,660,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

6.

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities except for certain purchases transactions,
trade finance loans and bank balances denominated in
Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Renminbi (“RMB”), United States
Dollars (“USD”) and Euro (“EUR”) that result in certain foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2018, if the HKD had weakened or
strengthened 5 per cent against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax for the
year and the equity would have been HK$105,000 lower or
higher (2017: HK$67,000), arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange gain or loss on bank deposits denominated
in RVMB.

At 31 December 2018, if the HKD had weakened or
strengthened 10 per cent against the JPY with all other
variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax for the
year and the equity would have been HK$1,230,000 higher
or lower (2017: HK$1,277,000), arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange loss or gain on trade payables and
trade finance loans denominated in JPY.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

6.

Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b) Price risk

()

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in equity securities. The Group’s equity price risk
is mainly concentrated on equity securities quoted on the
Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2017: 10%) higher or lower,
other comprehensive income (2017: loss) for the year ended
31 December 2018 would decrease by HK$293,000 or
increase by HK$321,000 (2017: decrease by HK$335,000
or increase by HK$312,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of financial assets at FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale
investments).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 150 days from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 12 months
past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. HIBRAKEE(EZ) 6. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(c) FERKEE)

(c) Credit risk (continued)
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Trade receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases. The
Group assessed that there is no significant loss allowance
recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 31 December
2018.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 2 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

Prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment. At 31
December 2017, no trade receivables was determined to be
impaired. The aging analysis of trade debtors that were not
considered to be impaired was as follows:

SEEZRRATHOT -
—E—+F
2017
FET
HK$'000
R BRI R RE Neither past due nor impaired 27,593
#60 HAT 2% 7R 31E A Up to 3 months past due 11,533
A= 61E A 3to 6 months past due 1,810
40,936

fe) AR 280 H sl BB 2 e W s R ) £
MY EENCER —REFE
A -

B 8 HMB SRRl (B 2 e MR TR D
—HEREEE RIERX 502
BUYEFBRE - RBBELR
HNEEERTESAZE A
AR IDPAR B 2B
BEEEBMELELERLFG
ERVEHUR B R

—E-NFEER

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been
no significant change in credit quality and the balances were
still considered fully recoverable.

129



BONJOUR

B ERRMIEE(E) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BHE—ZE— ) \F+-A=+—HIFFZF For the year ended 31 December 2018
6. HIHXRMEE(E) 6. Financial Risk Management (continued)
(d) REBESER (d) Liquidity risk
AREBZHRAETHESRE A X The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
TEH REESEFE - UEERAK expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
EBEEEHIRSFEUNENE sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
RHARRHAZIBESRE - in the short and longer term.
REFRBEASHAMRESRE The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
LB EZHBASTNT cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:
DPR—ER —FZ MEZE
RER WEHE TEHE EEUE
Less than Between Between
1 year or 1 and 2 and Over
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
R=ZZB—N\F+=HA=+—H At 31 December 2018
B 5 REMBEMNERER Trade and other payables 209,851 113 - -
RITRER Bank borrowings 269,037 20,395 43,920 75,970
ZOMEER Trade finance loans 27,426 - - -
rﬂlﬁ?ﬂ%mlﬁ Finance lease payables 960 - - -
e BREE A A Amount due to a related
company 3,346 - - -
KREABBARZER Loan from a related company 6,517 125,000 - -
R=-ZZ—+&+=-A=+—H At31December 2017
5 REMERNERR Trade and other payables 225,552 614 - -
RITER Bank borrowings 160,630 68,962 49,675 88,623
BOMEER Trade finance loans 28,593 - - -
MEHEFE Finance lease payables 1,152 960 - -
e~ BEES 1 A Amount due to a related
company 2,771 - -
KEBHARZER Loan from a related company 6,900 138,000 - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(e) Interest rate risk

BONJOUR

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises from
its bank deposits, bank borrowings and trade finance loans.
These deposits and borrowings bear interests at variable
rates that vary with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates at that date had

been 100 basis points lower or higher with all other variables
held constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year and
the equity would have been HK$2,418,000 lower or higher
(2017: HK$2,893,000), arising mainly as a result of lower

or higher net interest expense on interest-bearing cash at

BHRITES  RITERLEZR
BERZ M B FSOFRHR D HIE

oo e

() <@MITARH

() Categories of financial instruments

banks, bank borrowings and trade finance loans.

—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
SRIEE Financial assets:
LABE SR A RTE /) Financial assets measured at
TRIEE amortised cost 347,247
EmhElE(REERES N Loans and receivables (including cash
WREEED) and cash equivalents) - 385,621
At ESMEE Available-for-sale financial assets - 87,660
LATZEFAHMEEWE 2 Financial assets measured
SREE at FVTOCI:
AT B Equity instruments 83,212 -
THEE: Financial liabilities:
DR At EN SR AaE Financial liabilities at amortised cost 759,240 744 547

(99 A¥E

REBPRERE BB KA R AR
ZEMEENERAGEIREE

HEXBZAFERE -

—E-NFEER

(g) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement

of financial position approximate their respective fair values.
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B ERRMIEE(E) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BHE—ZE— ) \F+-A=+—HIFFZF For the year ended 31 December 2018
7. AFERE 7. Fair Value Measurements
NEBEBNTSELEEAAERETZ Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
EMFELZ ST HE—BEEMWEK paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
HE—THE GBI - LTI participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures
B2 FENAEFERAATFESI# of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
H o BEEEEBNGTEAFEZG categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques
BERMz@ABIESB=H  FEWO used to measure fair value:
T
F1R@A AEBAEF=EHREZ Level 1 inputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
HE: MHREExAGETEEM identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
52 WME(REHE) - access at the measurement date.
FoMEA BREIRIRELAN  ER Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included within
i AEESHEEERIRGZ level 1 that are observable for the asset or
BEN B EE AZE - liability, either directly or indirectly.
E3R A BEXBEZELERS Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
g ABUE-
REE R ANERE (o E5EE The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
BIENEAEEEH  BREAKE of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
H=ERpERZ— - circumstances that caused the transfer.
@ RT-A=+—"HEAFESH (a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December:
ER 2 55 -
FEANTER
FRAYE: @gt
Fair value
measurements
using: Total
R —E-N\E
3 Description Level 3 2018
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REMATEFE ! Recurring fair value measurements:
CREE Financial assets
WAFEFAEMEENS SREE Financial assets at FVTOCI
EHRAES Listed equity securities 83,212 83,212
Mat Total 83,212 83,212
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

7. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

BONJOUR

(@) (&) (@) (continued)
RN TER
HEVARSIEE @t
Fair value
measurements
using: Total
FE3% —E—tF
5 Description Level 3 2017
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REMATEFE ! Recurring fair value measurements:
CREE Financial assets
ELESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
ETRAES Listed equity securities 87,660 87,660
aat Total 87,660 87,660

(b) HESMAFEAEZEELRK

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on

level 3:
RNAFETA
Htt2EREZ —E-N\F
SRMEE st
Financial assets
at FVTOCI listed 2018
T8 Description equity securities Total
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
Hn—H—H At 1 January 87,660 87,660
RE M2 EIR AR Total losses recognised in other
BB EEw comprehensive income ® (4,448) (4,448)
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 83,212 83,212
W BIERRERRFEZ ® Include losses for assets held
BECEBE at end of reporting period (4,448) (4,448)
—E-N\FEHR 133
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

7. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on

Bk (&) level 3: (continued)
LARFEERTA
Ememiiase —ET—+F
TRVEE st
Available-for-
sale financial
assets listed 2017
B Description equity securities Total
FEIT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R—H—H At 1 January - -
RERER B8 Total losses recognised in profit or
KRR loss ® (40,216) (40,216)
HEAE1R Transfers from Level 1 127,876 127,876
W+—_A=+—H At 31 December 87,660 87,660
» BIERRERARFEZ ® Include losses for assets held at
BEZEE end of reporting period (40,216) (40,216)

HE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—
HEFE AItHEEREE
127,876,000/ L C A F 14T 2
EEREEIN  FAERMIS LT
BITSEEZRE -

AEBERAZEERFE-F
—N\Ft+-A=+—BAFE
B PT 2 (R BB B8 A\ BRI

BE -

RS 5 754 B B BT R
HrAERBEAFENE B
FEEIRATENE - HBME
HEAEESERLE AT A
5 HBREREFRSTEL
BOTMREERF RERTH -

SLESMAFEFFEMS @+ A%
EREeRREABRAIERER
ML B 2 SN EMAE R RAETT
ffE -

ESRMAFEFEMAZB@RT
ARG ABBIEARZTIS
MBI Z YT -

During the year ended 31 December 2017, available-for-
sale financial assets amounting to HK$127,876,000 were
transferred from measurement based on level 1 to level 3 as
a result of unavailable quoted price in active market for the
assets held.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2018:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board of Directors at
least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform
the valuations.

Key unobservable input used in level 3 fair value
measurements is mainly discount for lack of marketability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

7. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

BONJOUR

(c) (#&) (c) (continued)
B3R A FEE Level 3 fair value measurements
Assets
AFE
Fair value
BAZBRENY
fit B TBRRARE [ AHEZ 2
Effect on fair value “E-\E 4R
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range for increase of inputs 2018 2017
TE7 TAT
HK$000 HK$'000
PERIREESRHEEL EYEHE RETERBEIAE  25%-35% A 83,212 87,660
TTRARE(ZE—+5: (ZB—tF:
AftHESREE) 25%-35%)
Listed equity investments Index return method Discount for lack of 25%-35% (2017:  Decrease
classified as financial assets marketability 25%- 35%)
at FVTOCI (2017: available-for-
sale financial assets
8. #¥i 8. Turnover
FRRNER EEBOTWOT - An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as follows:
—E-N\E —E—tF
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
ERMBHREERE155 Revenue from contract with customers
HEANEFEHOWE within the scope of HKFRS 15
HEE M Sales of merchandise 1,793,457 1,934,893
W 25 FE R Y B R Timing of revenue recognition
A — (&5 ] B B Products transferred at a point in time 1,793,457 1,934,893
—B-NEEH 135
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Hiug A 9. Other Income
—E2-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000

AR E 2 IREWA Dividend income from listed equity

investments - 519
BT Discounts received 3,748 4,425

HEYE - HEKEE Gain on disposal of property,

2 WEs plant and equipment 1,650 264
RITIFFFLBHA Interest income on bank deposits 650 89
BREWA Licence income - 3,729
HeBA Rental income 9,973 29,554
B Sundry income 4,618 4,961

20,639 43,541
PEER 10. Segment Information

AEBEEE X5 IRHBERTE
XERBER - Ft > AEERB—
RE-Z2HNE - ATHAEHTERE

B o

HEEH

AREERBINBES 2 Mk (HEE
NE)REFRBDEE(REEMNE)

regularly reviewed by the chief executive director.

Geographical information:

The Group has carried on a single business, which is wholesaling
and retailing of beauty and health-care products. Accordingly,
there is only one single reportable segment of the Group which is

The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of
operations and information about its non-current assets by

FERFMRNT location of assets are detailed below:
Wi FRBEE
Revenue Non-current assets
—E-NFg ZE=—+tF ZEB-NF ZT—+tF
2018 2017 2018 2017
FHETT FET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB Hong Kong 1,599,755 1,720,423 705,004 731,570
SR PY Macau 184,395 202,369 712 1,069
FE(TEERS PRC except Hong Kong
KIRFY) and Macau 9,307 12,101 355 949
SEA Mt Consolidated total 1,793,457 1,934,893 706,071 733,588
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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11. BERAK 11. Finance Costs
—E2-N\F —T—+F
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
RITERZFBHALZ Interest expense on bank borrowings 10,253 7,649

kB —RREB AR ZER Interest expense on loan from
ZHBRAX a related company 6,517 6,900
BEHEEA Finance leases charges 90 220
16,860 14,769

12. FiBHiBEx

FSTNE s FERIA T

12. Income Tax Expense

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as following:

—E-N\F —E—+4F
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BVEATEIE — BB NG Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
REEEE Provision for the year 1,108 178
BEEERETR Under/(over)-provision in prior years
(R RH) 4,955 612)
6,063 (434)
BNEARRTE — &5k Current tax — Overseas
REZ R Provision for the year 683 1,460
B F EHRREEHE Over-provision in prior years (1,700) (928)
(1,017) 532
EERIR Deferred tax 1,494 (51)
6,540 47
—E-N\EFH 137
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

12. Income Tax Expense (continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

On 21 March 2018, the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7)
Bill 2017, which introduces a two-tiered profits tax regime, was
substantively enacted. Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the
first HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying corporations
will be taxed at 8.25% with effect from the year assessment
2018/2019. Profits above HK$2 million will continue to be subject
to the tax rate of 16.5%.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practices in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate is as follows:

—E-N\F T —+tF
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BB RIEE Loss before tax (33,073) (202,295)
HEBNEHME16.5%:1E  Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
Z A 16.5% (5,457) (33,379)
BERM WA ZTFEE  Tax effect of income that is not taxable (915) (207)
Tz A 2 Bs & Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 3,037 27,194
E R AR ER T IAE 1B Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not
2B E previously recognised (1,045) -
RERBIEREEBRERZE  Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses and
R E temporary differences 7,073 7,766
BEFERETR Under/(over)-provision in prior years
(EBEEAAE) 4,545 (1,540)
BBEE s MR Tax effect of tax concession (185) -
B AR TR R & Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries (513) 213
PRS2 Income tax expense 6,540 47

Annual Report 2018



PSRRI (2
B2 —F—)\F+_A=14—HIFEF

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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13. FEBE 13. Loss for the Year

AREFBFEBBCHR,(GFA)UT The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting)

FIA the following:
—E-N\F T
2018 2017
FAET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

ZEET NS Auditors’ remuneration

BNEA Current 1,178 1,153
EEFERAME) Cost of inventories sold (Note) 1,157,692 1,254,665
AT ERME (B O BEME) Allowance for/(reversal of allowance for)

(HiFt) slow-moving inventories (Note) 234 (10)
e Depreciation 43,420 44,742
MEEME - MENEE Write off of property, plant and equipment 666 466
LEWE - HERZE Gain on disposal of property,

pal € plant and equipment (1,650) (264)
HEAHEESRERE Loss on disposal of available-for-sale

2 E51E financial assets - 6,086
AIftHESREEY Impairment loss on available-for-sale

BEREE financial assets - 140,293
FEHEE,(Was ) B8 Net exchange losses/(gains) 2,707 (819
T KRBT ELTERS  Operating lease charges for land and

(B$5262,0008 7.2 buildings (included contingent rentals

FAEE(ZT—HF - of HK$262,000 (2017: HK$507,000))

507,000 7)) 277,644 368,793
BINAE  BIEESHE Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments

TERES® Wages and salaries 214,929 220,183

RIREFIFEIHR Retirement benefits scheme contributions 9,332 9,961

RE A FEEIRREE Provision for unutilised annual leave 587 501

REABRTS & 5 Provision for long service payments 392 185

225,240 230,830

K EEGERABREBHETERE
234,000 (=T — 1t F : BEIE
10,0008 7T) + 5T A EX B #E

ZEFEp o

—E-NFEER

above.

Note: Cost of inventories sold includes allowance for slow-moving
inventories of HK$234,000 (2017: reversal of allowance of
HK$10,000) which is included in the amount disclosed separately
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

14. Benefits and Interests of Directors and Employees’

Emoluments

(a) EE=ME (a) Directors’ emoluments
SEEZMeENNT The remuneration of every director is set out below:
EEERLASANBLEES ATz e HERHS
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
EftiRA
it &8 BIKRR
e e BBRA (f2)  EERE  HEER L
Estimated
money value Retirement
of other benefits
Discretionary benefits Housing scheme
Fees Salaries bonuses (Note)  allowance contributions Total
7 T & 7R 7 7T FEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
YTES Executive Directors
£ E3 b Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson
(77B#%) (Chief Executive Officer) - 2,856 - 1,412 - 186 4,454
ERERT Ms. Chung Pui Wan - 2,856 - 1,412 - 186 4,454
EEFLL Mr. Yip Kwok Li - 876 14 - 510 18 1,475
REEE Mr. Chen Jianwen - - - - - - -
pay oy e Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel - - - - - - -
- 6,588 n 2,824 510 390 10,383
BU%H7EE  Independent Non-executive
Directors
U S Mr. Wong Chi Wi 208 - - - - - 208
Bhtiis Dr. Ghow Ho Ming 198 - - - - - 198
BERLE Mr. Lo Hang Fong 198 - - - - - 198
604 - - - - - 604
ZE-\EA  Totalfor 2018 604 6,588 n 2,824 510 390 10,987
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B ERRMIEE(E) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Az —F— ) \F+—H=1—HIFEF For the year ended 31 December 2018
14, EEEIRERZUREEMS(E) 14. Benefits and Interests of Directors and Employees’

Emoluments (continued)
(a) EEME(E) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
BREARAASENB L $ES AL M ERYME

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

HibiEA
(CHiEA AR
fg g2 BBRA (W)  RERE B @t
Estimated
money valug Retirement
of other benefits
Discretionary benefits Housing scheme
Fees Salaries bonuses (Note) allowance  contributions Total

FET FAT TAT TET TAT FET FET
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 — HK$000  HKS000  HKBOO0  HK$'000

YES Executive Directors
=Bt Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson
(77H#%) (Chief Executive Officer) - 2,856 - 1,309 - 186 4351
ERELL Ms. Chung Pui Wan - 2,856 - 1,309 - 186 4,351
EEAEE Mr. Yip Kwok Li - 852 Il - 520 18 1,461
REUEE Mr. Chen Jianwen - - - - - . -
FERTE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel - - - - - - -
- 6,504 7 2,618 520 390 10,163
BUEHTEE  Independent Non-executive
Directors
R Mr. Wong Chi Wai 208 - - - - - 208
FRRELE Dr. Chow Ho Ming 198 - - - - . 198
BERRE Mr. Lo Hang Fong 108 - - - - - 108
604 - - - - - 604
ZE-tEAH Total for 2017 604 6,564 71 2,618 520 390 10,767
Kiat - HtEfEsreEese S Note: Estimated money value of other benefits includes rent paid
S MEEFAAY - and directors’ quarter expenses.
FAN - WESEREXRENE None of directors have waived or agreed to waive any
TR (ZZ—+F  |,) o emoluments during the year (2017: Nil).
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(b)

(c)

EERXS PRGN TZE
REEz

BEARFERIANFREME
A - ANRF AT L AEREARE
EEBEHEAARRIES REAE
TZEERPEREa(BERE
BEIHR)INERRS ZHEK
BH -

hEEEHFATLT

FR AEERERSHFALT
BR=R(CFT—tF: =ZR)E
£ REZHMEFBTIN L Z
DI - HEEmA(ZF— £

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

14. Benefits and Interests of Directors and Employees’
Emoluments (continued)

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included three (2017: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments
of the remaining two (2017: two) individuals are set out

ME) AL ZHE0T - below.
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
EARFHE 2R Basic salaries, allowances and
EWHE benefits in kind 2,835 2,388
BIETEAL Discretionary bonuses 169 110
RIREFIET 2R Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 36 32
3,040 2,530
ZEANTZMEBR THIFHE - The emoluments fell within the following bands:
A
Number of individuals
—E-N\F —ET—tF
2018 2017
1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 2
1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 -
2 2
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

14. Benefits and Interests of Directors and Employees’
Emoluments (continued)

(d) Senior management

The senior management of the Group during the year
included three (2017: three) executive directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above,
and one individual (2017: one). The emoluments of the
individual are set out below.

—E-N\E —T—tF
2018 2017
FET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$’000

BEXFHSE - B Basic salaries, allowances and
EMH= benefits in kind 1,371 1,324
BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 80 110

RIREAFT B Retirement benefits scheme

contributions 18 18
1,469 1,452

FZEANLZHEBR TFEHE

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

A
Number of individuals
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
1,000,0018 7t — 1,500,000/ 7¢ HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 1

FR - AREYERENESS
RRFALTINME  (FREFE
WEMBREMNBAEERZ
M ERmE(—T L F
&) -

—E-NFEER

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2017: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

15. B2 15. Dividends
TR NEZRIRNMNEA A H R R EARL The Board does not recommend the payment of any interim and
B(ZE—+F &) final dividends for the year (2017: Nil).
16. BREE 16. Loss Per Share
FRERREEHE ZTENT ¢ The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the following:
—E-N\F —ET—+F
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
=] Loss
AT EFIRE R L #E Loss for the purpose of calculating basic
i =] and diluted loss per share (39,613) (202,342)
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
BoEE Number of shares
AL GTESRERERE Weighted average number of ordinary
2T hnaE T E shares for the purpose of calculating
basic loss per share 3,412,566,000 3,412,566,000

BE-_ZT—)\HFr-_F—+tF+=A4
—t—HIEFE BELZBEROTE
BREE -

144

The effects of potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive for the

years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Annual Report 2018



PSRRI (2

BE—F—\FT_H="1—HIFEF

17. W% - BMERRZE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

17. Property, Plant and Equipment

BONJOUR

HENE KA %E
THRET % PET RE st
Furniture,
Land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
FHET FET TET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A Cost
RZE—tF—-A—H At 1 January 2017 703,230 183,974 76,008 14,819 978,031
NE Additions - 3,183 4,036 - 7,219
HE Disposal - - (1,026) (1,201) (2,227)
s Written off - (27,3306) (7,379) - (34,715)
5 ESE Exchange differences - 356 348 - 704
WZZE—+F+-F=+—H At31December 2017 and
kZE-\F—A—-H 1 January 2018 703,230 160,177 71,987 13,618 949,012
NE Additions - 11,073 5,528 - 16,601
HE Disposal - - ) (3,750) (3,758)
s Written off - (11,597) (3,938) - (15,535)
e =S Exchange differences - (170) (181) - (351)
RZE—\E+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2018 708,230 159,483 73,388 9,868 945,969
RAERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
RZE—tE—-H—H At 1 January 2017 31,989 109,284 52,933 12,344 206,550
TEEME Charge for the year 15,877 18,836 7677 2,352 44,742
e Disposal - - (1,018) (1,201) (2,219)
fif s Written off - (27,258) (6,991) - (34,249)
R Exchange differences - 274 326 - 600
RZZ—+F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 and
“Z-\F—-F-H 1 January 2018 47,866 101,136 52,927 13,495 215,424
AEEHE Charge for the year 15,877 20,024 7,396 123 43,420
HeE Disposal - - 4 (3,750) (3,754)
bk Written off - (11,519) (3,350) - (14,869)
EHER Exchange differences - (148) (175) - (329)
RZZ—)\F+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2018 68,743 109,493 56,794 9,868 239,898
FEE Carrying amount
RZE—)\F+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2018 639,487 49,990 16,594 - 706,071
RZZ—+F+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2017 655,364 59,041 19,060 123 733,588
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B ERRMIEE(E) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BHE—ZE— ) \F+-A=+—HIFFZF For the year ended 31 December 2018
17. V¥ - BERSZEE) 17. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
RZE-N\F+_A=+—H - KHF At 31 December 2018 the carrying amount of land and buildings
ERREBEBRTASB ZRITERZL pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings amounted
# N 1€ 5 AR T {8 /637,883,000 % 7T to HK$637,883,000 (2017: HK$653,723,000).
(ZZE—+%F : 653,723,000/ 7T) °
18. & 18. Goodwill
FEIT
HK$'000
5% Cost
RZT—EF—HA—8 At 1 January 2017,
—E—+F+-A=F+—HK 31 December 2017
—E-N\F+ZHA=+—H and 31 December 2018 2,041
ZitREEE Accumulated impairment losses
RZT—tEF—HA—8 At 1 January 2017,
—EtFF+A=+—HK 31 December 2017
—E-N\F+ZHA=+—H and 31 December 2018 2,041
REE Carrying amount
RZE—NF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 -
R-ZE—+tF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2017 -
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B ERRMIEE(E) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Az —F— ) \F+—H=1—HIFEF For the year ended 31 December 2018
19. UAFEFTAHEMZEKEZNER/E 19. Financial Assets at FVTOCI (2017: Available-For-Sale
E(ZE—+tF : qitHESRMEE) Financial Assets)
—E-N\F —ET—tF
2018 2017
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHiE - mATE Listed investments, at fair value
N N =] Equity securities, analysed as non-

FEREBEE current assets 83,212 87,660
RZE-NEFERZZE—+tF+=HA As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, as there is no quoted
—+—B ARERTHEALTEDR market price in an active market, the fair value of listed securities
ME WEMESFZAFEIRES was determined by the directors with reference to the valuation
222 GNERYE Sk (B B {52 F 45 Bh Bl 3R A carried out by an external independent valuer by using Index
EITHMEET  BEEREDER return method which is based on index return on certain market
ATWBALEAANEHERE comparables (level 3 fair value measurements). The liquidity
(FESRATEFZE) - FTARE ST discount rate used is 30%.

"R E30% ©
HE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=T—HIHF For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recognised
B AEERRBREHRRAESIER a fair value loss of HK$140,293,000 related to listed securities
AHEESRMEEN LMESFERA classified as available-for sale financial assets held at the end of
& E54E 140,293,000/ 7C - A the reporting period. As the decline in fair value over the cost is
FERAHRKANTEBEKX - MR considered to be significant, it is recognised as impairment loss in
EmNEREREEE - profit or loss.
BE_ZE-N\FT+_A=T—HILF For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recognised
B AEERRBREHRRAEFESIER a fair value change of HK$4,448,000 related to listed securities
NAFEFAEMEAREZE S CBME classified as financial assets at FVTOCI held at the end of the
ENEMBSFREAMEEKEERA reporting period in other comprehensive income.
F{EE 54,448,000 7T °
UAFEFAEMEZER G S/RE Financial assets at FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale financial
E(ZE—tF AL ESsRmEE) assets) are denominated in HKD.
ABTLETE ©
20. & 20. Inventories
—E-N\F —F—tF
2018 2017
FET FAEIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
DAfeseE 7 HEES R Merchandise stock for resale 235,697 189,841
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

W E SRR 21. Trade Receivables
(a) AEBEZHERFHEEENT60 (a) The Group’s sales to wholesale customers are entered
Z200H 7 rEREA#ETT - TEHEE into on credit terms ranging from 60 to 90 days, and trade
ZFEWE SRR A B AR & A B receivables under retail sales are due within 150 days from
FH150H R EIHY - EUNE SRR the date of billings. The ageing analysis of trade receivables
RO is as follows:
—E2-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
#HEEP Wholesales customers
0-30H 0-30 days 1,323 2,659
31-60H 31-60 days 937 1,647
61-90H 61-90 days 1,633 721
91-120H 91-120 days 87 618
120H A E Over 120 days 93 1,653
4,073 7,198
TEHEZEWNEFEHR  Trade receivables under retail sales
0-30H 0-30 days 20,242 24,652
31-60H 31-60 days 2,411 2,488
61-90H 61-90 days 952 2,826
91-120H 91-120 days 25 2,487
1208 Over 120 days 20 1,285
23,650 33,738
HEt Total 27,723 40,936
b) AEEEWEREANEMBENLT (o) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
YEETHE - denominated in the following currencies:
BP9 HE
B (R ARYE Mt
Macau
Pataca
HKD (“MOP”) RMB Total
TiET FEIT FEIT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF 2018 25,826 1,845 52 27,723
—E—+F 2017 38,472 2,379 85 40,936
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

21. Trade Receivables (continued)

(c) As of 31 December 2018, trade receivables of approximately
HK$6,472,000 (2017: HK$13,343,000) were past due but
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

BRI

—E-N\F —T—+t5F
2018 2017
FET FEIL
HK$°000 HK$’000
X% E3{E A Up to 3 months 6,320 11,533
3Z61E A 3 to 6 months 152 1,810
6,472 13,343

22, BENRIE TR AEMERERR 22. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FET FEIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
B Trade deposits 12,649 10,203
Hibzl® Other deposits 5,147 4,319
S Prepaid rent 1,611 2,159
HAabFaT R Other prepaid expenses 2,411 2,592
H e R R Other receivables 132 37
21,950 19,310

23. FEuR FEAS R A B RNIE R R B R
DA ZERK

FEUR,/ e A< BB 1% R) FROE A A
% B N S E EE K o

B EFE1,569,0008 L (—E—+
% : 3,495,000 7L) + RESZHME -
e, e —REREE A BIFOE 0 8
HAIIEESHIHE -

A B A T2 BRI R
A RIEE%E BAAR - FFE—
A—R(=Z2—+%F: =2 nF—
A—B)EE -

—E-NFEER

23. Amounts Due From/To Related Companies and Loan from a
Related Company

The amounts due from/to related companies are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

Included in the amounts is HK$1,569,000 (2017: HK$3,495,000)
which is of trade nature due from/to a related company, and the
remaining balances are of non-trade nature.

The loan from a related company is unsecured, interest-bearing
at fixed 5% per annum and repayable on 1 January 2020 (2017:
1 January 2019).
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B ERRMIEE(E) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Az —F—\F+ = H=1—HIFEF For the year ended 31 December 2018
24, BOTRBESEH 24. Bank and Cash Balances
—E-N\F —ET—tF
2018 2017
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
RITRFHERE Cash at bank and on hand 156,848 220,000
aEE N Time deposits 80,684 30,076
RITRIRSEHRERE Total bank and cash balances 237,532 250,076

150

REBEZ RTINS HEHRBTRIATI
B SHEE

The carrying amount of the Group’s total bank and cash balances
are denominated in the following currencies:

—B-N\fF Bt

2018 2017

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

— BT - HKD 224,054 235,798
—BPFT - MOP 9,348 11,851
—H - JPY 3,475 -
—ARE - RMB 284 2,227
—%7T -UusD 371 200
237,532 250,076

RZZE—N\FE+-—A=+—H  R1T
TFHEF(FHBASEA) ZETF
FMEAE2.7E - IR1TINEAERHRITE
R EZZEHFEGTE - MEAXE
SmEFERRE -

RZE-NFF+ZA=+—8 &%
BRPEZHEBRARIUNARKEZ
RITRIR S #425969,0008 T (—F
—-4F : 643,00087T) - FAREE R
R INE 7B 2 Fh B HNEE B IR IR0 K 4
- EERNEEERERS -

The fixed interest rates on bank time deposits, with maturity of 3
months, were 2.7% per annum as at 31 December 2018. Cash at
bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates, and is therefore subject to cash flow interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2018, the bank and cash balances of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted
to HK$969,000 (2017: HK$643,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

25. Trade Payables

(a) ANEEEMNEZFERZERDT (@) The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on
(RREEMRE T : the date of receipt of goods, is as follows:
—E-N\F ZE—+F
2018 2017
FET FEIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
0-30H 0-30 days 64,411 72,612
31-60H 31-60 days 39,880 52,641
61-90H 61-90 days 12,789 15,191
91-120H 91-120 days 5,085 3,772
1208 £ Over 120 days 3,647 6,751
125,812 150,967
b) AEEZENESHEFUTINE (b) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
M AME - denominated in the following currencies:
BT =| BT ARH EH st
HKD JPY MOP RMB usb Total
FEIT FHET FAET FHEIT FHET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E—-N\&E 2018 123,487 537 1,100 645 43 125,812
—Z—tfF 2017 147,982 - 2,008 790 97 150,967
26. HEMRR SRS REFER 26. Other Payables, Deposits Received and Accrued Charges
—E-N\F —T—+t5F
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B Current
JEETB TAKAR Accrued staff costs 30,113 30,026
JEETHHEMEEE Accrued leasehold improvements 19,715 18,418
HAubFEET X Other accrued expenses 22,166 11,374
B EZe Rental deposits received 833 4,366
BERARE Provision for reinstatement cost 2,173 2,166
RS EE Provision for effective rent 1,579 780
H TR ENEERR Other sundry creditors 11,719 10,815
88,298 77,945
ERE Non-current
BRI B Provision for effective rent 9,611 11,025
BlWHEZS Rental deposits received 113 614
9,724 11,639
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BHE—ZE— ) \F+-A=+—HIFFZF For the year ended 31 December 2018
27. WITER 27. Bank Borrowings
—E-N\F —ET—tF
2018 2017
FET FETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
S ARIRITIERX Short-term bank borrowings 200,000 130,000
RHEIRITIE R Long-term bank borrowings 193,760 219,188
BSmEER Trade finance loans 26,239 28,422
419,999 377,610
fERZEBEBRIOT The borrowings are repayable as follows:
—E-N\E —E—+F
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 291,251 184,363
—F BN EBBRF More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 17,702 65,024
MEN M ERNEBRFE More than two years, but not more than
five years 37,651 42,557
FHFE More than five years 73,395 85,666
419,999 377,610
S Mt ZEARNAEE 28 Less: Amount due for settlement within
(RrshaFEr~E3) 12 months (shown under current
liabilities) (291,251) (184,363)
R+ ERRERE 2 A Amount due for settlement after 12 months 128,748 193,247
$R17E 3 393,760,0008 L (=T —+ Bank borrowings of HK$393,760,000 (2017: HK$349,188,000)
£ 1 349,188,000/ 7T ) K IR AR £ [F are secured by charges over the Group’s land and buildings (note
2 RAEFUERER(MFE17) o 17).

1562
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

27. Bank Borrowings (continued)

(@) The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

RITER ESmEER
Bank borrowings Trade finance loans

—E-N\F ZE—+tF —E-N\E ZE—+tF

2018 2017 2018 2017

FET FEIT FETT FET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT HKD 393,760 349,188 1,389 3,657

HIE JPY - - 14,190 15,289

£ USD - - 10,202 8,360

BRI EUR - - 458 1,116

303,760 349,188 26,239 28,422

AEBR+-A=+—BZI#R1T (b) The interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings at 31
BRZFEWT December were as follows:

—E-N\F —F—tF

2018 2017

RITE = Bank borrowings 1.25EEFEBRIT 1.25BEZFBETT

BE¥FE+1.25E [FEFE+1.25E

1.25% to 1.25% to

HIBOR+1.25% HIBOR+1.25%

BIHmMEER Trade finance loans HEET FEHARIT

BT 316,072,000 T (=&
—+t 4 : 26,185,000/ 7T ) % @
TEFRZH - SAEBMEXAF
B EER o At RITERIEZF
B R - AmAREEAEAT
ReEmEFERER -

—E-NFEER

R#FE+1.25FE [FXEFE+1.25E
ZREENRAE ZE=HEEFER1E
HIBOR+1.25% HIBOR+1.25%
to P-1% to P-1%

(c) Bank borrowings of HK$16,072,000 (2017: HK$26,185,000)
are arranged at fixed interests rates and expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. Other bank borrowings are
arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk.
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28. WMEMEENRE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

28. Finance Lease Payables

BREEENRE BREEEREZRE
Present value of
Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments
—E2-N\F —T—tF ZZEBE-NF —T—F
2018 2017 2018 2017
FET FET FET FEIT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—FA Within one year 960 1,152 885 1,062
F_ZFEAE(BFE  Inthe second to fifth years,
BEMF) inclusive - 960 - 885
960 2,112 885 1,947
W RRBEE R Less: Future finance
charges (75) (165) N/A ~EHRH N/A T3 A
HEAFAEZRE Present value of lease
obligations 885 1,947 885 1,947
S Mt ZEAANEE Less: Amount due for
ZEE(RREE settlement within
BETE5) 12 months (shown
under current
liabilities) (885) (1,062)
Rt+-@R#%E&E 2  Amount due for settlement
IR after 12 months - 885

AEBZHERAUREHRERRAET
HERERE - FHHERART - K
—E-NF+ZA=+—H8 " FHE
BEEEREA336E (T —+4F
3.54/F) - FIRR ALK B EE T AREE
& - Et, - AEEEHAFERE
B8 o FrATREH AR T ERELELE
Fo WERSKAE S REI TR
e RETHEH AR » KEBAIR
BUAEERDTE REE -

FrAREMREFRRHABTTAEE -

AEBEZBEHEFRRNLEASHA
RBEZEREER -
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It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles and
equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is five
years. At 31 December 2018, the average effective borrowing
rate was 3.36% (2017: 3.54%) per annum. Interest rates are fixed
at the contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments. At the end of each lease term, the Group has the
option to purchase the motor vehicles and equipment at nominal
prices.

All finance lease payables are denominated in HKD.

The Group’s finance lease payables are secured by the lessor’s
title to the leased assets.
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B ERRMIEE(E) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Az —F— ) \F+—H=1—HIFEF For the year ended 31 December 2018

29. ELEHE 29. Deferred Tax
UNTAREBEBRELERIBEE N The following are the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
afE- by the Group.

MEHR HEHE

e il HEFE ECHY
Accelerated Decelerated
tax tax

depreciation depreciation Tax loss Total

FEL FETL FETL FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZ—t&5-A-H At 1 January 2017 (4,327) 1,289 1,525 (1,513)
EAEERBREHA/ (NK) Credit/(charge) to profit or loss for the year 449 - (398) 51

RZE—+F+-A=+—HK  At31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018

—E-\&-H—H (3,878) 1,289 1,127 (1,462)
EAFEERNR Charge to profit or loss for the year (367) - (1,127) (1,494)
RZE-\F+-A=1+-8 At 31 December 2018 (4,245) 1,289 - (2,956)
LT ARGEEFBIKRE  BEMRE The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
WEERZ DT consolidated statement of financial position purpose:

—E-N\F —ET—tF

2018 2017

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

RIETRIBE E Deferred tax assets 1,289 1,289

RIEFRIBE B & Deferred tax liabilities (4,245) (2,751)

(2,956) (1,462)

REREHIR - WEGS TN AKE A At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has been

BHEEBLIHNREREERE R Z recognised in respect of the remaining unused tax losses and

D RI#919,224,0008 L (—ZE—+4F - deductible temporary differences with tax effect of approximately

21,457,000 7T ) & 2,000/ (=& HK$19,224,000 (2017: HK$21,457,000) and HK$2,000 (2017:

—+ 4 2,000/&70) lERIELERIEE HK$2,000) respectively due to the unpredictability of future

E - REZTHEE ARFORMAR o K profit streams. The unused tax losses may be carried forward
EFRIR B IR AR A e - indefinitely.
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30. RERKSERE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

30. Long Service Payment Liabilities

REEBRRBIED - AEEANET
BATREARBEELRHERDFLZ
BERKLEAREL —FBMNR -
ENZEBRTEERREZFE MR
BEMME - YHRRBEAEEZE
B FURIRGT B REt 2 AR B Eh f#
RIEFZFR - REBIERE T
BERTAHTRETREES -

EMRHSAB BEGEDR =T
—\&F+=B=+—BhRAHRT
AR A AR BTSRRI -

RERA M BN RER 2 RERE £

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees who
have completed at least five years of service with the Group.
The amount payable is dependent on the employee’s final salary
and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s defined contribution retirement scheme that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does
not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

An actuarial valuation of long service payment liabilities was
carried out at 31 December 2018, by BMI Appraisals Limited,

using the projected unit credit method.

The amount of long service payment liability recognised in the

BESBLOT consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:
—E-N\F —E—F
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RERBEREEZEHE Present value of long service payment
obligation 2,709 2,739

FR - AKEZRARBEAEZS

Movements in the Group’s long service payment liability during

wm the year are as follows:
—E-N\#F —ET—tF
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
n—HA—H At 1 January 2,739 3,604
RIVER AR 75 A 2R Current service cost 1,028 1,306
FERXZ Interest expense 52 64
B BB Gains from staff resignation (688) (1,185)
R RIK R Long service payment to
BEERRHARES retired/redundant staff (199) (180)
HURBREELY Actuarial gains arising from changes
BE W in financial assumptions (223) (870)
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 2,709 2,739
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B ERRMIEE(E) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Az —F— ) \F+—H=1—HIFEF For the year ended 31 December 2018
30. RIIRBEEEE) 30. Long Service Payment Liabilities (continued)
AEBRZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H The principal actuarial assumptions adopted by the Group as
Kz FEREBRZ(AMEFESE at 31 December 2018 (expressed as weighted average) are as
FIR)EAN - follows:
—E-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
Prigx Discount rate 2.044% 1.921%
L R & Salary growth rate 3.0% 3.0%
wEIMEAESERERAZ Long term rate of increases to mandatory
RESE AN & K K EA provident fund relevant income and
R EREEE,/ T& long service payments maximum
amount/wages - -
ZIK’E@EEE%IEEW@ CERRERAZ The Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant
[E S of which are detailed below:
[ B FH1E
Risk Description
BEHW =g NAEHFERER D EIEINEE -
Changes in bond yields A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase liabilities.
AR R AHEHEH BRI - RBREERRaSNEE -
Inflation risk The majority of the obligations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead

to higher liabilities.

RBERR - AEESERBFERSE The Group’s sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial
ANERBEBRENARBEEZSM assumption as of the end of the reporting period based on
EITHERESTWT ¢ reasonably possible changes of the relevant actuarial assumption
is as follows:
H &
#h,m HERzZTE
Increase/
decrease
in rate Impact on obligation
—EBE-NE —ZT—+tF
2018 2017
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Frigx Discount rate 0.5% (573)/758 (636)/839
FEE R = Salary growth rate 1.0% 452/(695) 628/(884)
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B ERRMIEE(E) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Az —F—\F+ = H=1—HIFEF For the year ended 31 December 2018
30. RERBELSEREE) 30. Long Service Payment Liabilities (continued)
FiigRESHTHENR —B/REHEIR The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an
B MESEBRETEmELY - & assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
B BRI KAIREGELE - MA practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
B F IR E (L2 B MEEES - & assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity
SAEREARECECHTIERERREK of the long service payment obligation to significant actuarial
S EER - FTEAM A AEETE R assumptions the same method (present value of the long service
GRAEMBRARTPEIANEEN A payment obligation calculated with the projected unit credit
HR(RHEREESEETNREIRR method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as
HEHREEREMEEEHE when calculating the liability recognised within the consolidated
statement of financial position.
RBLEURE D ATATER B 89 7 75 MR R The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the
R CEHAREE - sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous
period.
AEBRERBESEBEZNEFH The weighted average duration of the Group’s long service
HPRK AB2TF(ZE—+F : —_++ payment obligation is approximately 27 years (2017: 27 years).
F) o REB ZARTZERMTRNE The maturity analysis of the Group’s undiscounted benefit
BT payments is as follows:
PR-F -FEME WEERE BALE -
Less than Between Between Over
iyear 1and2years 2andS5 years 5 years Total
FET FHET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-NE+-B=+-H At 31 December 2018
ety Pension payments 185 39 115 6,743 7,082
RZE—+F+-A=+T—H At31 December 2017
el Pension payments 187 M 268 7,3% 7,960
158 Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

31. B 31. Share Capital
BB EE FEr
Number of
shares HK$'000
SETE Authorised:
FREE.O1E L EEBK Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
RZZE—+F—HF—H" At 1 January 2017,
—E—+H+-A=+—H" 31 December 2017,
—E-\F—A—HEK 1 January 2018 and
—ET-N\FE+=ZA=+—H 31 December 2018 10,000,000,000 100,000
BRITRER Issued and fully paid:
ERAEEC.ONE T LR Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
RZZE—+F—H—H" At 1 January 2017,
—T—+F+-A=F+—H " 31 December 2017,
—2-N\F-A—8K 1 January 2018 and
—E-)\+=-A=+—H 31 December 2018 3,412,566,000 34,126

AEBEZEAERBRRERAEE
BEFRFERE  URBBBLERRK
LI ABIR SR KIER R o

AEBZARLIIREELRSRE - K
SEEEE NGB UL R BRI
NEPHRABEEZRRFEELR
- RERRARELERE  A%H
HEREBRE R - BITHE
BOR SERMER  EEREE
B EEENREET -

AREENBEHERABEER LR SE
BEFEER o LR ABEFF R IA
RAREANGFE - BHRABEREE
FBEARERLRBREHRETHNE
B RABREANBEMAERILD
(BB ~ (RERE I S b ) o

—E-NFEER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
adjusted capital. Total debt comprises borrowings, loan from a
related company and obligations under finance leases. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital,
retained profits and other reserves).
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B ERRMIEE(E) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Az —F—\F+ = H=1—HIFEF For the year ended 31 December 2018
31. BRA&(&) 31. Share Capital (continued)
MNZE—)N\F AEEMNRKEE_-_FT During 2018, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
—+FHFE - EFESEEH 2017, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at the
BEREER042 12051 112 lower end of the range 0.42:1 to 0.51:1, in order to secure
IEFEE - ARRIZSIEKAESR access to finance at a reasonable cost. The debt-to-adjusted
B PR _E—NE+-_A=1+—HK capital ratios at 31 December 2018 and at 31 December 2017
—ET—+F+-_A=+—HZEBY were as follows:
KRBEARLENT
—E-N\F —EF—tF
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B Total debt 545,884 517,557
B ReRIREEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents (237,532) (250,076)
[Ev s Net debt 308,352 267,481
RETRAR R Total equity 599,685 641,214
—E-N\F —ET—+F
2018 2017
B AR E AN R Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio 51% 42%
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REBZBERIATINRERBE -
BT RN ATE ET AL - E
Losn RN BRARIEE  K(i)E
BT BEEWEOI ISR H R ERF &
IR TS THRE -

P
=

D f H

AEBFBREZEERGBEELERT
HIRIERBHFRENE AR D EZES
WE ZHREBTAEERBETE
RN—EHFA25%HRE - R=ZT—N
F+-A=1+—HB 2REBREAK
PHIB8% (=T —+LF : 42%) °

—BERMBRANRFRERTE R
TAIBIRIREIEE - HEZT—\F
k—ZF—+tF+_A=+—HLHF
& - g A REENM B
HERRHRERTE -

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are:
(i) in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has
to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares; and (ii) to
meet financial covenants and to maintain certain shareholding by
the ultimate controlling parties attached to the interest-bearing

borrowings.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars weekly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 December 2018, 38% (2017: 42%)

of the shares were in public hands.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants and shareholding
requirement would permit the bank to immediately call
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial
covenants and shareholding requirement of any interest-bearing
borrowing for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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32. ARTHMBERRKRRFEEERZS

BONJOUR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

32. Statement of Financial Position and Reserve Movement of

the Company

(a) ADFTEHEMRRE (a) Statement of financial position of the Company
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
2018 2017
&t FET FEIT
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
RBREZEE Investments in subsidiaries 34,042 34,041
REEE Current assets
b Deposits 11 -
[ NGIE e Due from subsidiaries 419,664 362,655
BIEATR IR & B Current tax assets - 127
RTINS KRR Bank and cash balances 112,140 168,993
531,815 531,775
REEE Current liabilities
FEASTHY B A RIFR B Due to subsidiaries 237,691 237,692
E bR B X Other payables and accrued
EFtER charges 970 816
238,661 238,508
REBEEFE Net current assets 293,154 293,267
BEEFRE NET ASSETS 327,196 327,308
BEXK#E Capital and reserves
A& 2 Share capital 31 34,126 34,126
EE Reserves 32(b) 293,070 293,182
R TOTAL EQUITY 327,196 327,308

R-ZE-NWE=A-+NLBE=S
HAERBEATALTRES

@
=

£
=

Ip Chun Heng, Wilson

RRZT

—E-NFEER

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Chung Pui Wan
ERET
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

the Company (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

32. Statement of Financial Position and Reserve Movement of

(b) AT FEEE (b) Reserve movement of the Company
B EXEER  ROXG
wER it e REER mat
Share-
Share Capital based
premium redemption payment Retained
account reserve reserve profits Total
TFET FET TFET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
nZZ—+tF—HF—H At 1 January 2017 242,729 1,181 64,013 (14,215) 293,708
FAEE Loss for the year - - - (526) (526)
NZE—+F At 31 December 2017
+-A=1+—H 242,729 1,181 64,013 (14,741) 293,182
RZZE—NF—HF—H At1January 2018 242,729 1,181 64,013 (14,741) 293,182
FAHEE Loss for the year - - - (112) (112)
RZE—N\F At 31 December 2018
+=-A=+—H 242,729 1,181 64,013 (14,8593) 293,070
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

33. Reserves

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal
amount of share capital repurchased through the Stock
Exchange and cancelled by the Company. The issued
share capital was reduced by the nominal value thereof
and transfer to the capital redemption reserve is made
upon cancellation of the repurchased shares.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of
the Group reorganisation in 2003 and represented the
difference between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the
reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

Statutory reserves
The Statutory reserves, which are non-distributable,
are appropriated from the profit after taxation of the

Group’s foreign subsidiaries under the local applicable
laws and regulations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

33. Reserves (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to directors, employees and
consultants of the Group recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 4(r) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 4(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve (2017: Investment
revaluation reserve)

The financial assets at FVTOCI reserve (2017:
investment revaluation reserve) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of financial
assets at FVTOCI reserve (2017: available-for-sale
financial assets) held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy in note 4(h)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements.

34. Share-Based Payments

2003 Old Scheme

A share option scheme was approved by the then sole
shareholder of the Company on 17 June 2003 and was
terminated by the shareholders of the Company on 27 May
2009 (the “Old Scheme”). Under this Old Scheme, the Board
of Directors may at its discretion offer options to any directors
and employees of the Group which entitle them to subscribe for
shares in aggregate not exceeding 10% of the shares in issue
from time to time. These options shall lapse where the grantee
ceases to be employed by the Company or its subsidiaries.
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

34. Share-Based Payments (continued)
2009 New Scheme
On 27 May 2009, the Company passed a resolution in a
shareholders’ meeting for the adoption of a new share option

scheme (the “New Scheme”).

Details of the New Scheme are set out in the Directors’ Report
under — the heading “Share Option”.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

BE- REAH BEAY e TfEE
Scheme Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price
BT
HK$
“EEN\FR —TT=F C—TF\FRA+AE ZETNFRA-H “EENFHA-RBE 0.312
“Z-NENA=+H
2008A 2003 16 May 2008 1 May 2009 1/6/2009-30/4/2019
“EENFL ZFEZF  ZFZ)\F+-ANR ZEEAF+t-A-B ZETAFT-F-HE 0.158
“E-NE+—A=t+H
2008B 2003 9 December 2008 1 December 2009 1/12/2009-30/11/2019
ZZTNE 2= ZZTHhE-AZH —ZZTNE-AZH “ETNE-AZHE 0.170
ZE-NE=ZA—H
2009 2003 2 February 2009 2 February 2009 2/2/2009-1/2/2019
—T-%F ZEENF  ZE-TFNMA+=-H ZE--FNA+t=-H ZT--FEA+=HEZE 0.929
—Z-TEMATZA
2010 2009 13 April 2010 13 April 2012 13/4/2012-12/4/2020
—T——F “TENEFE  E——%\[A-+HE —E-—FtANH “E-—FtAmAZE 1.209
(fizt) %+ A=H
2011 2009 24 August 2011 (Note) 4 July 2012 4/7/2012-3/7/2021
—T—mE “TENE  —E-WELAZ=H “T-WE+A=H i g e = 1.280
ZE-NE+AZH
2014 2009 3 July 2014 3 July 2014 3/7/2014-2/7/2019
“E-A1F “EENF —E-RF-A-+=H ZE-RF—A-+=H ZE-RF-A-ft=HE 0.762
ZEERE-A1H
2015 2009 23 January 2015 23 January 2015 23/1/2015-22/1/2020

Bat - BREZEA RGN —F——F
tAORBFTZEEEGALE
RINERE  WRRZE——F\A
T O H R R AL AE -

—E-NFEER

Note: The number and terms of options were fixed and proposed at the
date of board meeting on 4 July 2011, and further approved by
shareholders on 24 August 2011.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Share-Based Payments (continued)
2009 New Scheme (continued)
If the options remain unexercised after the end of the exercise

period, the options expire. Options are forfeited if the employee
leaves the Group before the options exercised.

Details of the share options outstanding at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

—E-N\EF —E—+F
2018 2017
iB IR RE InFEF BB o1
A TEE # A 1T6EE
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of share exercise of share exercise
options price options price
BT T
HK$ HK$
FHORFERE®AITE  Outstanding at the
beginning and end
of the year 301,632,000 0.67 301,632,000 0.67
FERAITE Exercisable at the end
of the year 301,632,000 0.67 301,632,000 0.67

B2 \FE-_ZF—+F+_-HA
=+ —BHIFERETEERE - F
R ARITE 2 BIRE 2 MEFH
TEHNFHAEA—F(ZE—tF ' W
F) IFEENTF0.1588 L E1.283
BEIT(ZZ—+t4F :0.15887TE1.280
BL) BHEE—NEFER-_ZT—+
F+-AZt+—BUFEHERLE
BRAE o

No share options were exercised during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017. The options outstanding at the end
of the year have a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 1 years (2017: 2 years) and the exercise prices range from
HK$0.158 to HK$1.283 (2017: HK$0.158 to HK$1.280). No
share options were granted during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

34.

Share-Based Payments (continued)

2009 New Scheme (continued)

These fair values at the grant dates were calculated using the
Black-Scholes Model or Binomial Model. The inputs into the

WX 7 ASENT - Models were as follows:
REHAH

R 6B HE KR FEHFH BEKRE FEHREE
Share Expected
price at Exercise Expected Expected Risk dividend
grant date price volatility life free rate yield
BT BT % F % %
HK$ HK$ % Years % %
—ZEN\FHR 2008A 0.312 0.312 57.88 1 1.27 5.80
—ZEENFL 2008B 0.152 0.158 52.80 11 1.78 18.15
—ETNF 2009 0.170 0.170 52.85 10 1.67 19.06
—E-FF 2010 0.929 0.929 51.74 10 2.83 4.80
—F—F 2011 1.191 1.209 51.66 10 1.64 4.86
—F—EF 2014 1.260 1.280 42.97 5 1.43 5.11
—E—RF 2015 0.750 0.762 41.33 5 1.02 7.27

B R R EARBREN B E
SEZESLKEAHE - HH R —EF@
HEAMAZERFHEREARHE
ZREAFHERABIARBR AR EE -
TTERBIRITRERZZE

BE_Z— )\ _FT—+F+_-A8
Tt B FEASEMERIEH
KRBT L BN H
gzo

BRARARRL ZBREAN 25
EREAXRIET -

—E-NFEER

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 5
years. The expected life used in the Black Scholes Model has
been adjusted, based on the Group’s best estimate, for the
effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

The Group did not recognise share-based payments expenses for

the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 in relation to share
options granted by the Company.

For the options granted, a payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total was paid by each grantee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

35. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for

*%Lﬁ%/ﬁ%ﬂ#ﬁéﬁ%.,&?éfﬁﬁum
Eﬁ/\’%ﬂzﬁﬂﬁjﬁﬁzfﬁiumi °

from financing activities.

which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

—E-N\F ELERE —E-N\F

—HA—H HERE A t-—A=+—~H

1 January Exchange 31 December

2018 Cash flows difference 2018

FAET FET FET FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

TEE (H17227) Bank borrowings (note 27) 349,188 44,572 - 393,760
BHmMEER Trade finance loans

(Ki5#27) (note 27) 28,422 (2,375) 192 26,239
D=l NCl Loan from a related

B (H1it23) company (hote 23) 138,000 (13,000) - 125,000

BERERT Finance lease payables

( /7/7&28) (note 28) 1,947 (1,062) - 885

517,657 28,135 192 545,884

—E—+tF EHERE —E—+tF

—A—H BeRe M t=-A=+—A8

1 January Exchange 31 December

2017 Cash flows difference 2017

FEIT FET FET FEIT

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

RITIEE (Hfzt27) Bank borrowings (note 27) 363,119 (13,931) - 349,188
ZES5mEER Trade finance loans

(Kizt27) (note 27) 35,259 (8,050) 1,213 28,422
KEBE A FZ Loan from a related

BR(H5t23) company (note 23) 138,000 - - 138,000

BEMERIR Finance lease payables
(H1i28) (note 28) 4,631 (2,684) - 1,947
541,009 (24,665) 1,213 517,557
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B ERRMIEE(E) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BHE—T— ) \F+ - A=+—HIFFZF For the year ended 31 December 2018
36. IAREE 36. Contingent Liabilities
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
MENEEZHE Guarantees given by banks for rental
EHR Z &R payment to landlords - 2,850
BEEMHEEERZER  Guarantees given for purchase to vendors 100 100
100 2,950
37. HERE 37. Lease Commitments
REEER  NEBIRBETTHEE At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future
KEHE MR ARG T RIEFH aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
Nz &EREERNGKBENT operating leases in respect of land and buildings as follows:
—E-N\F —ET—tF
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
—F R Within one year 244,365 235,544
E_ZFRAF(BEEREMTE) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 223,541 213,645
AFE% After five years 5,124 651
473,030 449,840
KEHENTErSERETEEH Operating leases payments represent rental payable by the Group
AXfzEE  HHOEFFHN T for its retail shops. Leases are negotiated terms ranging from 1
1£26F - MEHEESRAEEHES - to 6 years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms, but certain
HEETHERFEXAES - leases do include contingent rentals.
REEEAR - NEERET AT HEHLL At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum
EoMZARREEERSHEEEE sublease rental receivable under non-cancellable operating
wmr subleases as follows:
—E-NF  —TtfF
2018 2017
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
—FRA Within one year 4,461 7.495
E_EZERF(BEERME) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 1,560 4,273
6,021 11,768
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

38. Related Party Transactions

B ERREMITDRE (@) In addition to those related party transactions and balances

BB AN T2 5 K& RS -
FARHEHBBALETATR

REE disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,

the Group had the following transactions with its related

Z parties during the year:
—2-N\F  —T—tF
2018 2017
FET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Bl lNEIFERS Sales to related companies 2,268 2,148
REBH AT ZHESIA Rental income from a related company 5,299 22,491
KA AT EEWRA  Lcence income from a related company - 3,729
RIEZL NI = &N Loan interest expense to a related
FEF company 6,517 6,900
FHOTESCHESHT Rental expense to an executive director 2,880 2,640
(a2l NI g1 Sales received on behalf of related
HER companies 4,016 4,417

HOTHEEE L RAREERE
L BRI A 2 AR - 2
—E—rEMATZ RS

With effect from 13 April 2017, the executive directors Dr.
Ip and his spouse, Ms. Chung Pui Wan are the controlling
shareholders of the related companies.

A o
FRN EEREMFEEEEN (o) The remuneration of directors and other members of key
B2 &M T management during the year was as follows:
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FET FEIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTEEHREAEHSE Key management personnel
compensation:
e Fees 604 604
HAFH & 28 % Basic salaries, allowances and
Y &= benefits in kind 11,292 11,026
FIETELT Discretionary bonuses 151 181
RIREMET B R Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 408 408
12,455 12,219
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

39. Principal Subsidiaries

BONJOUR

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018

MEBARBNT are as follows:
BERITRE/
£ MRS  ETEEEREEGY B MR AR EERBERN  EARE
Particulars of issued Attributable
Place of Principal activities and share capital/ Type of equity
Name incorporation  place of operation registered capital legal entity interests
ERGARER:
Interest held directly:
eHEEERAR RBRAES  REER 3,000 B R EE ARAA 100%
1R BRI
Bonjour Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding 3,000 ordinary shares of  Limited liability
Islands US$1 each company
Bl 5
Interests held indirectly:
iRt ER O BE EERHERTEXRAR 3000008t ELZRE BRAR 100%
BRAR REEM BRI )2 1,00087T.2
ERK
Bonjour Cosmetic Hong Kong Wholesaling and retailing of -~ Non-voting deferred Limited liability
Wholesale Center Limited beauty and health-care shares of HK$300,000 company
products in Hong Kong and ordinary shares of
HK$1,000
EFERERAT BB EEBREERTRREER 1900008 T2 TR AR 100%
Sheen Honour International  Hong Kong Wholesaling of beauty and  Ordinary shares of Limited liability
Limited health-care products in HK$190,000 company
Hong Kong
EZTARAF &R EEREEXARREM 10000082 ERR  BARAF 100%
Win Come Hong Limited ~ Hong Kong Trading of beauty and Ordinary shares of Limited liability
health-care products HK$100,000 company
in Hong Kong
EAERCEARAR BE EERMSEESREER 300000082 ERE  BRAR 100%
Good Merit International Hong Kong Wholesaling of beauty and  Ordinary shares of Limited liability
Enterprise Limited health-care products HK$3,000,000 company
in Hong Kong
—E-N\EFH 171
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

FEMBAT(E) 39. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
BERITRE/
£ MRS  ETEEEREEGY B MR AR ERERERN EakE
Particulars of issued Attributable
Place of Principal activities and share capital/ Type of equity
Name incorporation  place of operation registered capital legal entity interests
2RERBRAT HERAES ERMTEXAREER  REGIETCEER  BRAA 100%
Full Gain Developments British Virgin Retailing of beauty and 1 ordinary share of Limited liability
Limited Islands health-care products US$1 each company
in Macau
HHBERAT BB EEBRANE BT B BRAT 100%
Apex Frame Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Ordinary share of HK$1 Limited liability
Hong Kong company
EHERRAT B EBARENE BTz BBk BRAF 100%
Wealthy Train Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Ordinary share of HK$1 Limited liability
Hong Kong company
=l YNG HERRES  RERR 50,0000 & X EIfE AR 100%
1=z EBK
Active Earn Limited British Virgin Investment holding 50,000 ordinary shares Limited liability
Islands of US$1 each company
R ERARAT BB BYABER 100872 EREK AR 100%
Bonjour Global Hong Kong E-commerce business Ordinary shares of Limited liability
Development Limited HK$100 company
eREETERRAT BE REER 1007872 Lidik BRAT 100%
Bonjour Lifestyle Hong Kong Investment holding Ordinary shares of Limited liability
Company Limited HK$100 company
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